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When we identified the role Factor 5A plays in programmed
cell death several years ago, our initial focus was o find ways 1o
impare beneficial traits to plants. For example, plants in the field
might dic prematurcly when faced with stresses like disease or
drought, or produce on supermarker shelves could succumb to
spoilage caused by patural senescence,

Today, Senesco’s propricrary technologies have been licensed

by companies worldwide in the hopes of increasing crop yields,
producing larger and leafier crops, reducing the harmful effects
of environmental stresses, like drought, and extending the shelf

life of perishable pline produes.

Our research in the agricultural world led us to the conclusion
that, if we could use our technology to regulate cell death in

plants, then there might alse be applicarions to human cells.

As we enter 2008, Senesco aims (o expand its human health
research. Our goals are to develop therapeutics for cancer and
inflammatory diseases, and to accumulate the data and know-
how necessary to commence the first Factor 5A clinical trials
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In 2007, we made greac strides in getting our technology
into the hands of well-positdoned agricultural indusiry leaders
when we forged relationships with Bayer CropScience
(for rice, canola and cotron) and Monsanto (for corn
and soybeans). These five crops represent the majority of
agricultural biotech crops grown worldwide.

These two parwnerships represent years of proof-of-concept
research and active licensing activity by Senesco. We are very

excited that companies of this stature have licensed our technology
for use in large-scale field crops.

In addition to working with the foregoing two companies with a
considerable marker share in the largest biotech crops, Senesco

also has established relationships with the following companies:
Rahan Meristem
ArborGen

Cal/West Seeds ~
Harris Moran Seed Company
The Scotts Company |

Poet

Now that we have exclusively licensed our technology to these
industry leaders, our primary goal in our agricultural work will
be to support our partners with the research necessary to create

commercial products.




NETIC|TECHNOLOGIES TO REUNSEIAS. | DEATH

To protect out researchers’ discoveries, we have a growing
intellectual property estate that encompasses domestic and
internationat patent applications. To date, we have 15
patents issued in the U.S. and 12 issued internationally.

Just as importanrt as protecting our intellectual property is
our need to operate unencumbered by financial constraints
as we work toward commercialization on the agricultural side
of our business, and an oncology clinical trial on the human
health side. To this end, we recently entered into $10 million
of definitive financing agreements to fund the next twe years

of our operations.



Dear Stockholders:

It has been a productive year since our last report and we believe that Senesco has made much progress

during thar time.

We have identified a certain oncology target and we have outlined a plan to advance this targer for the
initiation of a Phase I clinical trial. This is a multi-year research plan and will require the assistance of a
Contract Research Organization, the completion of a preclinical animal model of the disease, toxicology
studies and the acquisition of pharmaceutical grade materials. The body of prior research data that we
have developed over the last few years as well as additional data from planned studies would then be
used to file an investigational new drug application with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for

its review and consideration in order to initiate a clinical trial.

We believe that our preclinical research into inflammarory diseases and cancer has also progressed. We
have initiated a program in an ocular discase and have advanced work in pancrearic isler cells, the cells
thar produce insulin, and we have continued our programs in HIV and sepsis. In cancer, we have
been exploring nano encapsulation technologies which could potentially allow our gene to circulate
longer in-vivo thereby increasing its effectiveness in turning on celf death in the cancerous cells. To
protect our technology, we actively file for patent protection. We now have 27 issued patents and over

260 martrers pending.

Our ongoing efforts to expand the network of agricultural licensees to develop and commercialize our
gene technology resulted in the consummation of four new agreements. New partners this year are Bayer
CropScience with three licenses for canola, cotton and for rice; and Monsanto with a license for both
corn and soy. We are very pleased to partner with these two leaders in the agricultural biotechnology

industry. We also converted our development agreement with ArborGen into a full license agreement.
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In order to execurte our business plans, we have secured the significant financing thar we believe
will be required to fund the research and development for the potential Phase I clinical trial, the
other ongoing preclinical and agricultural research programs, and the administrative expenses.
Definitive financing agreements with YA Global Investments, LP and with Stanford Venture
Capirtal Holdings, Inc. - aggregating $10 million in gross proceeds — have recently been signed.
The terms and provisions of these financing agreements can be found in our Report on Form 10-K,

which is provided in this Annual Reporr.

We look forward to reporting to you as we progress on our plans in the coming year. We would
like to thank you for your continued support and interest in Senesco. We also like 1o compliment

our employees and our consultants in their continued dedication to further our goals during the

past year.

Regards,

Rudolf Stalder Bruce C. Galton
Chairman of the Board President ¢ CEQ
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To our Stockholders:

We are pleased to have this opportunity to provide an update on enhancements to Senesco’s platform
technology over the past year and on progress with its commercialization. Our technology is based on
the finding that Factor 5A (eIF5A) is able to regulate cell survival and cell deach in both plants and
humans. In effect, Senesco’s technology moedulates Factor SA function and can thus be used to induce
either cell survival and growth, or cell death. Accordingly, the technology has unusually broad com-

mercial application in the areas of both human health and agriculture.

In the human health sector, Factor 5A technology has application as a potential therapy for cancer,
where the objective is to kill malignanc cells, as well as for inflammatory diseases, where the objective
) : . . . ,
is to prevent premature cell death resulting from inflammation. In the agricultural sector, Senesco’s
Factor 5A technology has proven effective as 2 means of enhancing plant growth and seed yield. This
in turn means that it has application not only to the major agronomic crops that provide food for

human and animal consumption, bur also as a means of enhancing plant biomass.

Senesco’s research and development is conducted both in-house and in collaboration with commercial
and university partners. One of the major accomplishments over the past year has been a greatly
increased understanding of how the putative switching function of Factor 5A works. The Company
has established that the Factor 5A protein is synthesized and then subsequently converted by a process
called ‘post-translational modification’ either into a form that promotes cell survival or a form that
promotes cell deach. This has enabled us to make changes to the Factor 5A gene that pre-determine
whether it will enhance cell survival and growth or promote cell death. Thus, if the objective is to kill
cancer cells, the cell death form of Factor 5A is used. Alternatively, if the objective is to enhance the
growth and yield of a crop, e.g., corn, the cell growth form of Factor 5A is used. These enhancements
are significantly improving the efficacy of Senesco’s technology in both human healch and agricul-

tural applications.

Human Health

The company’s strategy in developing the human health applications of its technology continues to

entail studies with human cell lines as well as extensive testing using discase-specific animal models.

Cancer

Cancer develops when cells are rendered incapable of dying because of one or more mutations in the
pathways of apoptosis, the natural process by which cells die. Senesco has established that its proprietary
gene, Factor 5A, regulates apoptosis, and that increasing the death-inducing form of Factor 3A kills

cancer cells with a high degree of efficiency. Moreover, death-inducing Factor 5A has proven to be an
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effective killing agent for cell lines derived from a number of differene rypes of human cancer including

colon, lung, bladder, cervical and nasal pharyngeal cancer as well as melanoma and multiple myeloma.

Based on these data, Senesco has identified a form of cancer which it plans to target for a Phase I
clinical trial. Much of this year has been spent refining nano delivery systems to optimize delivery of
the Factor 5A gene. This enails extensive testing both with cells and in animals. Once optimization
of delivery has been achieved, steps leading to a potential Phase I clinical trial will be initiated. Thus,
going forward, the Company’s immediate focus will be on completion of animal studies, toxicology
studies and acquiring pharmaceutical grade materials. Senesco has engaged a Clinical Research

Organization (CRO) to assist with preparation for a potential clinical trial.

Inflammatory Diseases

Inflammarory diseases arise from an unregulated production of a group of immune system proteins
called pro-inflammatory cytokines that leads to inflammation and premature apoptosis (cell death).
Senesco has demonstrated using both cell lines and animal models that its proprietary siRNA inhibitor
of Factor 5A is able to prevent up-regulation of pro-inflammatory cytokines, which are the underlying

causes of inflammatory disease.

One of the areas the Company is focusing its siRNA inhibition of Factor 5A technology on is pancreatic
beta islet cell transplantation. By down - regulating Factor 5A, beta islet cells are protected from cell
death during the processing thar precedes transplantation. This could lead 1o enhancement of bera islet
cell transplantation as a means of combating diabetes. To date, Senesco has conducted a number of
studies with mice which show that treacment with Factor 5A siRNA not only protects beta islet cells
from premature apoptosis during their isolation, but also preserves their functionality upon exposure to
the pro-inflammatory cytokines that cause transplant rejection. The Company plans to extend these

preclinical studies to human beta isler cells.

Another focus with respect to inflammation is diabetic retinopathy, an inflammatory disease of the eye
that accompanies diabetes. Studies conducted with diabetic rats have shown thar treatment with
Senesco’s proprietary Factor S5A siRNA reduced ocular levels of TNFa, IFNg, and NO, key causative

agents of retinopathy. These are promising results, and the studies are being continued.

HIV

Senesco has previously reported that its Factor 5A technology has potential application as a therapy
for HIV. Work on this application is continuing. In particular, additional studies incorporating
refinements to the technology ensuing from the Company’s increased understanding of the putative

switching funcrion of elF5A are planned.
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Agriculture

Senesco's technology has been shown to have broad application as a means of enhancing crop traits.
The Company has entered into licensing or joint venture agreements with commercial partners for
most of the major crops including banana, lettuce, melons, trees, alfalfa, bedding plants, turf grass
and, within the last 12 months, canola, cotton and rice, licensed to Bayer, as well as corn and soy-

bean, licensed 1o Monsanto.

In most of these agreements, Senesco’s technology is being used to enhance growth and yield, for
which it appears to be ideally suited. For example, in studies with Arabidopsis, a close relative of the
oil-producing crop, Canola, implementation of Factor 5A growth technology has been shown to
enhance sced yield by up to 300%, and also to confer increased tolerance to salt and drought stress
as well as a capacity to grow optimally in low nutrient soil, thus reducing the need for fertilizer.
Implementation of the technology entails preparation of new germplasm, testing under greenhouse
conditions and, finally, extensive field trials, and is at different stages for the various crops that have
been licensed. For example, in the case of banana and trees, which were among the first crops to be
licensed, implementation has reached the stage of field crials. For trees, field trials showing strong
enhancement of growth atrributable to Senesco technology are in progress, and for banana successful
initial field crials showing strong enhancement of fruir shelf life and enhanced rolerance to the fungal

disease, Black Sigatoka, are being replicated.

In summary, refinements to the Factor 5A technology introduced during the past year have enhanced
its efficacy in both human health and agricultural applications. We have made substantial progress in
acquiring data with disease-specific animal models, and there has been significant uprake of the tech-
nology in the agricultural sector. In the coming months, the Company will focus its efforts towards a
Phase [ clinical trial for a targeted cancer and will continue its strategy of concentrating research and

development activity on selected commercialization opportunities.

Regards,

_ L N sem %{Agmﬁw—

John Thompson Richard Dondere
Executive Vice-President & CSO Vice-President, R&D

n
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United States Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A
{Amendment No. 1}
ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007
Commission File No. 001-31326

Senesco Technologies, Inc.

{(Exacr name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
{State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)
84-1368850
(I.R.S. Emplayer ldentificarion No.)

303 George Street, Suite 420, New Brunswick, New Jersey
(Addvress of Principal Executive Offtces)
08901
(Zip Code)

(732} 296-8400
{Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

None
(Former name, former addvess and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share.
Name of ¢ach exchange on which registered
Ametican Stock Exchange

Securities registered under Section 12(g} of the Act:

None.

ANNUAL REPORT 12




Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

U yes no

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

 yes no

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant

was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

yes O no

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements

incorporated by reference in Part I1T of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated

filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer (] Accelerated filer (] Non-accelerated filer lv]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
] ves no

As of September 15, 2007, the aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates of
the registrant was $11,337,784 based on the closing sales price as reported on the American Scock Exchange on
that date.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of:
September 15, 2007:

Class Number of Shares
Commeon Stock, $0.01 par value 17,473,694

The following documents are incorporated by reference inte the Annual Report on Form 10-K:

None.
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Explanatory Note

We are filing this Amended and Restated Annual Report on Form 10-K of Senesco Technologies, Inc. (the “Form
10-K”) to include the information required by Part IIT of the Form 10-K as we no longer anticipare filing our
proxy statement for the 2007 annual meeting, within 120 days of June 30, 2007. With the exception of the
inclusion of information required by Part II1, no information contained in this Form 10-K has been changed.
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Part|
Item 1. Business.

Qur Business

The primary business of Senesco Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation incorporated in 1999, and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Senesco, Inc., a New Jersey corporation incorporated in 1998, collectively referred
‘us” or “our,” is to utilize our patented and patent-pending genes, primarily eucaryotic

” U

to as “Senesco,” “we,
translation initiation Factor SA, or Factor 5A, and deoxyhypusine synchase, or DHS, in human health
applications to:

* Develop novel approaches to tear inflammarory and apoproric related diseases in humans;
* Develop novel approaches to treat cancer, a group of diseases in which apoprosis does not occur
normally; and

Factor 5A, DHS and Lipase in agricultural applications, to enhance the quality and productivity of fruits,
flowers, and vegerables and agronomic crops through the control of cell death, referred to as senescence, and
growth in plants.

Human Health Applications

We believe that our gene technology could have broad applicability in the human health field, by cicher inhib-
iting or accelerating apoptosis. Inhibiting apoptosis may be useful in preventing or treating a wide range of
inflammarory and ischemic diseases attributed to premarure apoprosis. Accelerating apoptosis may be useful
in treating certain forms of cancer. We have commenced preclinical in-vivo and in-vitro research to determine
the ability of Facror 3A to regulate key execution genes, pro-inflammatory cytokines, receptors, and transcription

factors, which are implicated in numerous apoptotic diseases.

Cerrain human health results to darte include:

s Increasing median survival by approximately 250% in a tumor model of mice injected with
melanoma cancer cells;

* Inducing apoptosis in both human cancer cell lines derived from tumors and in lung tumors
In mice;

¢ Inducing apoptosis of cancer cells in 2 human multiple myeloma cell line;

* Measuring VEGF reduction in mouse lung tumors as a result of treatment with our genes;

* Reducing the amounts of p24 and 1L-8 by approximately 50 percent in an HIV-1 infected
human cell line;

* Increasing the survival, while maintaining functionality, of mouse pancreatic islet cells isolated
for transplantation; preliminary animal studies have shown that siRNA to Factor 5A adminis-
tered prior to harvesting beta islet cells from a mouse, has a significant impact not only on the
survival of the bera isler cells, but also on the retention of the cells functionality when compared
to the untreated beta isler cells. Additional studies have also shown that the treated bera isler
cells survive a pro-inflammatory cytokine challenge, while maintaining their functionality with
respect to insulin levels.

» Confirmed protection during pro-inflammatory cytokine challenge.

* Demonstrating that the efficacy of our technology is comparable to that of existing approved
anti-inflammatory prescription drugs in reducing certain inflammatory cytokines in mice;

* Increasing the survival rate of mice in a lethal challenge sepsis model. Additionally, a broad

spectrum of systemic pro-inflammatory cytokines were down-regulated;
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Inhibiting Apoptosis

We believe that down-regulation of our proprietary Factor 5A gene may have potential application as a means
for controlling a broad range of diseases thar are artribucable to premarure apoprosis, ischemia, or inflaimma-
tion. Apoprotic diseases include glaucoma, heart disease, and certain inflammartory diseases such as Crohn's
disease, sepsis and rheumatoid arthritis, among others. We have commenced preclinical research on a variety
of these diseases. Using small inhibitory RNAs, or siRNAs, against the apoptosis isoform of Factor 5A to
inhibit its expression, we have reduced pro-inflammatory cytokine formation and formation of receptors for
liposolysaccharide, or LPS, interferon gamma and TNF-alpha. We have also derermined that inhibiting the
apoptosis isoform of Factor SA down-regulates MAPK, NFkB and JAK] and decreases the pro-inflammarory
cytokines formed through these pathways. Additionally, we have shown in a mouse study that our siRNA is
comparable to a steroid and to a prescription anti-TNF drug in its ability to reduce cytokine response to LPS.
In-vivo mouse studies have shown that the siRNA against Factor 5A (i) protects thymocyte cells from apop-
tosis and decreases formation of myeloperoxidase, or MPO, TNE MIP-1alpha, and IL-1 in the lungs of mice
challenged with LPS; and (ii} increases the survival rate in which sepsis was induced by a lethal injection of
LPS and reduced blood serum levels of inflaimmatory proteins, such as [L-1, IL-2, IL-6, IL-12, TNFa, IFNg,
and MIP-1alpha, while not effecting 1L-10, an anti-inflammatory cytokine. The siRINAs against Factor 5A are
currently being tested in several preclinical in-vive inflammarory disease models. Other experiments utilizing
stRNA to Factor 3A include inhibition of cell death, or apoprosis, during the processing of mouse pancreatic
beta islet cells for transplancation, and the inhibition of viral replication in a2 human cell line infected with

HIV-1.

Proteins required for cell death include p53, interleukins and other cywokines, caspases, and TNF-a.
Expression of these cell death proteins is required for the execution of apoptosis. We have found that down-
regulating Factor 5A by treatment with siRNA, inhibits the expression of p33, a major cell death transeriprion
factor that in turn controls the formation of a suite of other cell death proteins. In addition, down-regulation

of Factor 5A up-regulates Bel-2, a major suppressor of apoptosis.

Accelerating Apoptosis

In preclinical studies, we have also established that up-regulation of Factor 5A isoform induces death in cancer
cells through both the p53 (intrinsic) and cell death receptor (extrinsic) apoptotic pathways. Tumors arise
when cells that have been targeted by the immune system to undergo apoprosis are unable to do so because

of an inability to activate the apoprotic pathways. Just as the Factor 5A gene appears to facilitate expression of
the entire suite of genes required for programmed cell death in plants, the Factor 5A gene appears to regulate
expression of a suite of genes required for programmed cell death in human cells. Because the Factor 5A gene
appears to function at the initiation point of the apoprotic pathways, both intrinsic and extrinsic, we believe
that our gene technology has potendal application as a means of combating a broad range of cancers. Through
in-vitro studies, we have found chat up-regulating Facror 3A results in: the up-regulation of pS3, an imporcant
tumor suppressor gene that promotes apoptosis in cells with damaged DNA; inflammatory cytokine pro-
ducrion; increased cell death recepror formation; and caspase activity. These features, coupled with a simulrane-
ous down-regulation Bel-2, a suppressor of apoptosis, result in apoptosis of cancer cells. In addition, in-vitro
studies have shown that up-regulation of Factor 5A also down-regulates VEGE a growth factor which allows

tumors to develop additional vascularization needed for growth beyond a small mass of cells.

ANNUAL REFORT 16




Human Health Target Markets

We believe that our gene technology could have broad applicability in the human health field, by either inhib-
iting or accelerating apoptosis. Inhibiting apoptosis may be useful in preventing or treating a wide range of
inflammartory and ischemic diseases attributed to premarure apoptosis, including diabetes, diabetic retinopathy
and lung inflammation, among others. Accelerating apoptosis may be useful in treating certain forms of

cancer because the body’s immune system is nort able to force cancerous cells to undergo apoptosis.

Our preclinical research has yielded data that we have presented to various biopharmaceutical companies that
may be prospective licensees for the development and marketing of potential applications of our technology.
Additionally, we plan on using the proceeds of our recent financing to advance a certain cancer target with
the goal of initiating a Phase 1 clinical trial, and may select additional human health indications, to bring into
clinical trials on our own. Suceessful future operations will depend on our ability to transform our research

and development activities into a commercially feasible technology.

Human Health Research Program

Qur human health research program, which has consisted of pre-clinical in-vicro and in-vivo experiments
designed to assess the role and method of action of the Factor 3A genes in human diseases, is performed by
approximately 16 thitd party researchers, at our direction, at the University of Waterloo, Mayo Clinic, the
University of Colorado, the University of Virginia, and the University of Florida.

Our research and development expenses incurred on human health applications were approximately 42%
and 48% of our total research and development expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 20006,
respectively. Since inception, the proportion of research and development expenses on human health applica-
tions has increased, as compared to agricultural applications. This change is primarily due to the fact chat
our research focus on human health has increased and some of our research costs for plant applications have

shifted to our research partners.
Our planned future pre-clinical research and development initiatives for human health include:

* Pancreatic Islets isolated for transplantation. Additional in-vitro experiments will involve moving
from mouse beta islet cells to human beta islet cells. The human cells will be tested for survival and
functionality, insulin activity post processing and cytokine challenge.

* HIV-1. We will continue in-vitro studies utilizing different siRNA delivery systems in order to
increase the transfection efficiency of the siRNA to Factor 5A to determine further decreases in
HIV replication and may seck animal models to test.

* Multiple Myeloma. The next set of multiple myeloma experiments will involve a mouse model
system and may include optimizing the delivery of Factor 5A. In-vitro experiments will continue
with myeloma cells in order to maximize the wansfection efficiency while concurrently elucidaring
the most effective post-transtation form of Facror 5A to employ.

* Delivery Systems. We are evaluating a number of delivery systems in an effort to maximize the
efficacy of Factor 5A.

* Lung Inflammation. Optimization of the delivery and dose of the siRNA to Factor 5A to the lungs is
the direction of our planned future experiments. Mouse model systerns may be used to evaluate the
siRINA to Factor 5A’ ability to reduce morbidity and morality in lung inflammarion, caused by the

up-regulation of pro-inflammarory cytokines induced by pathogens and other stresses to the lungs.
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* Diabetic Retinopathy. Based upon the review of data from an ongoing siRINA against Factor 5A
diabetic rar experiment, we may be conducting a second round of experiments, which will employ
siRNA against Factor 5A in order to decrease pro-inflammarory cytokine levels.

o Other. We will continue ta look at other disease states in order to determine the role of Factor 5A.

Additionally, we are planning to advance a certain cancer target toward a Phase [ clinical trial. In connection
with the potential clinical wrial, we will be working towards engaging a clinical research organization to assist
us through the process, completing a pre-clinical animal model of the disease and evaluating potential delivery
systems for our technology in the animal model, contracting for the supply of pharmaceutical grade marerials
to be used in roxicology and human studies, and ultimately filing an investigational new drug application with
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for their review and consideration in order to initiate a clinical trial.

We estimate that it will take approximately two years to complete this program.

In order to pursue the above research initiatives, as well as other research initiacives thac may arise, we have
recently completed private placements of $10 million of convertible debentures. The proceeds from the private
placements will be received upon the occurrence of the following corporate and development milestones:

* $1.5 million was received on September 21, 2007, less financing costs;

* $1.5 million upon our filing of a registration statement;

* $2.0 million upon the later of stockholder approval of the private placement or the filing of the
registration statement;

* $2.0 million upon the later of stockholder approval of the privare placement or the effectiveness of
the registration statement;

* $1.5 million on the date that we enter into a supply agreement with a third parry manufacturer for
sufficient quantity and quality of nano-particle for encapsulation of Factor 3A gene to be used in
toxicology and proof of concept human studies;

+ $1.5 million on the date that we enter into a supply agreement with a third party manufacturer
to provide sufficient quantity and quality of Factor 3A DNA to carry our toxicology and proof of

concept human studies under a FDA accepted investigational new drug application.

However, it may be necessary for us to raise a significant amount of additional working capital in the future
to continue to pursue some of the above and new initiatives. If we are unable to raise the necessary funds or
meet the corporate and scientific milestones provided for in the convertible debentures, we may be required to
significantly curtail the future development of some of our research initiatives and we will be unable to pursue

other possible research initiatives.

We may further expand our research and development program beyond the initiatives listed above to include

other research centers.

Human Heaith Competition

Our competitors in human health that are presently arttempring o distribute their technology have generaily
utilized one of the following distribution channels:

* licensing technology to major marketing and distribution parners;

* entering into strategic alliances; or

* developing in-house production and marketing capabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 18




In addition, some competitors are owned by established distribution companies, which alteviates the need for

strategic alliances, while others are attempting to create their own distribution and markering channels.

There are many large and development stage companies working in the field of apoptosis research including:
Amgen; Centocor; Genzyme; OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; Novartis; Introgen Therapeutics, Inc.; Genra, Inc;

and Vertex Pharmaceuticals, Inc., among others.

Agricultural Applications

Cur research focuses on the discovery and development of certain gene technologies, which are designed 1o
confer positive traits on fruits, flowers, vegetables, forestry species and agronomic crops. To date, we have
isolared and characterized the senescence-induced Lipase gene, DHS, and Factor 5A in certain species of
plants. Our goal is to modulate the expression of these genes in order to achieve such traits as extended shelf
life, increased biomass, increased yield and increased resistance to environmental stress and disease, thereby

demonstrating proof of concepr in each category of crop.

Cerrtain agricultural results ro date include:
* Longer shelf life of perishable produce;
» Increased biomass and seed yield;
* Greater tolerance ro environmental stresses, such as drought and soil salinity;
* Greater tolerance to certain fungal and bacterial pathogens;
* More efficient use of fertilizer; and

* Advancement of field trials in banana, lettuce, trees, and bedding plants.

The technology presendy urilized by the industry for increasing the shelf life in certain flowers, fruits and
vegetables relies primarily on reducing ethylene biosynthesis, and therefore only has application to the limited
number of crops that are ethylene-sensitive. Because Factor 3A, DHS and lipase are already presenc in all plant
cells, our technology may be incorporared into crops by using either conventional breeding methods {non-

genetically modified) or biotechnology gene suppression techniques.

We have licensed this technology o various strategic partners and have entered into a joint venture, and we
intend to conrinue to license this technology to additional strategic partners and/or enter into additional joine
ventures. Together with our commercial partners, we are currently working with lettuce, turfgrass, canola,
corn, soybean, cotton, banana, alfalfa, rice and certain species of trees and bedding plants, and we have
obuained proof of concept for enhanced post harvest shelf life, seed yield, biomass, and resistance to disease in
several of these plants. We have ongeing field trials of cerrain trees and bananas with our respective partners. The
first and second round of banana field trials have shown that our technology extends the shelf life of banana
fruit by 100%. In addition to the post harvest shelf life benefits, an additional field trial generated encourag-
ing disease tolerance data specific to Black Sigatoka (Black Leaf Streak Disease), for banana plants. Additional
field trials for banana plants are ongoing for Black Sigatoka. Commercialization by our partners may require
a combination of traits in a crop, such as both shplflife and disease resistance, or other traits. Our near-term
research and development initiatives include modulating the expression of DHS and Factor 5A genes in these

plants and then propagation and phenotype testing of such plants.
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Our ongoing research and development inidatives for agriculture include assisting our license and joint venture
partners to:
*» Further develop and implement the DHS and Factor 5A gene technology in lettuce, melon,
banana, canola, cotton, turfgrass, bedding plants, rice, alfalfa, corn, soybean and trees; and
* Test the resultant crops for new beneficial traits such as increased yield, increased tolerance o

environmental stress, disease resistance and more efficient use of fertilizer.

Agricultural Target Markets

In order to address the complexities associated with marketing and distribution in the worldwide marker, we
have adopred a multi-faceted commercialization strategy, in which we have entered into and plan vo enter into
licensing agreements or other strategic relationships with a variety of companies or other entities on a crop-by-

crop basis.

Because the agricultural marker is dominated by privately held companies or subsidiarics of foreign owned
compantes, market size and marker share dara for the crops under our license and development agreements is
not readily available. Additionally, because we have entered into confidentality agreements with our license
and development partners, we are unable to report the specific financial terms of the agreements as well as any

market size and marker share darta that our partners may have disclosed to us regarding their companies.

Agricultural Development and License Agreements

In Novemnber 2001, we entered into 2 worldwide exclusive development and license agreement with the Harris
Moran Seed Company, referred o herein as the Harris Moran License, to commercialize our technology in
lerruce and certain melons for an indefinite term, unless terminated by either party pursuant to the terms of
the agreement. To date, the development steps performed by Harris Moran and us have all been completed in
accordance with the protocol set forth in the Harris Moran License. There has been exvensive characterization
of our genes in lettuce in a laboratory secting. The initial lab work has produced genetically modified seed
under greenhouse containment, which has been followed by substantial field trials for evaluation. These field
trials represent a vital step in the process necessary to develop a commercial product. Together with Harris
Moran, we will evaluare all resules to date to determine the direction of furcher research necessary for our work
in lettuce and melon. Under the Harris Moran License, we have received an upitont payment and we may

receive benchmark payments upon achievement of certain research and marketing milestones.

In June 2002, we entered into a three-year worldwide exclusive development and oprion agreement with
ArborGen, LLC to develop our technology in certain species of trees. In fune 2006, ArborGen exercised their
optien to license our technology and in December 2006, converted the development and option agreement
into a license agreement, referred to herein as the ArborGen Agreement. To date, the research being conducted
by ArborGen has proceeded according to schedule. ArborGen has seen promising positive growth responses in
greenhouse-grown seedlings. These initial greenhouse data led w the initiation of field wials by ArborGen in
the second half of calendar 2004. Ar the end of the 2005 growing season, certain trees which were enhanced
by our technology had approximately double the increase in volume relative to control trees. Further field rials

are ongoing to support these dara and to analyze the growth rates of trees which incorporate our technology.
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Under the ArborGen Agreement, we have received an upfront payment and benchmark payments and we may
receive additional benchmark payments upon achievement of certain development milestones and royalties

upon commercialization.

In September 2002, we entered into an exclusive development and license agreement with Cal/West Seeds,
referred to herein as che Cal/West License, to commercialize our technology in certain varieties of alfalfa. The
Cal/West License will continue until the expiration of the patents set forth in the agreement, unless terminated
earlier by either party pursuant to the terms of the agreement. The Cal/West License also grants Cal/West an
exclusive option to develop our technology in various other forage crops. The Cal/West development effort
successfully incorporated our technology into their alfalfa seed as of July 2004, Seed transformation and green-
house trait analysis is ongoing. Under the Cal/West License, we have received an upfront payment and we
may receive benchmark payments as cerrain development milestones are achieved and a royalty upoen commer-

cialization based upon the volume of alfalfa seed sold that contains our technology.

In March 2004, we entered into an exclusive development and license agreement with The Scotts Company,
referred to herein as the Scotts Agreement, to commercialize our technology in turfgrass and cerrain species
of bedding plants. Scotts is working on incorporating our technology o enhance a variety of traits in these
plants, including environmenral stress resistance, disease resistance and enhanced bloom properties. We are
collaborating with Scotts in the areas of ornamental bedding plants and turfgrass. A large-scale greenhouse
evaluation of bedding plants is being conducred. This greenhouse evaluation has shown thar the plants with
our technology significantly outperform control plants under adverse conditions. Transformation and initial
tissue culture screening of events have been undertaken in turfgrass. In tissue culture, turfgrass containing our
technology has grown more successfully than control turfgrass withour our technology. Greenhouse testing of
the grass containing our technology is the next planned development step. Under the Scotts Agreement, we
have received an upfront payment and benchmark payments. In January 2006, the development and license
agreement with The Scotts Company was amended. Due to a change in the corporate financial policy at Scorts,
Scours requested to defer certain milestone payments, which were to be made on a calendar basis. We agreed
and these payments have now been deferred and incorporated in the amount to be paid to us upon com-
mercialization. Additionally, the commercialization fee has been increased. All other aspects of the agreement
remain unchanged, and the project continues to move forward without interruption. We may also receive royalties

upon commercialization from the net sales of turfgrass seed and bedding plants containing our technology.

In October 2005, we entered into a license agreement with Poet (formerly the Broin Companies) to license
out proptietary gene technology to Poet to improve aspects of Broin’s ethanol production capabilities. We are
currently working on incorporating our technology into those aspects of Poet’s ethanol production. We will
receive an annual payment for each Poet facility that incorporates our technology. If Poet incorporates our

technology into each of its facilities, we would receive an annual payment in excess of $1,000,000.

On November 8, 2006, we entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience GmbH for the develop-
ment and commercialization of Canola. Under the terms of the agreement, we received an upfront payment,
will receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and will receive

commercialization fees based upon specified benchmarks.

On July 17, 2007, we entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience AG for the development and
commercialization of Cotton, Under the terms of the agreement, we received an upfront payment, will receive
milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and additionally, upon com-

mercialization, and a royalty on net sales.
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On August 6, 2007, we entered into a license agreement with Monsanto for the development and commer-
cialization of Corn and Soy. Under the terms of the agreement, we received an upfront payment, will receive
milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and additionally, upon com-

mercialization, and a royalty on net sales.

On September 11, 2007, we entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience AG for the development
and commercialization of Rice. Under the terms of the agreement, we received an upfronc payment, will
receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and additionally, upon

commercialization, and a royalty on ner sales.

Joint Venture

On May 14, 1999, we entered into a joint venture agreement with Rahan Meristem Ltd., or Rahan Meristem,
an Israeli company engaged in the worldwide export marketing of banana germplasm, referred to herein as
the Rahan Joint Venture. In general, bananas are grown either for local demestic consumption or grown for
export. According to the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, there were 12 million
metric tons of bananas exported in 2002. The level of production equares to the fruir of approximately 480
million banana plants. A percentage of these plants are replaced each year with new banana seedlings. Rahan

Meristem accounts for approximately 10% of the worldwide export of enhanced banana seedlings.

We have contributed, by way of a limited, exclusive, worldwide license to the Rahan Joint Venture, access to
our technology, discoveries, inventions and know-how, whether patentable or otherwise, pertzining to plant
genes and their cognate expressed proteins that are induced during senescence for the purpose of developing,
on a joint basis, generically enhanced banana plants which will resulr in a banana thac has a longer shelf life.
Rahan Meristem has contributed its technology, inventions and know-how with respect to banana plants.

Rahan Meristem and Senesco equally own the Rahan Joint Venture and have equally shared the expense of

field crials.

The Rahan Joint Venture applied for and received a conditional granc thar rotals approximacely $340,000,
which constituted 50% of the Rahan Joint Venture's research and development budget over the five-year period,
ending on May 31, 2005, from the Israel - U.S. Binational Research and Development Foundation, or BIRD
Foundation, referred 1o herein as the BIRD Grant. Such grant, along with certain royalty payments, shall only
be repaid to the BIRD Foundation upon the commercial success of the Rahan Joint Venture’s technology. The
commercial success is measured based upon cerrain benchmarks and/or milestones achieved by the Rahan Joint

Venture. The Rahan Joinc Venture reports these benchmarks periodically to the BIRD Foundation.

All aspects of the Rahan Joint Venture’s research and development initiative are proceeding on time. Both the
DHS and lipase genes have been identified and isolated in banana, and the Rahan Joint Venture is currently
in the process of silencing these genes. Two Isracli field trials indicated that Senesco’s proprietary technology
extends the shelf life of the banana fruit up to 100%, while allowing the banana fruit to ripen normally. Later
field trials have shown promising disease tolerance results and we are currently performing additional field trials
to further assess disease tolerance. We believe that these field trials have yielded data sufficient to inidate contact
with potential marketing partners. However, as the banana modifted with our technology may be considered a

GMO, shelf life extension may have to be combined with disease tolerance to gain acceptance by the growers.
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Agricultural Research Program

Our agricultural research and development is performed by three researchers, at our direction, ar the
University of Warerloo, where the technology was developed. Additional agricultural research and development
is performed by our partners in connection with the Harris Moran License, the Scotts Agreement, the
ArborGen License, the Cal/West License, the Bayer Licenses, the Monsanto License and through the
Rahan Joint Venture.

The discoverer of our technology, John E. Thompson, Ph.D., is the Associate Vice President, Research
and former Dean of Science at the University of Waterloo in Ontario, Canada, and is our Executive Vice
President and Chief Scientific Officer. Dr. Thompson is also one of our directors and owns 3.3% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock, $0.01 par value, as of June 30, 2007. On Seprember 1, 1998,
we entered into, and subsequently have extended through August 31, 2008, a research and development
agreement with the University of Waterloo and Dr. Thompson as the principal inventor. The Research and
Development Agreement provides that the University of Waterloo will perform research and developmenrt under
our direction, and we will pay for the cost of this work and make certain payments to the University of
Waterloo. In return for payments made under the Research and Development Agreement, we have all

rights to the intellectual property derived from the research.

Agricultural Competition

Qur competitors in both human health and agriculture thar are presently avtempting to distribute their
technology have generally utilized one of the following distribution channels:

* licensing technology to major marketing and distribution partners;

* entering into strategic alliances; or

» developing in-house production and marketing capabilities.

In addition, some competitors are owned by established distribution companies, which alleviates the need for

strategic alliances, while others are attempting to create their own distribution and marketing channels.

Our competirors in the field of delaying plant senescence are companies that develop and produce transformed
plants with a variety of enhanced traits. Such companies include: Icora (formerly Paradigm Generics); Mendel
Biotechnology; Renessen LLC; Exelixis Plant Sciences, Inc.; Syngenta International AG: and Eden Bioscience,

among others.

Agricultural Marketing Program

We presently license our technology to agricultural companies capable of incorporating our rechnelogy into
crops grown for commercial agriculture. We anticipate revenues from these relationships in the form of
licensing fees and royalties from our partners, usage fees in the case of the agreement with Poet, or sharing
gross profits in the case of the joint venture with Rahan Meristem. In addition, we anticipate payments from
our partners upon our achievement of certain research and development benchmarks. This commercializa-
tion strategy allows us to generate revenues at various stages of product development, while ensuring that

our technology is incorporated into a wide variety of crops. Qur optimal partners combine the technological
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expertise to tncorporate our technology into their producr line along with the ability w successfully marker the
enhanced final preduct, thereby eliminating the need for us to develop and maintain a sales force. Through
June 30, 2007, we have entered into six license agreements and one joint venture with established agricultural
biotechnology companies. Subsequent ro June 30, 2007, we have entered into three additional license agreements

covering four crops.

Generally, projects with our license and joint venture partners begin by transforming seed or germplasm to
incorporate our technology. Those seeds or germplasm are then grown in our partners’ greenhouses. After
successful greenhouse trials, our partners will transfer the plants to the field for field trials, After completion
of successful field trials, our partners may have to apply for and receive regulatory approval prior to initiation

of any commercialization activiries.

Generally, the approximarte time to complete each development step is as follows:

Seed Transformation approximately 1 1o 2 vears
Greenhouse approximately 1 to 2 years
Field Trials approximately 2 to 5 years

The acrual amount of time spent on each development phase depends on the crop, its growth cycle and the
success of the transformation achieving the desired results. As such, the amount of time for each phase of

development could vary, or the time frames may change.

The development of our technology with Poet is different than our other licenses in thar we are modifying certain
production inputs for ethanol. Thart process involves modifying the inpurs, testing such inputs in Poet’s production

process and if successful, implementing such inputs in Poet’s production process on a plant by plant basis.

The status of each of our projects with our parrners is as follows:

Project Partner Status

Banana Rahan Meristem

- Shelf Life Field crials

- Disease Resistance Field trials

Lettuce Harris Moran Seed rransformation
Melon Harris Moran Seed rransformation
Trees ArborGen

- Growth Field crials

Alfaifa Cal/West Greenhouse

Corn Monsanto Just initiated
Cotton Bayer Just initiated
Canola Bayer Seed rransformation
Rice Bayer Just initiated
Soybean Monsanto - Just initiated
Turfgrass The Scotts Company Greenhouse
Bedding Plants The Scots Company Greenhouse
Ethanol Poet Medify inputs

Commercialization by our partners may require a combination of traits in a crop, such as both shelf life and

disease resistance, or other traits.
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Based upon our commercialization strategy, we anticipate that there may be a significant period of time before
plants enhanced using our technology reach consumers. Thus, we have not begun to actively marker our tech-
nology directly to consumers, but racher, we have sought to establish ourselves within the industry through

presentations at industry conferences, our websire and direct communication with prospective licensees.

Consistent wich our commercialization strategy, we intend to attract other companies interested in strategic
partnerships or licensing our technology, which may result in additional license fees, revenues from contract
research and other related revenues. Successful furure operations will depend on our ability to transform our

research and development activicies into a commercially feasible technology.

Intellectual Property

We have fifteen issued patents from the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or PTO, and twelve
issued patents from foreign countries as follows: seven from New Zealand, two from Australia, one from

Mexico and one from Hong Kong.

In addition to our twenty-seven patents, we have a wide variety of patent applications, including divisional
applications and continuations-in-part, in process with the PTO and internationally. We intend to continue

our strategy of enhancing these new patent applications through the addition of dara as it is collected.

Government Regulation

A present, the U.S. federal government regulation of biotechnology is divided among three agencies: (i) the U.S.
Department of Agriculture regulates the import, field-testing and interstate movement of specific types of generic
engineering that may be used in the creation of transformed plants; {ii) the Environmental Protection Agency
regulates activiry related to the invention of plant pesticides and herbicides, which may include certain kinds of
transformed plants; and (iii} the Food and Drug Administration regulates foods derived from new plant varieties.
The FDA requires that transformed plants meet the same standards for safery thar are required for alt other plants
and foods in general. Except in the case of additives that significantly alter a food’s structure, the FDA does not
require any additional standards or specific approval for genetically engineered foods but expects transformed

plant developers to consult the FDA before introducing a new food into the markerplace.

In addition, our ongoing preclinical rescarch with cell lines and lab animal models of human disease is not
currently subject to the FDA requirements that govern clinical trials.. However, use of our technology, if developed
for human health applications, will also be subject to FDA regulation. Generally, the FDDA must approve any
drug or biologic product before it can be marketed in the United States. In addition, prior to being sold
outside of the U.S., any products resulring from the application of our human health technology must be
approved by the regulatory agencies of foreign governments. Prior to filing a new drug application or biologics
license application with the FDA, we would have to perform extensive clinical trials, and prior to beginning
any clinical trial, we need to perform extensive preclinical testing which could take several years and may

require substantial expenditures.

We believe thar our current activities, which to date have been confined to research and development efforts,
do not require licensing or approval by any governmental regulatory agency. However, we, or our licensees,
may be required to obtain such licensing or approval from governmental regulatory agencies prior to the com-

mercialization of our genetically transformed plants and the application of our human health technology.
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Employees

In addition to the 19 scientists performing funded research for us at the University of Warterloo, Mayo Clinic,
the University of Virginia, the University of Florida and the University of Colorado, we have five employees
and one consultant, four of whom are executive officers and are involved in our management. We do not

anticipate hiting any additional employees over the next twelve months.

The officers are assisted by a Scientific Advisory Board that consists of prominent experts in the fields of plant
and human cell biology. Alan Bennertr, Ph.D., who serves as the Chairman of the Scientific Advisory Board, is
the Associare Vice Chancellor of the Office of Technology Transfer at the University of California. His research
interests include the molecular biology of tomato fruit development and ripening, the molecular basis of membrane
transport, and cell wall disassembly. Chatles A. Dinarello, M.D., who serves as a member of the Scientific
Advisory Board, is a Professor of Medicine at the University of Colorado School of Medicine, a member of the
U.S. National Academy of Sciences and the author of over 500 published research articles. In addition to his
active academic research career, Dr. Dinarello has held advisory positions with two branches of the National
Institutes of Health and positions on the Board of Governors of both the Weizmann Institute and Ben Gurion
Universiry. James E. Mier, M.D., is an Associate Professor of Medicine at Beth Istael Deaconess Medical
Center, a teaching hospital of Harvard Medical School. He is also a practicing physician in the Division of
Hemarology-Oncology at Beth Israel. Dr. Mier's research is funded by the NIH and he is a member of numerous

professional societies.

Furthermore, pursuant to the Research and Development Agreements, a substantial amount of our research
and development activities are conducted at the University of Waterloo under the supervision of Dr. Thompson,
our Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer. We utilize the University's research staff including

graduate and post-graduate rescarchers.

We have also undertaken preclinical apoptosis research at the University of Colorado under the supervision of
Dr. Dinarello. In addition to the research being conducted at the University of Colorado, we have also under-
taken preclinical apoptosis research at Mayo Clinic, the University of Florida and the University of Virginia.
This research is performed pursuant to specific project proposals that have agreed-upon research outlines,
timelines and budgets. We may also contract research to additional university laboratories or to other

companies in order to advance the development of our technology.

Safe Harbor Statement

The statements contained in this amended and restated Annual Report on Form 10-K/A thar are not historical
facts are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking state-
ments may be identified by, among other things, the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,”

" o«

“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” or “anticipates” or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or
comparable terminology, or by discussions of strategy that invelve risks and uncertainties. In particulas, our
statemnents regarding the anticipated growth in the markets for our technologies, the continued advancement
of our research, the approval of our patent applications, the possibility of governmental approval in order
to sell or offer for sale to the general public a genetically engineered plant or plant product, the successful
implementation of our commercialization strategy, including the success of the Harris Moran License, the

ArborGen Agreement, the Cal/West License, The Scotts Agreement, the Poet License, the Bayer Licenses,
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the Monsanto License, and the Research and Development Agreements, the successful implementation of the
Rahan Joint Venture, statements relating to our patent applications, the anticipated longer term growth of our
business, the results of our preclinical studies, our ability to meer our funding milestones under our financing
transaction, our ability to comply with the continued listing standards of the AMEX, and the timing of the
projects and trends in future operating performance are examples of such forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements include risks and uncertainties, including, bur not limited to, the timing of rev-
enues due to the variability in size, scope and duration of research projects, regulatory delays, research study
results which lead to cancellations of research projects, and other factors, including general economic conditions
and regulatory developments, not within our control. The factors discussed herein and expressed from time to
time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission could cause actual results and developments
to be materially different from those expressed in or implied by such scatements. The forward-looking statements
are made only as of the date of this filing, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update such forward-

looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.

Factors That May Affect Our Business, Future Operating Results
and Financial Condition

The more prominent risks and uncertainties inherent in our business are described below. However, addirional
risks and uncertainties may also impair our business operations. If any of the following risks actualty occur,

our business, financial condition or results of operations may suffer.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors.

Risks Related to Qur Business

We have a limited operating history and have incurred substantial losses and expect future fosses.
We are a development stage biotechnology company with a limited operating history and limited assets and
capital. We have incurred losses each year since inception and have an accumulated deficit of $25,621,540 at
June 30, 2007. We have generated minimal revenues by licensing our technology for certain crops to com-
panies willing to share in our development costs. However, our technology may not be ready for widespread
commercialization for several years. We expect to continue to incur losses for the next several years because we
anticipate that our expenditures on research and development, commercialization and administrative activities will

significantly exceed our revenues during that period. We cannot predict when, if ever, we will become profitable.

Our independent auditors have expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue

as a going concern.

In their audit opinion issued in connection with our consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2007 and our related
consolidated stacements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended and for the
period ending June 30, 2007, our auditors have expressed substantial doubt abour our ability to continue as a going
concern given our recurring ner losses, negative cash flows from operations, planned spending levels and the limited
amount of funds on our balance sheet. We have prepared our financial statements on a going concern basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the sarisfaction of liabilities and commitmencs in the normal course of
business. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should we

be unable to continue in existence.
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We may need additional capital to fund our operations untif we are able to generate a profit.
Qur operations to date have required significant cash expenditures. Our furture capital requirements will
depend on the results of our research and development acrivities, preclinical studies and competitive and

technological advances.

We do not expect that our revenue and/or cash and investments on hand will cover our expenses during the
next twelve months. However, we have entered into definitive agreements to issue convertible debentures and
warrants for aggregate gross proceeds of $10,000,000, of which $1,500,000 have been issued on September
21, 2007. The balance of $8,500,000 convertible debentures will be issued as follows: $1,500.000 upon the
filing of a registration statement; $2,000,000 upon the later of the filing of a registration statement or receiv-
ing shareholder approval; $2,000,000 upon rthe later of receiving shareholder approval or the effectiveness
of the registration stacement, $1,500,000 on the date we enter into a supply agreement with a chird party
manufacturer for sufficient quantity and quality of nano-particle for encapsulation of Factor 5A gene to be
used in toxicology and proof of concept human studies under 2 United States Food and Drug Administration
accepted Investigational New Drug application; and $1,500,000 on the date we enter into a supply agreement
with 2 third party manufacturer to provide sufficient quantity and quality of Factor 5A DNA to carry out
woxicology and proof of concept human studies under a United States Food and Drug Administration accepred
Investigational New Drug application. However, we can not assure you that we will meet the funding milestones
or that our stockholders will approve this financing. In addition, this financing is secured by all of our assets.
If we defaulr under the convertible debentures, the investors may foreclose on our assets and our business. As
a result, we may need to obtain more funding in the future through collaborations or other arrangements with
research institutions and corporate partners or public and private offerings of our securities, including debt or
equity financing. We may not be able to obrain adequate funds for our operations from these sources when
needed or on acceptable terms. Future collaborations or similar arrangements may require us to license valuable
intellectual property to, or to share substantial economic benefits with, our collaborarors. If we raise additional
capital by issuing additional equity or securities convertible into equity, our stockholders may experience dilution

and our share price may decline. Any debt financing may result in restrictions on our spending.

If we are unable to raise additional funds, we will need o do one or more of the following:
» delay, scale-back or eliminate some or all of our research and product development programs;
* license third parties to develop and commercialize products or technologies that we would
otherwise seck to develop and commercialize ourselves;
* actempr to sell our company;
* cease operations; or

» declare bankruprcey.

We will continue to maintain an appropriate leve] of spending over the upcoming fiscal year, given the uncer-
tainties inherent in our business and our current liquidity position. We believe that at the projected rate of
spending and the additional $8,500,000 proceeds from the tssuance of the convertible debentures, we should
have sufficient cash and investments to maintain our present operations for the next 24 months. However,
if we do not receive the additienal $8,500,000 proceeds from the issuance of the converrible debentures, we

should have sufficient cash and investments to maintain our present operations for the next 6 months.

ANNUAL REPORT 28




We depend on a single principal technofogy and, if our technology is not commercially
successful, we will have no alternative source of revenue.

Qur primary business is the development and commercial exploitation of technology to identify, isolate, charac-
terize and silence genes which control the death of cells in humans and plants. Our future revenue and profit-
ability critically depend upon our ability to successfully develop apoptosis and senescence gene technology and
later license or marker such technology. We have conducted experiments on certain crops with favorable resules
and have conducted certain preliminary cell-line and animal experiments, which have provided us with data
upon which we have designed additional research programs. However, we cannot give any assurance thart our

technology will be commercially successful or economically viable for any crops or human health applications.

In addition, no assurance can be given that adverse consequences might not result from the use of our tech-
nology such as the development of negative effects on humans or plants or reduced benefits in terms of crop
yield or protection. Qur failure to obrain marker acceptance of our technology or to successfully commercialize

such technology or develop a commercially viable product would have a material adverse effect on our business.

We outsource all of our research and development activities and, if we are unsuccessful in
maintaining our alliances with these third parties, our research and development efforts may
be delayed or curtailed.

We rely on third parries to perform all of our research and development activities. Qur primary research and
development efforcs take place at the University of Waterloo in Ontario, Canada, where our technology was
discovered, the University of Colorado, Mayo Clinic, the University of Virginia, the University of Florida, and
with our commercial partners. Ar this time, we do not have the internal capabilities to perform our research
and development activities. Accordingly, the failure of third-party rescarch partners, such as the University of
Waterloo, to perform under agreements entered into with us, or our failure to renew important research agree-

ments with these third parties, may delay or curtail our research and development efforts.

We have significant future capital needs and may be unable to raise capital when needed,
which could force us to delay ar reduce our research and development efforts.
As of June 30, 2007, we had cash and highly-liquid investments valued ar $658,061 and working capital
of $259,303. Using our available reserves as of June 30, 2007 and the $1,500,000 gross proceeds from the
issuance of a convertible debenture on September 21, 2007, we believe that we can operare according to
our current business plan for the next six months. However, with the potential additional gross proceeds of
$8,500,000 from the issuance of additional convertible debentures, we believe that we can operate according
1o our current business plan for the next 24 months. To date, we have generated minimal revenues and antici-
pate that our operaring costs will exceed any revenues generated over the next several years. Therefore, we will
be required to raise additional capital in the future in order to operate according to our current business plan,
and this funding may not be available on favorable terms, if at all. If we are unable to raise additional funds,
we will need to do one or more of the following:

* delay, scale back or eliminate some or all of our research and development programs;

» license third parties to develop and commercialize our technology that we would otherwise

seck to develop and commercialize ourselves;
* seek strategic alliances or business combinations, or attempt to sell our company; or

* cease operations.
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In addition, in connection with any funding, if we need ro issue more equiry securities than our certificate of
incorporation currently authorizes, or more than 20% of the shares of our common stock outstanding, we may
need stockholder approval. If stockholder approval is not obtained or if adequate funds are nor available, we
may be required to curtail operations significantly or to obtain funds through arrangements with collaborative
partners or others that may require us 1o relinquish rights 1o certain of our technologies, product candidares,
products or potential markets. Investors may experience dilution in their investment from furure offerings of our
common stock, For example, if we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities, such an issuance would
reduce the percentage ownership of existing stockholders. In addition, assuming the exercise of all options and
warrants outstanding, as of June 30, 2007, we had 31,471,491 shares of common stock authorized but unissued,
which may be issued from time to time by our board of directors without stockholder approval. We also have
reserved for issuance the proper number of shares to be issued in connection with the convertible dentures issued
and to be issued prior to shareholder approval. The total number of shares thar may be issued under the financing
is subjecr to cerrin caps as more fully described elsewhere in the Form 10-K. Furthermore, we may need to issue
securities that have rights, preferences and privileges senior ro our common stock. Failure to obrain financing on

acceptable terms would have a material adverse effect on our liquidiey.

Since our inception, we have financed all of our operations through private equity financings. Our future
capital requirements depend on numerous factors, including:

* the scope of our research and development;

* our ability to attract business partners willing to share in our development costs;

* our ability 1o successfully commercialize our rechnology;

* competing technological and market developments;

* our ability to enter into collaborative arrangements for the development, regulatory approval

and commercialization of other producrs; and

* the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing patent claims and other incellectual
& P g g g£pP

property righs.

Our business depends upon our patents and proprietary rights and the enforcement of these
rights. Qur failure to obtain and maintain patent protection may increase competition and
reduce demand for our technology.
As a result of the substantial length of time and expense associated with developing products and bringing
them to the marketplace in the biotechnology and agricultural industries, obraining and maintaining patent
and rrade secret protection for technologies, products and processes is of vital importance. Qur success will
depend in parr on several factors, including, without limiration:

* our ability to obtain patent protection for our technaologies and processes;

* our ability to preserve our rrade secrets; and

* our ability to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of other parties both

in the United States and in foreign countries.

We have been issued fifteen patents by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, or PTO, and twelve patents
from foreign countries. We have also filed numerous patent applications for our echnology in the United
States and in several foreign countries, which technology is vital to our primary business, as well as several
Continuations in Part on these patent applications. Qur success depends in part upon the grant of patents

from our pending patent applications.
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Although we believe that our technology is unique and will not violate or infringe upon the proprietary righs
of any third party, we cannor assure you thar these claims will not be made or if made, could be successfully
defended against. [f we do not obtain and maintain patent protection, we may face increased competition in

the United States and internationally, which would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Since patent applications in the United States are maintained in secrecy until parents are issued, and since
publication of discoveries in the scientific and patent literature tend to lag behind acrual discoveries by several
months, we cannor be certain that we were the first creator of the inventions covered by our pending parent

applications or that we were the first to file patent applications for these inventions.

In addition, among other things, we cannot assure you that:

our patent applications will result in the issuance of patents;

any patents issued or licensed to us will be free from challenge and that if challenged,
would be held to be valid;

any patents issued or licensed to us will provide commercially significant protection for

our technology, products and processes;

other companies will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information

which is not covered by our patent rights;

other companies will not obrain access to our know-how;

other companies will not be granted patents that may prevent the commercialization of our

technology; or

we will not require licensing and the payment of significant fees or royalties to third parries for

the use of their intellectual property in order to enable us to conduct our business.

Our competitors may allege that we are infringing upon their intellectual property rights,

forcing us to incur substantial costs and expenses in resulting litigation, the outcome of

which would be uncertain.

Patent law is still evolving relative to the scope and enforceability of claims in the fields in which we operate. We
are like most biotechnology companies in that our patent protection is highly uncertain and involves complex
legal and technical questions for which legal principles are not yet firmly established. [n addition, if issued, our
patents may not contain claims sufficiently broad o protect us against chird parties wich similar technologies

or products, or provide us with any competitive advantage.

The PTO and the courts have not established a consistent policy regarding the breadch of claims allowed in
biotechnology patents. The allowance of broader claims may increase the incidence and cost of parenr interfer-
ence proceedings and the risk of infringement litigation. On the other hand, the allowance of narrower claims

may limit the value of our proprietary rights.

The laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extenr as the laws of the
United Srates, and many companies have encountered significant problems and costs in protecting cheir

proprietary rights in these foreign countries.

We could become involved in infringement actions to enforce and/or protect our patents. Regardless of the
outcome, patent litigation is expensive and time consuming and would distract our management from other
activities. Some of our competitors may be able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation more effectively
than we could because they have substantially greater resources. Uncerrainties resulting from the initiation and

continuation of any patent litigation could limit our ability to continue our operations.
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If our technology infringes the intelfectual property of our competitors or other third parties, we
may be required to pay license fees or damages.

If any relevant claims of third-party patents that are adverse to us are upheld as valid and enforceable, we
could be prevented from commercializing our technology or could be required o obtain licenses from the
owners of such patents. We cannot assure you thar such licenses would be available or, if available, would be
on acceptable terms. Some licenses may be non-exclusive and, therefore, our competitors may have access to
the same technology licensed to us. In addition, if any parties successfully claim that the creation or use of
our technology infringes upon their intellectual property rights, we may be forced to pay damages, including

treble damages.

Our security measures may not adequately protect our unpatented technology and, if we are
unable to protect the confidentiality of our proprietary information and know-how, the value of
our technology may be adversely affected.

Our success depends upon know-how, unpatentable trade secrets, and che skills, knowledge and experience of
our scientific and technical personnel. As a result, we require all employees to agree to a confidentiality provision
that prohibits the disclosute of confidential informartion to anyone outside of our company, during the term of
employment and thereafter. We also require all employees to disclose and assign to us the rights to their ideas,
developments, discoveries and inventions. We also attempt to enter into similar agreements with our consultants,
advisors and research collaborators. We cannot assure you that adequate protection for our wrade secrets, know-

how or other proprietary information against unauthorized use or disclosure will be available.

We occastonally provide information to research collaborators in academic institutions and request the collab-
orators to conducr certain tests. We cannor assure you that the academic institutions will not assert intellectual
property rights in the results of the tests conducted by the research collaborators, or that the academic instiqutions
will grant licenses under such intellectual property rights to us on acceprable terms, if ac all. If the assertion of
intellecrual properry rights by an academic institution is substantiaced, and the academic institution does not

grant intellecrual property rights to us, these events could limit our ability to commercialize our technology.

As we evolve from a company primarily involved in the research and development of our
technology into one that is also involved in the commercialization of our technology, we

may have difficulty managing our growth and expanding our operations.

As our business grows, we may need to add employees and enhance our management, systems and procedures.
We will need ro successfully integrate our internal operations with the operations of our marketing partners,
manufacturers, distributors and suppliers to produce and market commercially viable products. We may also
need to manage additional relationships with various collaborative partners, suppliers and other organizations.
Although we do not presently conduct research and devetopment activities in-house, we may undertake those
activities in the furure. Expanding our business will place a significant burden on our management and operations.
We may not be able to implement improvements to our management information and control systems in an
efficient and timely manner and we may discover deficiencies in our existing systems and controls. Qur failure to

effectively respond to changes may make it difficult for us to manage our growth and expand our operations.
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We have no marketing or sales history and depend on third-party marketing partners.

Any failure of these parties to perform would delay or limit our commercialization efforts.

We have no history of marketing, distributing or selling biotechnology products and we are relying on

our ability to successfully establish marketing partners or other arrangements with third parties to market,
distribute and sell a commercially viable product both here and abroad. Our business plan also envisions
creating strategic altiances to access needed commercialization and marketing expertise. We may not be able
to atcrace qualified sub-licensees, distributors or marketing partners, and even if qualified, these marketing
partners may not be able ro successfully market agricultural products or human health applications developed
with our technology. If we fail to successfully establish distribution channels, or if our marketing partners
fail to provide adequate levels of sales, our commercialization efforts will be delayed or limited and we will

not be able to generate revenue.

We will depend on joint ventures and strategic alliances to develop and market our technology
and, if these arrangements are not successful, our technology may not be developed and the
expenses to commercialize our technology will increase.

In its current state of development, our technology is not ready to be marketed to consumers. We intend to
follow a multi-faceted commercialization strategy that involves the licensing of our technology to business
partners for the purpose of further technological development, marketing and distribution. We are secking
business partners who will share the burden of our development costs while our technology is still being
developed, and who will pay us royalties when they market and distribute products incorporating our tech-
nology upon commercialization. The establishment of joint ventures and strategic alliances may create furure
competitors, especially in certain regions abroad where we do not pursue patent protection. If we fail to estab-
lish beneficial business partners and strategic alliances, our growth will suffer and the continued development

af our technology may be harmed.

Competition in the human health and agricultural biotechnology industries is intense and
technology is changing rapidly. If our competitors market their technology faster than we do,
we may not be able to generate revenues from the commercialization of our technology.

Many human health and agriculeural biotechnology companies are engaged in research and development
acrivities relaring ro senescence and apoprosis. The market for plant protection and yield enhancement prod-
ucts is intensely competitive, rapidly changing and undergoing consolidation. We may be unable to compete
successfully against our current and future competitors, which may result in price reductions, reduced margins
and the inability to achieve market acceprance for products containing our technology. Our competitors in
the field of plant senescence gene technology are companies that develop and produce transgenic plants and
include major internarional agricultural companies, specialized biotechnology companies, research and aca-
demic institutions and, potentially, our joint venture and strategic alliance partners, These companies include:
Icoria {formerly Paradigm Generics); Mendel Biotechnology; Renessen LLC; Exelixis Plant Sciences, Inc.;
Syngenta International AG; and Eden Bioscience, among others. Some of our competitors that are involved
in apoptosis research include: Amgen; Centocor; Genzyme; OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; Novartis; Introgen
Therapeutics, Inc.; Genra, Inc.; and Vertex Pharmaceuricals, Inc. Many of these competitors have substantially
greater financial, marketing, sales, distribution and technical resources than us and have more experience in
research and development, clinical wials, regulatory marters, manufacturing and marketing. We anticipare
increased competition in the future as new companies enter the market and new technologies become available.
Our technology may be rendered obsolete or uneconomical by technological advances or entirely different
approaches developed by one or more of our competitors, which will prevent or limit our ability to generate

revenues from the commercialization of our technology.
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Our business is subject to various government regulations and, if we are unable to obtain
regulatory approval, we may not be able to continue our operations.
At present, the U.S. federal government regulation of biorechnology is divided among three agencies:
s the USDA regulates the imporr, field testing and interstate movement of specific types of
genetic engineering that may be used in the creation of transgenic plants;
* the EPA regulates activity related to the invention of plant pesticides and herbicides,
which may include cerrain kinds of transgenic plants; and

* the FDA regulates foods derived from new plant varieries.

The FDA requites that transgenic plancs meet the same standards for safety that are required for all other
plants and foods in general. Except in the case of additives thac significantly alter a food’s structure, the
FDA does not require any additional standards or specific approval for genetically engineered foods, but

expects transgenic plant developers to consulr the FDA before introducing a new food into the marketplace.

Use of our technology, if developed for human healch applications, will also be subject to FDA regulation. The
FDA must approve any drug or biologic product before it can be marketed in the United States. In addition,
ptior to being sold outside of the U.S., any products resulting from the application of our human health tech-
nology must be approved by the regulatory agencies of foreign governments. Prior to filing a new drug appli-
cation or biologics license application with the FDA, we would have to perform extensive clinical trials, and
priot to beginning any clinical trial, we need 1o perform extensive preclinical testing which could rake several

years and may require substantial expenditures.

We believe that our current activities, which to date have been confined to research and development efforts,
do not require licensing or approval by any governmental regulatory agency. However, federal, state and
foreign regulations relating to crop protection products and human health applicadons developed through
biotechnology are subject to public concerns and political circumstances, and, as a result, regulations have
changed and may change substantially in the future. Accordingly, we may become subject to governmental
regulations or approvals or become subject to licensing requirements in connection with our research and
development efforts. We may also be required to obtain such licensing or approval from the governmental
regulatory agencies described above, or from state agencies, prior to the commercialization of our genetically
transformed plants and human health technology. In addition, our matketing partners who utilize our rech-
nology or sell products grown with our technology may be subject to government regulations. if unfavorable
governmenral regulations are imposed on our technology or if we fail o obtain licenses or approvals in a

timely manner, we may not be able to continue our operations.

Preclinical studies and clinical trials of our human health applications may be unsuccessful,
which could delay or prevent regulatory approval.

Preclinical studies may reveal that our human health technology is ineffective or harmful, and/or clinical wials
may be unsuccessful in demonstrating efficacy and safety of our human health rechnology, which would signifi-
cantly limit the possibility of obtaining regulatory approval for any drug or biologic product manufactured with
our technology. The FDA requires submission of extensive preclinical, clinical and manufacturing data to assess
the efficacy and safery of potential products. Furthermore, the success of preliminary studies does not ensure

commercial success, and later-stage clinical ttials may fail to confirm the results of the preliminary studies.
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Even if we receive regulatory approval, consumers may not accept products containing

our technology, which will prevent us from being profitable since we have no other source

of revenue.

We cannort guarantee that consumers will accept products containing our technology. Recently, there has been
consumer concern and consumer advocate activism with respect to genetically engineered consumer products.
The adverse consequences from heightened consumer concern in this regard could affect the markets for
products developed with our technology and could also result in increased government regulation in response
to that concern. If the public or potential customers perceive our technology to be genetic modification or

genetic engineering, agriculcural products grown with our technology may not gain market acceptance.

We depend on our key personnel and, if we are not able to attract and retain quafified scientific
and business personnel, we may not be able to grow our business or develop and commercialize
our technology.

We are highly dependent on our scientific advisors, consultancs and third-party research partners. Our suc-
cess will also depend in part on the conrinued service of our key employees and our ability to identify, hire
and retain additional qualified personnel in an intensely competitive market. Although we have employment
agreements with all of our key employees and a research agreement with Dr. Thompson, these agreements
may be terminated upon short or no notice. We do not maintain key person life insurance on any member
of management. The failure to arrract and retain key personnel could limir our growth and hinder our

research and development efforts.

Certain provisions of our charter, by-laws and Delaware law could make a takeover difficult.
Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and by-laws could make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire contro! of us, even if the change in control would be beneficial to stockholders. Our certiftcate
of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to issue, without stockholder approval, except as may be
required by the rules of the American Stock Exchange, 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock with voting, con-
version and other rights and preferences that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the
holders of our common stock. Similarly, our by-laws do not restrict our board of directors from issuing

preferred stock wichout stockholder approval.

In addirion, we are subjecr to the Business Combination Act of the Delaware General Corporation Law
which, subject to certain exceptions, restricts certain transactions and business combinations berween a cor-
poration and a stockholder owning 15% or more of the corporation’s outstanding veting stock for a period
of three years from the date such stockholder becomes a 15% owner. These provisions may have the effect
of delaying or preventing a change of control of us without action by our stockholders and, therefore, could

adversely affect cthe value of our common stock.

Furthermore, in the event of our merger or consolidation with or into another corporation, or the sale of all or
substantially all of our assets in which the successor corporation does not assume outstanding options or issue

equivalent options, our board of directors is required to provide accelerated vesting of outstanding options.

Increasing political and social turmoil, such as terrorist and military actions, increase the difficulty
for us and our strategic partners to forecast accurately and pfan future business activities.

Recent political and social rurmoil, including the conflict in Iraq and the current crisis in the Middle East,
can be expecred to put further pressure on economic conditions in the United States and worldwide. These
political, social and economic conditions may make it difficult for us to plan future business acriviries.
Specifically, if the current situation in Isracl continues to escalate, our joint venture with Rahan Meristem
Led. could be adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our management and other affiliates have significant control of our commaon stock and could
significantly influence our actions in a manner that conflicts with our interests and the interests
of other stockholders.

As of June 30, 2007, our executive officers, directors and aftiliated entities together beneficially own approxi-
mately 38.9% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, assuming the exercise of options and warrants
which are currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of June 30, 2007, held by these
stockholders. As a resulr, these stockholders, acting rogether, will be able to exercise significant influence aver
matters requiring approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors, and may not always act in
the best interests of other stockholders. Such a concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change in control of us, including transactions in which our stockholders mighr otherwise receive

a premium for their shares over then current market prices.

Our stockholders may experience substantial dilution as a result of the conversion of outstanding
convertible debentures, or the exercise of options and warrants to purchase our common stock.
As of June 30, 2007, we have granted options outside of our stock option plan to purchase 10,000 shares of
our common stock and outstanding warrants to purchase 5,134,815 shares of our common stock. In addirion,
as of June 30, 2007, we have reserved 6,000,000 shares of our common stock for issuance upon the exercise of
options granted pursuant to our stock option plan, 2,754,500 of which have been granted, 90,000 of which
have been exercised since inception, 2,646,000 of which are outstanding, and 3,264,000 of which may be
granted in the future. The exercise of these options and warrants will result in dilution to our existing stock-
holders and could have a marterial adverse effect on our stock price. In addirion, any shares issued in connection
with the YA Global or Stanford financings, as further discussed below, can also have a dilutive effect and a

possible material adverse effect on our stock price.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shares of common stock may be sofd in the market
in the near future, which could cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly.
As of June 30, 2007, we had 17,473,694 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding, of which
approximately 1,986,306 shares are registered pursuant to a registration starement on Form §-3, which was
declared effective on November 27, 20006, and the remainder of which are either eligible to be sold under SEC
Rule 144 or ase in the public float. In addicon, we have registered 2,701,715 shares of our Common Stack
underlying warrants previously issued on the Form §-3 registration statement thar was declared effective on
November 27, 2006, and we registered 6,000,000 shares of our common stock underlying options granted or
to be granted under our stock option plan. Consequencly, sales of substantial amounts of our common stock
in the public market, or the perception that such sales could occur, may have a material adverse effect on our

stock price.

Our common stock has a limited trading market, which could fimit your ability to resell your
shares of common stock at or above your purchase price.

Our common stock is quoted on the American Stock Exchange and currently has a limited trading market.
The American Stock Exchange requires us to meet minimum financial requirements in order to maintain our
listing. Currently, we do not meet the continued listing requirements of the American Stock Exchange. We
cannot assure you that an active trading market will develop or, if developed, will be maintained. As a resulr,
our stockholders may find it difficult to dispose of shares of our common stock and, as a result, may suffer a

loss of all or a substantial portion of their investment.

ANNUAL REPORT 36




We currently do not meet the American Stock Exchange continued listing standards. If our com-
mon stock is delisted from the American Stock Exchange, we may not be able to list on any other
stock exchange, and our common stock may be subject to the “penny stock” regulations which
may affect the ability of our stockholders to sell their shares.

The American Stock Exchange requires us to meet minimum financial requirements in order to maintain our
listing. Currently, we do not meet the $6,000,000 minimum net worth continued listing requirement of the
American Stock Exchange and have received 2 notice of noncompliance from the American Stock Exchange.
We have submitted a plan to the American Stock Exchange discussing how we intend to regain compliance
with the continued listing requirements. The American Stock Exchange has accepred our plan and has given
us undl March 1, 2008 to effectuate the plan and regain compliance with the continued listing requirements.

If we are unable to execute on the plan, it is possible that we will be delisted. If we are delisted from the
American Stock Exchange, our common stock likely will become a “penny stock.” In general, regulations of
the SEC define a “penny stock”™ to be an equity security that is not listed on a national securities exchange
or the NASDAQ Stock Market and that has a marker price of less than $5.00 per share or with an exercise
price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to cerrain exceptions. If our common stock becomes a penny stock,
additional sales practice requirements would be imposed on broker-dealers that sell such securities to persons
other than certain qualified investors. For transactions involving a penny stock, unless exempt, a broker-dealer
must make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written consent to
the transaction prior to the sale. In addition, the rules on penny stocks require delivery, prior ro and after any

penny stock transaction, of disclosures required by the SEC.

If our stock is not accepted for listing on the American Stock Exchange, we will make every possible effort
to have it listed on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board, or the OTC Bulletin Board. If our common stock
were to be traded on the OTC Bulletin Board, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and related
Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) rules would impose additional sales practice requirements on
broker-dealers that sell our securities. These rules may adversely affect the ability of stockholders to sell our

commen stock and otherwise negatively affect the liquidity, trading market and price of our commaon stock.

We believe that the listing of our common stock on a recognized national trading market, such as the
American Stock Exchange, is an important part of our business and strategy. Such a listing helps our stock-
holders by providing a readily available trading market with currenc quortations. Withour thar, stockholders
may have a difficult time getting a quote for the sale or purchase of our stock, the sale or purchase of our
stock would likely be made more difficult and the trading volume and liquidity of our stock would likely
decline. The absence of such a listing may adversely affect the acceprance of our common stock as currency or
the value accorded it by other parties. In that regard, the absence of a listing on a recognized narional trading
market will also affect our ability to benefit from the use of our operations and expansien plans, including for
use 1n licensing agreements, joint ventures, the development of strategic relationships and acquisitions, which
are critical w our business and straregy and none of which is currently the subject of any agreement, arrange-
ment or understanding, with respect to any future financing or strategic relationship it may undertake. The
delisting from the American Stock Exchange would result in negative publicity and would negatively impact

our abiliry to raise capiral in the furure.

a7
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The market price of our common stock may fluctuate and may drop below the price you paid.
We cannot assure you that you will be able to resell the shares of our common stock at or above your purchase
price. The marker price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors,
some of which are beyend our control. These factors include:
* quarterly variations in operating resuls;
» the progress or perceived progress of our research and development efforts;
* changes in accounting treatments or principles;
* announcements by us or our competitors of new technology, product and service offerings,
significant contracts, acquisitions or strategic relationships;
* addirions or departures of key personnel;
» future offerings or resales of our common stock or other securities;
* stock marker price and volume fluctuations of publicly-traded companies in general and
development companies in particular; and

* general polirical, economic and marker condirions.

Because we do not intend to pay, and have not paid, any cash dividends on our shares of
common stock, our stockholders wilf not be able to receive a return on their shares unless

the value of our common stock appreciates and they sell their shares.

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock and we intend to retain any future
earnings to finance the development and expansion of our business. We do nort anticipate paying any cash
dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Therefore, our stockholders will not be able to receive

a return on their investment unless the value of our common stock appreciates and they sell their shares,

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.

We lease office space in New Brunswick, New Jersey for a current monthly rental fee of $6,460, subject to
certain escalarions for our proportionate share of increases, over the base year of 2001, in the building’s oper-
ating costs. The monthly rental fee will continue to increase by one percent each year through the expiration
date of the lease. The lease expires in May 2011, The space is in good condition, and we believe it will ade-
quately serve as our headquarters over the term of the lease. We also believe that this office space is adequately

insured by the lessor.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are not currently a party to any legal proceedings; however, we may become involved in various claims and

fegal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.
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Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our common stock trades on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol SNT.

The following table sets forth the range of the high and low sales price for our common stock for each of the

quarters since the quarter ended September 30, 2005, as reported on the American Stock Exchange.

Quarter Ended Common Stock

High Low
September 30, 2005 $2.17 $1.30
December 31, 2005 $2.00 $1.16
March 31, 2006 $2.25 $1.20
June 30, 2006 $2.24 $1.40
September 30, 2006 $1.83 $1.08
December 31, 2006 $1.40 $0.90
March 31, 2007 $1.33 $0.97
June 30, 2007 $1.69 $0.80

As of September 20, 2007, the approximate number of holders of record of our common stock was 296. This
number does not include “street name” or beneficial holders, whose shares are held of record by banks, brokers

and other financtal institutions.

We have neither paid nor declared dividends on our common stock since our inception and we do not plan
to pay dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We expect that any earnings, which we may

realize, will be retained wo finance the growth of our company.

The following table provides information about the securities authorized for issuance under our equity

compensartion plans as of June 3@, 2007.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of securities Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon

exercise of outstanding

Weighted-averape
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

available for furure issuance
Undcr Cquir}f COmanSa[iDn plans
Options, warrants

and rights

2,646,000 (1) $2.33 3,264,000

Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders

Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders

Toral 2,646,000 (1) $2.33 3,264,000 2

{1} Issued pursuanc 1o our 1998 Stock Plan. (2} Available for future issuance pursuant to our 1998 Stock Plan.
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

In connection with a private placement in October 2006, we sold an aggregate of 1,986,306 shares of
our common stock and warrants to purchase our common stock to certain instirutions, accredited
investors and certain directors. The issuance to our directors is summarized as follows:

Amount # of Shares # of Warrants

Christopher Forbes $1,000,000 883,002 441,501
Thomas C. Quick

Charitable Foundartion $300,000 264,901 132,450
Rudolf Stalder $105,841 93,458 46,729
Bruce C. Galton $75,000 66,225 33,113
John N. Braca $11,325 10,000 5,000
David Rector $11,325 10,000 53,000

All of such warrants will become exercisable six months from the closing date at an exercise price equal to
$1.18 and have a term of five (3) years.

The private placement closed on October 11, 2006. We received gross proceeds equal to $2,249,491.
The proceeds will be used for research and development and working capital purposes.

H.C. Wainwright & Co., Inc. acted as the placement agenr for this private placement pursuant to the terms
of a placement agent agreement. The placement agent was entitled to receive 7% of the gross proceeds from
investors introduced by the placement agent and 3% of the gross proceeds from investors introduced by us.
The actual placement agent fee amounted to 3.6% of the gross proceeds of the private placement, and war-
rants to purchase shares of common stock equal to 7% of the shares so issued in the private placement.

A registration statement on Form $-3 was filed on November 3, 2006 covering the common stock and warrants

sold in this private placement. Such registration statement was declared effective on November 13, 2006.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock with the
cumulative total return on the AMEX Marker Value (U.S.) Index and the RDG Microcap Biotechnology
Index for the period beginning July 1, 2002 and ending on the last day of our last completed fiscal year.
The stock performance shown on the graph below s not indicative of future price performance.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Senesco Technologies, Inc., The AMEX Composite Index
and The RDG MicroCap Biotechnolegy Index
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*$100 invested on 6/03/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending June 30.

/02 6/30/03 6/30/04  6/30/05 6/30/06  6/30/07

Senesco Technologies, 1nc. $100.00  $106.00  $157.50  $89.50 $95.00 §57.50
AMEX Marker Value (U.S.) Index $100.00 $108.49  $141.09 $179.55  $221.32 $273.59
RDG Microcap Biotechnology Index $100.00  $106.15  $107.12 $69.49 $47.57 $35.81

The information in the performance graph is not deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future
filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, cach as amended, except to the extent

that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing,
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following Selected Financial Dara should be read in conjunction with “Item 7. Managemenr’s Discussion

and Analysts of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Item 8. Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data” included elsewhere in this amended and restared Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share darta)
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 300 67 $125 $17 $10
Operating expenses:
General and administrative 2,413 1,920 2,030 2,907 2,093
Research and development 1,208 1,566 1,417 1,147 897
Total operating expenses 3,621 3.486 3,447 4,054 2,990
Loss from operarions (3.321) (3,419 (3,322) (4,037) (2,980)
Noncash income - - 136 186 -
Sale of state income tax loss - net - - 153 91 131
Interest income, net 69 104 34 33 71
Net loss $(3,252)  3(3.315) $(2,979) #(3,727) $(2,778)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ 19 $§ (2D § (21) § (29 (23
Basic and diluted weighted average number of
common shares outstanding 16,917 15,469 14,054 12,668 11,880
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 638 $ 1,168 $4,481 $4,136 $2,419
Working capital 259 859 3,959 3,840 2,285
Total assets 3.322 3,535 6,113 5,211 3,266
Accumulared deficit (25,622) (22,370)  (19,055) (16,076) {12,349)
Toral stockholders” equity 2,690 2,952 5590 4,731 2,857
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.

The discussion in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™
contains trend analysis, estimates and other forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements containing the words “believes,”
“anticipates,” “expects,” “continue,” and other words of similar import or the negative of those rerms or
expressions. Such forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties, estimates
and other factors thac may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, o be
materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Actual results could differ marerially from those set forth in such forward-looking
statements as a result of, bur not limited to, the “Risk Factors” described in Part [, Item 1A. You should read
the following discussion and analysis along with the “Selected Financial Data” and the financial statements
and notes artached to those statements included elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a development stage company. We do not expect to generate significant revenues for approximately

the next one to three years, during which time we will engage in significant research and development efforts.
However, we have entered into the Harris Moran License, the ArborGen Agreement, the Cal/West License, the
Scouts License, the Bayer Licenses, the Monsanto License and the Poet License to develop and commercialize
our technology in certain varieties of lettuce, melons, trees, alfalfa, bedding plants, turf grass, canola, corton, soy,
corn, rice and ethanol. The Harris Moran License, the ArborGen Agreement, the Cal/West License, the Scotts
License, the Bayer Licenses, and the Monsanto License also provide for royalty payments to us upon commercial
introduction. The Cal/West License contains an option for Cal/West to develop our technology in various other
forage crops. The Poet License provides for annual payments for each of Poet’s ethanol production facilities that
incorporates our rechnology. We also have entered into the Rahan Joint Venture to develop and commercialize
our technology in banana plants. In connection with the Rahan Joint Venture, we will receive 50% of the profits

from the sale of enhanced banana plants.

Consistent with our commercialization strategy, we intend to license our technology for additional crops, as the
opportunities may arise, that may result in additional license fees, revenues from contract research and other
related revenues. Successful future operations will depend on our and our partners’ ability o transform our

research and development activities into a commercially feasible technology.

We plan to employ the same partnering strategy in both the human health and agricultural target markers. Our
preclinical research has yielded data that we have presented to various biopharmaceutical companies that may be

prospective licensees for the development and marketing of potential applications of our technology.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Revenue Recognition
We record revenue under technology license and development agreements related to the following,

Actual fees received may vary from the recorded estimated revenues.

* Nonrefundable upfront license fees that are received in exchange for the transfer of our technology
to licensees, for which no further obligations to the licensee exist with respect to the basic technology
transferred, are recognized as revenuc on the earlier of when payments are received or collections
are assured.

* Nonrefundable upfront license fees that are received in connection with agreements that include
time-based payments are, together with the time-based payments, deferred and amortized ratably
over the estimated research period of the license.

* Milestone payments, which are contingent upon the achievement of certain research goals, are

recognized as revenue when the milestones, as defined in the particular agreement, ate achieved.

The effect of any change in revenues from technology license and development agreements would be reflected

in revenues in the period such determination was made. Historically, no such adjustments have been made.

Estimates of Expenses

Our research and development agreements with third parties provide for an estimate of our expenses and costs,
which are variable and are based on the actual services performed by the chird party. We estimate the aggregate
amount of the expenses based upon the projected amounts that are set forth in the agreements, and we accrue
the expenses for which we have not yet been invoiced. In estimating the expenses, we consider, among other

things, the following factors:

» the existence of any prior relationship between us and the third party provider;

* the past results of prior research and development services performed by the third party provider;
and

* the scope and timing of the research and development services set forch in the agreement with the

third party provider.

After the research services are performed and we are invoiced, we make any adjustments that are necessary to

accurately report research and development expense for the period.

Valuation Aflowances and Carrying Values
We have recorded valuation allowances against our entire deferred tax assets of $7,719,000 at June 30, 2007.
The valuation allowances relate primarily to the net operating loss carryforward deferred tax asset where the

tax benefit of such asset is not assured.

As of June 30, 2007, we have determined that the estimated future discounted cash flows related to our patent

applications will be sufficient to recover their carrying value.

We had determined that the economic benefit of the patent applications did not begin until they were issued.
As such, we would amortize the issued patent costs beginning on the date of issue, but did not amortize the

cost of patent applicarions that were still pending. Due to the increasing number and scope of license agree-
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ments we have entered into, we have determined that we are now receiving the economic benefir of the patent
applications as well as the issued patents and have begun amortizing the patent application costs during the
year ended June 30, 2007.

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Stock-Based Compensation

We adopted FAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payments”, effective July 1, 2005, using the modified-retrospective
method. The adoption of this standard requires the recognition of stock-based compensation expense in the
consolidated financial statements. Prior to July 1, 2005, we followed Accounting Principles Board Opinion

25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related interpretations.

Research Program

We do not expect to generate significant revenues for approximarely the next one to three years, during which
time we will engage in significant research and development efforts. We expect to spend significant amounts
on the research and development of our technology. We also expect our research and development costs to
increase as we continue to develop and ultimately commercialize our technology. However, the successful
development and commercialization of our technology is highly uncerwin. We cannot reasonably estimate or
know the nature, timing and expenses of the efforts necessary to complete the development of our technology,
or the period in which material net cash inflows may commence from the commercialization of our technology,

including the uncertainty of:

* the scope, rate of progress and expense of our research activiries;

*» the interim results of our research;

s the expense of additional research that may be required after review of the interim results;

* the terms and timing of any collaborative, licensing and other arrangements thar we may establish;
* the expense and timing of regulatory approvals;

* the effect of competing technological and market developments; and

* the expense of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims or other intellecrual

property rights,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

As of June 30, 2007, our cash balance and investmenis rotaled $658,061, and we had working capital of
$259,303. As of June 30, 2007, we had a federal tax loss carryforward of approximately $17,212,000 and a state
tax loss carry-forward of approximately $9,854,000 to offset future taxable income. We cannor assure you that
we will be able to take advantage of any or all of such tax loss carryforwards, if at all, in furure fiscal years.

L]
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Contractual Obligations
The following table lists our cash contractual obligations as of June 30, 2007:

Payments Due by Pericd

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1-3 4-5 More than
1 year years years 5 years

Research and Developmen

Agreements ‘! § 640,000 $ 550,000 $ 90,000 3 — § —
Facility, Rent and
Operating Leases 3 309002 $ 77596 §$157,928 §73568 $ —

Employment, Consulting and
Scientific Advisory

Board Agreements @ § 799371 § 666,542 §$132,830 $§ — $§ —

Total Contracrual

Cash Obligations 51,748,463 $1,294,138 $380,758 $73568 % —

n Certain of our research and development agreements disclosed herein provide that payment is to be made in Canadian dol-

lars and, cherefore, the contractual obligations are subject ro fucruations in the exchange rate.

(2 The lease for our office space in New Brunswick, New Jersey is subject to certain escalations for our proportionate share of
increases in the building’s operating costs.

3 Certain of our employment and consulting agreements provide for automatic renewal, which is not reflected in the table,
unless terminated earlier by the parties to the respective agreements.

We expect our capital rec uiremnents to increase significantly over the next several years as we commence new research
and development efforts, increase our business and administrative infrastructure and embark on developing in-house
business capabilities and facilities. Qur furure liquidity and capital funding requirements will depend on numerous
factors, including, bur not limited to, the levels and costs of our research and development initiacives and the cost

and timing of the expansion of our business development and administrative staff,

Effective September 1, 2007, we extended our research and development agreement with the University of Waterloo
for an addittonal one-year period through August 31, 2008, in the amount of CAD $652,600 or approximately
USD $555,000. Research and developinent expenses under this agreement for years ended ended June 30, 2007
and June 30, 2006 aggregated USD $568,872 and USD $692,982, respecrively, and USD $3,896,304 for the
cumulative period from inception through June 30, 2007. Total research and development expenses for the years
ended June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 aggregated $1,208,321 and $1,566,267, respecrively, and $8,193,169 for
the cumulative period from inception through June 30, 2007.
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Capital Resources

Since inception, we have generated revenues of $718,333 in connection with the initial fees and milestone
payments received under our license and development agreements. We have not been profitable since inception,
we will continue to incur additional operating losses in the future, and we will require additional financing w
continue the development and subsequent commercialization of our technology. While we do not expect to
generate significant revenues from the licensing of our rechnology for the next one to three years, we may
enter into additional licensing or other agreements with markering and distribution partners that may result

in additional license fees, receive revenues from contract research, or other related revenue.

On October 11, 2006, we completed a private placement to certain members of our board of directors, insti-
tutional and accredited investors for an aggregate amount of 1,986,306 shares of common stock and warrants
to purchase 993,153 shares of our common stock for the aggregate net cash consideration of $2,019,008. The
private placement offered units of one share of commen stock and a five-year warrant to purchase 0.50 shares
of commuon stock at a price equal to $1.1325 per unit. The warrants were offered with an exercise price equal
to $1.18 per share, with such warrants becoming exercisable six months from the date of closing. The costs

associated with the private placement totaled $230,483.

On November 8, 2006, we entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience GmbH for the development
and commercialization of Canola. Under the terms of the license agreement, we received an upfront payment,
will receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and will receive

commercialization fees based upon specified benchmarks.

On December 21, 2006, we converted our development agreement with ArborGen, LLC into a commercial

license agreement for the development and commercialization of certain species of trees. Under the terms of
the license agreement, we will receive certain annuat payments over the next two years and, additionally, upon

commercialization, a royalty on incremental net sales.

On July 17, 2007, we entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience AG for the development and
commercialization of Cotton. Under the terms of the license agreement, we received an upfront payment, will
receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and addirionally, upon

commercialization, a royalty on net sales. |

On August 6, 2007, we entered into a license agreement with Monsanto for the development and commer-
cialization of Corn and Soy. Under the terms of the license agreement, we received an upfront payment, will
receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and addirionally, upon

commercialization, a royalty on net sales.

On Seprember 11, 2007, we entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience AG for the development
and commercialization of Rice. Under the terms of the agreement, we received an upfront payment, will
receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and addittonally, upon

commercialization, a royalty on net sales.

On August 1, 2007, and August 29, 2007, we entered inte binding Securities Purchase Agreements with YA
Global Investments, referred to herein as YA Global, and Stanford Vencure Capital Holdings, Inc., referred 1o
herein as Stanford, respectively, to sell each of YA Global and Stanford up to $5,000,000 of secured convertible

debentures and accompanying warranes for an aggregate gross proceeds of $10,000,000. The convertible
debentures convert into shares of our common stock at a fixed price of $0.90 per share subject o cerrain
adjustments, referred to herein as the fixed conversion price tor a period of two years immediately following

the signing date, provided that we have achieved the following milestones by January 31, 2008:
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* Successful completion of animal studies, other than toxicology studies, necessary for the
advancement of factor 5A1 in human clinical trials,

* The engagement of a contract research organization for human clinical studies of factor 5A1, and

* The signing of at least one (1) corporate partnership or license agreement afrer August 1, 2007

with agricultural companies utilizing our proprietary placform.

After the second anniversary of the signing date, or if we do not achieve the foregoing milestones by January 31,
2008, the convertible debentures may converr into shares of our comman stock at the lower of the fixed conver-
sion price o 80% of th= lowest daily volume-weighred average price, referred to herein as the VWAR, of the com-
mon stock during the five trading days prior to the conversion date. The maturity date of each of the convertible
debentures for YA Glotal and Stanford is December 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Currently,
at the fixed conversion price, the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the convertible
debentures and exercise of the warrants represents in the aggregate, 25,000,000 shares plus an estimated additional

2,000,000 shares for the payment of interest in stock under the convertible debentures.

Pursuant to the terms of the Securities Purchase Agreements, we are required ro seek sharcholder approval to
increase the authorized number of shares of common stock from 60,000,000 shares to 100,000,000 shares.

The convertible debentures accrue interest on their outstanding principal balances at an annual rate of 8%.
We have the option to pay interest in cash or, upon certain conditions, shares of common stock. If we pay
interest in shares of coramon stock, the stock will be valued at a 10% discount to the average daily VWAP

for the five day trading period prior to the interest payment date, referred to herein as the interest shares.

At our option, we can redeem a portion of, or all of, the principal owed under the convertible debentures by
providing the investors with ar least 30 business days’ written notice, provided that, at the time of receipt of

the notice, either:

o If
* the VWAP of the common stock exceeds 130% of the Fixed Conversion Price for at least

20 of 30 prior trading days, and

s there is an effective registration statement for the resale of the common stock thar will

be issued under the redemption

* or we redezm a portion, or all, of the principal owed at a 20% premium above the principal then

outstanding and any accrued interest thereupon.

If we redeem all or any of the principal outstanding under the convertible debentures, we will pay an amount

equal ro the principal being redeemed plus accrued interest.

If there is an effective rzgistration statement for the resale of the shares underlying the convertible debenrures
or if such shares become 144(k) eligible, we will have the option to force the investors to convert 50% and
100% of our then-outstanding convertible debentures if our common stock price exceeds 150% and 175% of
the fixed conversion price, respectively, for any 20 out of 30 wading days, provided thar such forced conversion
meets certain conditions, referred to herein as the call optien. If we exercise our call option prior to the third
anniversary of the sighing date, we will issue additional warrants to the investor equal to 50% of the number
of shares underlying thz convertible debenture subject to the forced conversion. These warrants will be exercis-
able at the fixed convetsion price and will have the same maturity as the other warrants issued under the YA

Global financing.
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Our obligations under the convertible debentures are secured by all of our and our subsidiary’s assets and
intellectual property, as evidenced by the Security Agreements and the Patent Security Agreements. Pursuant

to a subordination agreement, YA Global is the senior secured creditor.

YA Global and Sranford will also be issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 5,555,555 and 8,333,333
shares, respectively, of our common stock, exercisable six months and one day from the date of issuance until
theit expitation on the date thar is five years from the date of issuance. The warrants will be issued in two
sertes. Generally, the Series A warrants may be issued prior to stockholder approval, while the Series B warrants
are only issued after stockholder approval. The exercise price of the Series A warrants is $1.01 per share, and
the exercise price of the Series B warrants is $0.90 per share, subject o cerrain adjustments. The warrants provide
a right of cashless exercise if, ar the time of exercise, there is no effective registration statement registering the

resale of the shares underlying the warrants.

The conversion rate of each convertible debenture and the exercise price of the Series B warrants are subject
to adjustment for certain events, including dividends, stock splits, combinations and the sale of our common
stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for our common stock ar a price less than the then applicable

conversion or exercise price.

The investors have a right of first refusal on any future funding that involves the issuance of our capiral stock

for so long as a portion of the convertible debencures is ourstanding.

Under the registration rights agreements executed with each of YA Global and Stanford, we have agreed 1o file
an initial registration statement with the SEC 1o register the resale of common stock issuable ro YA Global
(including interest shares), such shares are also referred to herein as the registrable shares, within 30 days of the
first closing of the YA Global deal. Also, we have agreed to respond to all SEC comment letters as promptly as
reasonably possible and to use our best efforts to have the registration statement declared effective within 120
days of the aforementioned first closing. The initial registration statement covering YA Global’s shares shall
include 33% of the public float. If the registrable shares remain outstanding after all shares under the initial
registration statement have been sold, we may be required to file additional registration statements for those
registrable shares. These registration rights will cease once the repistrable shares are eligible for sale by the
investor withour restriction under Rule 144(k). Upon certain events, we have agreed to pay as partial liquidated
damages an amount equal to 1.0% of the aggregate purchase price paid by the investors for any convertible
debentures then held by the invesrors, but these payments may nor exceed 12% of the aggregate purchase

price paid by the investors.

The gross proceeds of the sale will be $10,000,000 before payment of 3.25% of the purchase price in commis-
sions to Wainwright & Co., Inc, also referred to herein as the placement agent. We will issue to the placement
agent warrants to purchase 7% of the purchase price, or 777,777 shares, of our commaon stock with similar
terms to the warrants that will be issued to the investors. We paid YA Global and Stanford a non-refundable
structuring/due diligence fee of $30,000 each. We have also agreed to pay YA Global and Stanford a commit-

ment fee of 5% and 7%, respectively, of its purchase price, which is paid proportionately ar each closing.
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Specifics of YA Global Financing

Pursuant to the YA Global Securities Purchase Agreement, we have issued a converrible debenture in the
amount of $1,500,000 and will issue and sell to YA Global:

(1) a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the date the registration statement is

filed, pursuant to the registration rights agreement, with the SEC; and
(2) a convertible debenture in the amount of $2,000,000 on the date that is the later of the following:

* the date stockholders approve the transaction, or

* the date the registration statement is declared effecrive by the SEC.

Pursuanr to the rules of the American Stock Exchange, the convertible debentures and warrants issued and

issuable to YA Global at the first two closings will be subject to a cap on the number of shares of common

stock that can be issued upon the conversion of the convertible debentures and the exercise of the warrants,
until the Company receives sharcholder approval. The cap of 3,493,000 shares is equal to 19.99% of the
Company’s outstanding common stock on the signing date. In additon, thete is a maximum overall cap of
30,500,000 shares for ~he YA Global financing,

Specifics of Stanford Financing
Pursuant to the Stanford Securities Purchase Agreement, we will issue and sell to Stanford:

(1) a convertible debenture in the amount of $2,000,000 and warrants within two business days of

the later of the following:

* the date stockholders approve the transaction, or
» the date thar the initial registration statement relating to the YA Global financing is filed

with the SEC;

{2) a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the dave the Company enters into a
supply agreement with a third party manufacturer for sufficient quantiry and quality of nano-
particle for encapsulation of Factor 5A gene to be used in toxicology and proof of concepr
human studies under a United States Food and Drug Administration, referred to herein as
FDA, accepted Investigational New Drug application, referred to herein as IND application;
and

{3) a converrible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the date the Company enters into a
supply agreement with a third party manufacturer to provide sufficient quantity and qualicy
of Factor SA DNA to carry out toxicology and proof of concept human studies under a FDA

accepred IND application.
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The convertible debentures and warrants issuable to Stanford will be subject to a maximum cap of 31,888,888
on the number of shares of common stock that can be issued upon the conversion of the convertible debentures

and the exercise of the warrants.

We anticipate that, based upon our current cash and investments and the additional $8,500,000 proceeds
from the issuance of convertible debentures, we will be able to fund our operarions for the next rwency-four
months. If we are unable to issue the additional $8,500,000 of convertible debentures, we will only be able to
fund our operations for the next six months. Over the next twelve months, we plan to fund our research and

development and commercialization acrivities by:

* utilizing our current cash balance and investments,

« achieving some of the milestones set forth in our current licensing agreements,

+ through the execution of additional licensing agreements for our technology, and

» through the issuance of convertible debentures under the recently completed transaction with YA

Global and Sranford.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise money through any of the foregoing transactions, or on

favorable terms, if at all.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Revenue

Toral revenues consisted of initial fees and milestone payments on our agricultural development and license
agreements. During the year ended June 30, 2007, revenue of $300,000 consisted of initial payments, current
milestone payments, and the amortized portion of previous milestone payments in connection with certain
license agreements. During the years ended fune 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005, revenue of $66,666 and
$125,000, respectively, consisted of current milestone payments and the amortized portion of previous

milestone payments in connection with certain license agreements.

We anticipate that we will continue to receive milestone payments in connection with our current agricultural
development and license agreements while we continue to pursue our goal of attracting other companies to
license our technologies in various other crops. Additionally, we anticipate thatr we will receive royalty pay-
ments from our license agreements when our partners commercialize their crops containing our technology.
However, it is difficult for us to determine our future revenue expectations because we are a development stage
biotechnology company. As such, the timing and outcome of our experiments, the timing of signing new partners
and the timing of our partners moving through the development process into commercialization is difficult to

accurately predict.
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Operating expenses

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 Change % 2006 2005 Change %

(In thousands, except % values)

General and administrative $2413  §$1920 $ 493 26%  $1,920 $2,029 $ (i09) (5%
Research and developmenr 1,208 1,566 (358) (23)% 1,566 1,417 149 11%
Total operating expenses $3.621  $34806 5 135 4%  $3486 $3446 § 40 1%

We expect operating expenses to increase over the next twelve months as we anticipate thart research and
development expenses and other general and administrative expenses will increase as we continue to expand

our research and development acrivities.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrztive expenses consist of the following:

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Stock-based compensation $ 910 $ 488 5691
Payroll and benefits 6l6 607 564
Investor refations 278 341 328
Professional fees 217 211 197
Depreciation and amortiz: tion 166 40 43
Other general and administrative éxpenses 226 233 206
Total general and adminisirative expenses $ 2,413 $ 1,920 $ 2,029

* Stock-based compensation consists primarily of the amortized porrion of the Black-Scholes value of options
and warrants granted to consultants, directors and employees. During Fiscal 2007 and 2006, there were
240,000 and 235,000 options granted to such directors, employees and consultants and 2,500 and 5,000
warrants granted to a consultane. Additionally, during Fiscal 2007, 1,500,000 warrants were extended and

repriced in connecrio 1 with a financial advisory agreement.

Stock-based compensation was higher in Fiscal 2007 due to the extension and repricng of warrants in connec-
tion with a financial advisory agreement, which had a Black-Scholes value of $683. This was partially offser by
a decrease in the Black-Scholes value of the options and warrancs granted during Fiscal 2007 compared to the
Black-Scholes value of the options and warrants granted during Fiscal 2006 because the marker price of the
common stock on the date of grant in Fiscal 2007 was lower than the market price of the common stock on the

date of grant in Fiscal 2000.
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Stock-based compensation was lower in Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005 primarily due to the Black-
Scholes value of the options and warrants granted during Fiscal 2006 being lower than the Black-Scholes
value of the options and warrants granted during Fiscal 2005 because the marker price of the common stock
on the date of grant in Fiscal 2006 was lower than the marker price of the common stock on the date of

grant in Fiscal 2005.
» Payroll and benefits increased primarily as a result of salary and health insurance rate increases.

* Investor relations expense for Fiscal 2007 is lower than Fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of a decrease in

consulting fees incurred.

Investor relations expense for Fiscal 2006 is higher than Fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of an increase in the

amount of investor relations consulting fees.

+ Professional fees increased during Fiscal 2007 compared to Fiscal 2006 primarily as a resulc of an increase in

accounting fees which was pardially offset by a decrease in legal fees.

Professional fees increased during Fiscal 2006 compared ro Fiscal 2005 primarily as a resulr of an increase in
legal fees due to the increased regulatory environment, which was partially offser by a decrease in 2ccounting
and consulting fees as a result of the postponement by the SEC of the auditing requirements in connection
with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

* Depreciation and amortization increased during Fiscal 2007 compared to Fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of
an increase in amortization of patent costs. During Fiscal 2007, we began amortizing the cost of our pending

patent applications.

We expect general and administrative expenses to modestly increase over the next twelve months primarily
due to an increase in legal and accounting fees related 1o the increased regulatory environment surrounding

our business.

Research and development expenses

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 Change % 2006 2005 Change %
(In thousands, except % values)

Stock-based compensation $ 60 $ 189 $(129) (68)% $ 189 § 283 $ (94 (3%
Orher research and development 1,148 1,377 (229 (17)% 1,377 1,134 243 21%
Tortal research and developmen: $ 1,208 % 1,566 $ (338) (23)% $1,566 $ 1417 $ 149 11%
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» Stock-based compensation decreased during Fiscal 2007 compared o Fiscal 2006 primarily because the
Black-Scholes value of the options and warrants granted during Fiscal 2007 were lower than Fiscal 2006
because the market price of the commen stock on the date of granc in Fiscal 2007 was lower than the

market price of the common stock on the date of grant in Fiscal 2006.

* Stock-based compensation increased during Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005 because the market price of
the common stock on the date of grant in Fiscal 2006 was lower than the market price of the common stock
on the date of grant in Fiscal 2005,

* Other research and development costs decreased during Fiscal 2007 compared to Fiscal 2006 primarily as a
result of a reduction of ~he budger in connection with the research agreement with the University of Waterloo

as well as the completion of certain human health research programs being performed at certain universities.

Other research and devzlopment costs increased during Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005 primarily as a
resule of the expanded 1esearch programs in both the agricultural and human health applications of our tech-

nology and the weakness of the U.S. currency against the Canadian currency.

The breakdown of our research and development expenses between our agricultural and human health
research programs are as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2007 % 2006 % 2005 %

(In thousands, except % values)

Agricultural research programs $ 701 58% $ 813 52% $ 711 50%
Human health research programs $ 507 42% $ 753 48% $ 706 50%
Toral research and developmient expenses $1,208 100% § 1,417 100% $ 1,417 100%

» Agricultural research expenses decreased during Fiscal 2007 compared to Fiscal 2006 primarily as a result
of a decrease in the budget in connection with our research agreement at the University of Waterloo and a

decrease in stock-based compensation.

Agricultural research expenses increased during Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of
the expanded research program at the University of Waterloo and the weakness of the U.S. currency against

the Canadian currency.

* Human health research expenses decreased during Fiscal 2007 compared to Fiscal 2006 primarily as a result

of the completion of cerrain human health research programs being performed at certain universities.

Human health research expenses increased during Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005 primarily as a result

of the expanded human health research program.

We expect the percentage of human health research programs to increase as a percentage of the total research

and development expenses as we continue to expand our human health initiatives.
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Noncash income

In May 2005, we completed a private placement of common stock and warrants. In che private placement, we
were obligated to file a registration statement 1o register all of the shares and the shares underlying the warrants.
Due to our obligation to file a registration to register for resale the shares underlying the warrants, in accor-
dance with EITF 00-19. “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed To, and Porentially Sertled
In a Company’s QOwn Common Stock,” the value of the warrants in the private placement was recorded as a
liability until the filing was made. The decrease in market value of the Common Stock from the closing of the
financings untit the date of the filing or effectiveness of the registration statement resulted in noncash income

of $135,632.

Sale of state income tax loss

During fiscal 2005, we received net proceeds of $153,160 from the sale of our New Jersey state tax loss for
fiscal 2003. Because the criteria required for approval changed, we have not been approved to sell our New
Jersey stare tax loss for fiscal 2004 and thereafter, and therefore, we did not receive any proceeds during fiscal
2007 or 2006.

Interest income
Year ended June 30,
2007 2006  Change % 2006 2005  Change %
(In thousands, except % values)
Interest income $69 $ 105 5 (36) (34)% $ 105 $54 $51 94%

The decrease in interest income for fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 is lower due to a lower average cash
and investments balance during the year, which was partially offsec by higher incerest rates. The increase in
interest income for fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 is related to a higher rate of interest earned on our

investments.

From Inception on July 1, 1998 through June 30, 2007

From inception of operations on July 1, 1998 through June 30, 2007, we had revenues of $718,333, which
consisted of the inirial license fees and milestone payments in connection with our various developmenr and
license agreements. We do not expect to generate significant revenues for approximately the next one to three

years, during which time we will engage in significant research and development efforts.

We have incutred losses each year since inception and have an accumulated deficit of $25,621,540 at June 30,
2007. We expect to continue to incur losses as a result of expenditures on research, product development and

administrative activities,
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item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our financial statements are denominated in United States dollars and, except for our agreement with the
University of Waterloo, which is denominated in Canadian dollars, all of our contracts are denominated in
United States dollars. Therefore, we believe that fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates will not resul
in any material adverse effect on our financial condirion or results of operations. In the event we derive a
greater portion of our revenues from incernational operations or in the event a greater portion of our expenses are
incurred internationally ar.d denominated in a foreign currency, then changes in foreign currency exchange rates

could effect our results of operations and financial condition.

Interest Rate Risk

We invest in high-quality financial instruments, primarily money market funds, federal agency notes, corpo-

rate debt securities and United States treasury notes, with an effective duration of the portfolio of less than
nine months, and no seccrity with an effective duration in excess of one year, which we believe are subject to
limited credit risk. We currently do not hedge our interest rate exposure. Due to the short-term nature of our
investments, which we plan o hold undl macurity, we do not believe that we have any material exposure to

interest rate risk arising from our investments.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The financial statements rzquired to be filed pursuanc to this Item 8 are included in this amended and restated
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A. A list of the financial statements filed herewith is found ar “Trem 15.
Exhibits, Financial Statenient Schedules.”

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated
the effectiveness of our disclosure concrols and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{¢) under
the Exchange Act} as of June 30, 2007. Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer concluded that as of June 30, 2007, our disclosure controls and procedures were (1) designed to ensure
that material information relating to us, including our consolidated subsidiaties, is made known to our chief
executive officer and chicf financial officer by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report was being prepared and (2) effective, in that they provide reasonable assurance that informa-
tion required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded,
processed, summarized and reported wichin the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms; and (ii)
accumulated and communicated to our management including our chief executive office and chief financial
officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosures,

No change in our internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to :materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information.

On August 1, 2007 and August 29, 2007, we entered into binding Securities Purchase Agreements with YA
Global Investments, referred to herein as YA Global, and Sranford Venture Capiral Holdings, Inc., referred to
herein as Stanford, respectively, to sell to each of YA Global and Stanford up to $5,000,000 of secured con-
vertible debentures and accompanying warrants for an aggregate gross proceeds of $10,000,000. The convert-
ible debenrures converrt into shares of our common stock art a fixed price of $0.90 per share subject to certain
adjustments, referred o herein as the fixed conversion price, for a period of two years immediately following
the signing date, provided that we have achieved the following milestones by January 31, 2008:

* successful completion of animal studies, other than toxicology studies, necessary for the advancement of
factor 5A1 in human clinical trials,

* the engagement of a contract research organization for human clinical studies of factor 5A1, and

* the signing of at least one (1) corporate partnership or license agreement after August 1, 2007 with

agricultural companies urilizing our proprierary placform.

After the second anniversary of the signing date, or if we do not achieve the foregoing milestones by january
31, 2008, the convertible debentures may convert into shares of our common stock at the lower of the fixed
conversion price or 80% of the lowest daily volume-weighted average price, referred to herein as the VWAP, of
the common stock during the five wrading days prior to the conversion date. The maturity date of each of the
convertible debentures for YA Global and Stanford is December 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010, respectively.
Currently, at the fixed conversion price, the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of
the convertible debentures and exercise of warrants represents, in the aggregate, 25,000,000 shares, plus an
estimated additional 2,000,000 shares for the payment of interest in stock under the convertble debentures.

Pursuant to the terms of the Securities Purchase Agreements, we are required to seck shareholder approval to
increase the auchorized number of shares of commeon stock from 60,000,000 shares to 100,000,000 shares.

The convertible debentures accrue interest on their outstanding principal balances at an annual rate of 8%.
We have the option to pay interest in cash or, upon certain conditions, shares of common stock. If we pay
interest in shares of common stock, the stock will be valued ar a 10% discount to the average daily VWAP
for the five day trading petiod prior to the interest payment date, referred o herein as the interest shares.

Ar our option, we can redeem a portion of, or all of, the principal owed under the convertible debentures b

p princip b4
providing the investors with at least 30 business days’ written notice; provided that, at the time of receipt of
the nortice, either:

o If

¢ the VWAD of the common stock exceeds 130% of the Fixed Conversion Price for at least 20 of
30 prior trading days, and

s there is an effective registration statement for the resale of the common stock that will be issued
under the redemption

* ot we redeem a portion, ot all, of the principal owed at 2 20% premium above the principal then
outstanding and any accrued interest thereupon.

If we redeem all or any of the principal outstanding under the convertible debentures, we will pay an amount
equal to the principal being redeemed plus accrued interest.
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If there is an effective registration statement for the resale of the shares underlying the converrible debentures
or if such shares become 144(k) eligible, we will have the option to force the investors to convert 50% and
100% of our then-outstanding convertible debentures if our common stock price exceeds 150% and 175% of
the fixed conversion price. respectively, for any 20 out of 30 trading days; provided that such forced conversion
meers certain conditions, referred to herein as the call option. If we exercise our call option prior to the third
anniversary of the signiny date, we will issue additional warrants to the investor equal to 50% of the number
of shares underlying the convertible debenture subject to the forced conversion. These warrants will be exercis-
able ar the fixed conversion price and will have the same maturity as the other warrants issued under the YA
Global Financing.

Our obligations under the convertible debentures are secured by all of our and our subsidiary’s assets and
intellectual property, as evidenced by the Security Agreements and the Patent Security Agreements. Pursuant
to a subordination agreeraent, YA Global is the senior secured credizor.

YA Global and Stanford ‘will also be issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 5,555,555 and 8,333,333
shares, respectively, of our common stock, exercisable six months and one day from the date of issuance until
their expiration on the date that is five years from the date of issuance. The warrants will be issued in two series.
Generally, the Series A warrants may be issued prior to stockholder approval, while the Series B warrants are
only issued after stockholder approval. The exercise price of the Series A warrants is $1.01 per share, and the
exercise price of the Series B warrants is $0.90 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The warrants provide
a right of cashless exercise if, at the time of exercise, there is no effective registration statement registering the
resale of the shares underlying the warrants.

"The conversion rate of each convertible debenture and the exercise price of the Series B warrants are subject
to adjustment for cerrain evencs, including dividends, stock splits, combinations and the sale of our common
stack or securities convertible into or exercisable for our common stock at a price less than the then applicable
conversion or exercise price.

The investors have a right of first refusal on any future funding that involves the issuance of our capital stock

for so long as a portion of the convertible debentures is outstanding.

Under the registration rights agreements executed with each of YA Global and Stanford, we have agreed 1o file
an initial registration stazement with the SEC to register the resale of common stock issuable to YA Global
{including interest shares), such shares are also referred to herein as the registrable shares, within 30 days of the
first closing of the YA Global deal. Also, we have agreed to respond to all SEC comment letters as promptly as
reasonably possible and to use our best efforts to have the registration statement declared effective within 120
days of the aforementioned first closing. The initial registration statement covering YA Global’s shares shall
include 33% of the public float. If the registrable shares remain outstanding after all shares under the initial
registration statement have been sold, we may be required to file additional registration statements for those
registrable shares. These registracion rights will cease once the registrable shares are eligible for sale by the
investor without restriction under Rule 144(k). Upon certain events, we have agreed to pay as partial liqui-
dated damages an amount equal to 1.0% of the aggregate purchase price paid by the investors for any convert-
ible debentures then held by the investors, but these payments may nor exceed 12% of the aggregate purchase
price paid by the investots.

The gross proceeds of the sale will be $10,000,000 before payment of 3.25% of the purchase price in com-
missions to Wainwright % Co., Inc., also referred to herein as the placement agent. We will issue to the
placement agent warrants to purchase 7% of the purchase price, or 777,777 shares, of our common stock
with similar terms to the warrants thar will be issued to the investors. We paid YA Global and Stanford a
non-refundable structuring/due diligence fee of $30,000 each. We have also agreed 1o pay YA Global and
Stanford a commitment fee of 5% and 7%, respectively, of its purchase price, which is paid proportionately
at cach closing.
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Specifics of YA Global Financing

Pursuant to the YA Global Securities Purchase Agreement, we have issued a convertible debenture in the
amount of $1,500,000 and will issue and sell o YA Global:

(1} a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on che date the registration statement 1s
filed, pursuant ro the registration rights agreement, with the SEC; and

(2) a convertible debenture in the amount of $2,000,000 on the date thar is the later of the following:

s the date stockholders approve the transaction, or

» the date the reistration statement is declared effective by the SEC.

The convertible debentures and warrants issued and issuable to YA Global ar the first rwo closings will be
subject to a cap on the number of shares of common stock that can be issued upon the conversion of the
convertible debentures and the exercise of the warrants, until the Company receives shareholder approval.
The cap of 3,493,000 shares is equal to 19.99% of the Company’s outstanding common stock on the signing
date. In addition, there is 2 maximum overall cap of 30,500,000 shares for the YA Global financing.

Specifics of Stanford Financing
Pursuant to the Stanford Securities Purchase Agreement, we will issue and sell to Stanford:

(1) a convertible debenture in the amount of $2,000,000 and warrants within two business days of
the later of the following;

s the date stockholders approve the transaction, or

» the date that the initial registration statement relating to the YA Global financing

is filed with the SEC;

(2) a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the date the Company enters into a
supply agreement with a third party manufacturer for sufficient quantity and quality of nano-
particle for encapsulation of Factor SA gene to be used in toxicology and proof of concept
human srudies under a United States Food and Drug Administration, referred to herein as
FDA, accepted Investigational New Drug application, referred o hetein as IND application;

and

(3) a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the date the Company enters into a
supply agreement with a third party manufacturer to provide sufficient quantity and quality

of Factor SA DNA to carry out toxicology and proof of concept human studies under a FDA
accepted IND applicarion.

The convertible debentures and warrants issuable to Stanford will be subject to a maximum cap of 31,888,888

on the number of shares of common stock that can be issued upon the conversion of the convertible debentures
and the exercise of the warrants.

59 SENESCO 2007




PART {l|

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Cur Directors and Execuiive Officers, on Septernber 30, 2007, together with their ages and business back-

grounds were as follows:

Name Age Served Since  Position(s) with Senesco

Rudolf Stalder v 66 1999 Chairman of the Board and Director

Bruce C. Galron 55 2001 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

John E. Thompson, Ph.D. 66 2001 Executive Vice President, Chief Scientific
Officer and Director

Sascha P Fedyszyn 32 1999 Vice President of Corporate Development
and Secretary

Joel Brooks 48 2000 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Richard Dondero 57 2004 Vice President of Research and Development

John N. Braca (2 49 2003 Direcror

Christopher Forbes® 56 1999 Director

Thomas C. Quick W@ 52 1999 Director

David Rector 3 60 2002 Director

Jack Van Hulst® 68 2007 Director

{1} Member of Nominating and Corperaye Governanee Cominictes
(2) Member of Audic Commitcee
{3} Membes of Compensation Comminet

Each Diirector holds office until the next Annual Meeting of shareholders and until his successor has been |

elected and qualified.

The principal occupations and business experience, for at least the past five (5) years, of each director and

executive officer is as follows:

Rudolf Stalder has been sur director since February 1999 and was appointed as our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer on Jantary 10, 2000. On October 4, 2001, Mr. Stalder resigned as our Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Stalder is a former member of the Executive Boards of Credit Suisse Group and Credit Suisse
First Boston and former Chief Executive Officer of the Americas Region of Credir Suisse Private Banking.
Mr. Stalder joined Credit Suisse in 1980 as a founding member and Deputy Head of the Multinational
Services Group. In 1986, he became Executive Vice President. He was named to Credit Suisse’s Execurive
Board in 1989. In 1990, he became Head of the Commercial Banking Division and a Member of the Execurtive
Committee. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Stalder was Chief Financial Officer of Credit Suisse First Boston and
a Member of the Executive Boards of Credit Suisse Group and Credit Suisse First Boston. He became head
of the Americas Region of Credir Suisse Private Banking in 1995 and retired in 1998. Prior to moving to
the United States, Mr. Stalder was a member of the Board of Directors for several Swiss subsidiaries of major
corporations including ARG, Bayer, BTR, Hoechst, Saint Gobain, Solvay and Sony. He is 2 fellow of the

World Economic Forum ind a board member of the Greater Bridgeport Symphony. He was a member of the
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Leadership Committee of the Consolidated Corporate Fund of Lincoln Center for the Performing Ares, Board
of The Ametican Baller Thearre, and a Trustee of Carnegie Hall. From 1991 through 1998, Mr. Stalder was
Chairman of the New York Chapter of the Swiss-American Chamber of Commerce. He continues to serve as
an Advisory Board Member of the American-Swiss Foundation. Mr. Stalder received a diploma in advanced
finance management at the International Management Development Institute in Lausanne, Switzerland in

1976. He completed the International Senior Managers Program at Harvard Universiry in 1985.

Bruce C. Galton has been our director since November 2001, and he was appointed our President and
Chief Execurive Officer on Ocrober 4, 2001. From April 2000 until June 2001, when it was acquired by
Transgenomic, Inc., Mr. Galton was President and Chief Operating Officer and a director of Annovis, Inc., a
manufacturer of specialry chemicals for DNA synthesis with operations in Pennsylvania and Glasgow, United
Kingdom. From January 1985 to May 1999, Mr. Galton held various senior management positions at Cistron
Biotechnology, Inc., including President and Chief Operating Officer from 1988 to 1997 and Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer from 1997 to 1999. Cistron Biotechnology, Inc. was engaged in the research
and development of certain cytokines, which act as key immune regulators. Mr. Galton is a trustee of the
Interfaith Food Pantry (Marris County New Jersey) and is a former member of the Borough of Madison, New
Jersey Downtown Development Commission and a former trustee of the Museum of Early Trades and Crafts.
M. Galron had alse served as a Councilman from 1996 through 1998 and a member of Madison’s Planning
Board from 1994 through 1998. Mr. Galton received a Bachelor of Science in Commerce with a major in
accounting from the University of Virginia in 1974 and an M.B.A. in finance from Fairleigh Dickinson
University in 1977,

John E. Thompson, Ph.D. has been our director since October 2001, Dr. Thompson was appointed our
President and Chief Execurive Officer in January 1999, and he continued in thar capacity until Seprember
1999 when he was appointed Executive Vice President of Research and Development. In July 2004, Dr.
Thompson became our Executive Vice President and Chief Scientific Officer. Dr. Thompson is the invenror
of the technology that we develop. Since July 2001, he has been the Associate Vice President, Research and,
from July 1990 to June 2001, he was the Dean of Science at the Universicy of Waterloo in Waterloo, Ontario,
Canada. Dr. Thompson has a Ph.D. in Biology from the University of Alberta, Edmonton, and he is a Fellow
of the Royal Society of Canada. Dr. Thompson is also the recipient of a Lady Davis Visiting Fellowship, the
Sigma Xi Award for Excellence in Research, the CSPP Gold Medal and the Technion Visiting Fellowship.

Sascha P Fedyszyn was appointed our Vice President of Corporate Development in January 1999 and was
appoinred our Secrerary in January 2000. Mr. Fedyszyn has been a Vice President of Senesco since its incep-
tion in June 1998. Mr. Fedyszyn was also a Research Associate at the Logistics Management Institute from
May 1995 to September 1995. Mr. Fedyszyn received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Biology from Princeton
University in June 1997,

Joel Brooks was appointed our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in December 2000. From September
1998 until Novemnber 2000, Mr. Brooks was the Chief Financial Officer of Blades Board and Skate, LLC, a
retail establishment specializing in the action sports industry. Mr. Brooks was Chief Financial Officer from
1997 unril 1998 and Controller from 1994 until 1997 of Cable and Company Worldwide, Inc. He also held
the position of Controller at USA Detergents, Inc. from 1992 undl 1994, and held various positions at several
public accounting firms from 1983 through 1992. Mr. Brooks received his Bachelor of Science degree in

Commerce with a major in Accounting from Rider University in February 1983,
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Richard Dondero was appointed our Vice President of Research and Development in July 2004. From July
2002 until july 2004, M:. Dondero was a Group Leader in the Proteomics Reagent Manufacturing division
of Molecular Staging, Inc., a biotech firm engaged in the measurement and discovery of new biomarkers.
From 1985 through June 2001, Mr. Dondero served in several roles of increasing responsibility through Vice
President of Operations and Product Development at Cistron Biotechnology, Inc. From 1977 through 1985,
Mr. Dondero served as a senior scientist at Johnson and Johnson, and from 1975 through 1977, as a scientist
at Becton Dickinson. Mr. Dondero recetved his Bachelor of Arts degree from New Jersey State Universiry in

1972 and his Master of S cience degree from Seton Hall University in 1976.

Jobn N. Braca has been our director since QOctober 2003. Mr. Braca has also served as a director and board
observer for other healthcare, technology and biotechnology companies over the course of his career. From
April 2006, Mr. Braca has been the managing director of Fountainhead Venture Group, a healthcare informa-
tion technology venture fund based in the Philadelphia area. From May 2005 through March 2006, Mr. Braca
was a consultant and advisor to GlaxeSmithKline management in their tesearch operations. From 1997 to
April 2005, Mr. Braca was a general partner and director of business investments for S.R. One, Limited, or
S.R. One, the venture casital subsidiary of GlaxoSmithKline. In addition, from January 2000 to July 2003,
Mr. Braca was a general parener of Euclid SR Partners Corporartion, an independent venture capital parmership.
Prior to joining S.R. One, Mr. Braca held various finance and operating positions of increasing responsibility
within several subsidiaries and business units of GlaxoSmithKline. Mr. Braca is a licensed Certified Public
Accountant in the state of Pennsylvania and is affiliated with the American [nstitute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Pennsylvania Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Braca received a Bachelor of
Science in Accounting from Villanova University and a Master of Business Administration in Marketing from

Saint Joseph's University.

Christopher Forbes has been our director since January 1999. Since 1989, Mr. Forbes has been Vice Chairman
of Forbes, Inc., which publishes Forbes Magazine and Forbes.com. From 1981 to 1989, Mr. Forbes was
Corporate Secretary at Forbes. Prior to 1981, he held the position of Vice President and Associate Publisher.
M. Forbes has been a dirzctor of Forbes, Inc. since 1977. Mr. Forbes is the Chairman of the American Friends
of the Louvre, and he also sits on the Boards of The Business Commitcee for the Arts, The Brooklyn Museum,
The Friends of New Jersey State Museurn, The New York Academy of Art, The Victorian Society in America
and the Prince Wales Foundation. He is also a member of the Board of Advisors of The Princeton University
Art Museum. Mr. Forbes received a Bachelor of Arcs degree in Arc History from Princeton University in 1972.
In 1986, he was awarded the honorary degree of Doctor of Humane Letters by New Hampshire College and in
2003 was appointed a Chevalier of the Legion of Honot by the French Government.

Thomas C. Quick has be=n our director since February 1999. Since 2003, Mr. Quick has been the President
of First Palm Beach Properiies, Inc. From 2001 through 2003, Mr. Quick was the Vice Chairman of Quick &
Reilly/Fleet Securities, Inc., successor to The Quick & Reilly Group, Inc., a holding company for four (4) major
financial services business=s. From 1996 until 2001, Mr. Quick was the President and Chief Operating Officer
and a director of Quick &: Reilly/Fleet Securities, Inc. From 1985 to 1996, he was President of Quick & Reilly,
Inc., a Quick & Reilly subsidiary and a national discount brokerage firm. Mr. Quick serves as a member of
the Board of Directors and compensation committee of B.E. Enterprises. He is also 2 member of the Board of
Directors of Best Buddies, The American Ireland Fund, Venetian Heritage, Inc. and serves on the [nvestment
Advisory Board for the St. Jude Children’s Hospital. He is a trustee of the National Corporate Theater Fund,
Cold Spring Harbor Labcratories, the Norton Museum, the Inter-City Scholarship Foundarion of New York
City, and an advisory board member of Christie, European. Mr. Quick is a graduate of Fairfield University.
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David Rector has been our director since February 2002. Mr. Rector also serves as a director and member of
the compensation and audit commitree of the Dallas Gold and Silver Exchange {formerly Superior Galleries,
Inc.) and a director and member of the audit committee of Southridge Technology Group, Inc. From May
2004 through December 2006, Mr. Rector had served in senior managemenr positions wicth Nanoscience
Technologies, Inc., 2 development stage company engaged in the development of DNA Nanotechnology. Also,
since 1985, Mr. Rector has been the Principal of The David Stephen Group, which provides enterprise con-
sulting services to emerging and developing companies in a variery of industries. From 1983 undl 1985, Mr.
Rector served as President and General Manager of Sunset Designs, Inc., a domestic and international manu-
facturer and marketer of consumer product eraft kits, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reckirt & Coleman
N.A. From 1980 until 1983, Mr. Recror served as the Director of Marketing of Sunset Designs. From 1971
until 1980, Mr. Rector served in progressive roles in both the financial and product marketing departments
of Crown Zellerbach Corporation, 2 multi-billion dollar pulp and paper industry corporation. Mr. Rector

received a Bachelor of Science degree in business/finance from Murray State University in 1969.

Jack Van Hulst has been our director since January 2007. Mr. Van Hulst also serves as a director and member
of the compensation committee of Napo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. He has more than 39 years of international
experience in the pharmaceudical industry. He began his career in 1968 at Organon, which was subsequently
acquired by AKZO, N.V,, the multinational human and animal healthcare company, where he was based in
Europe and the US and responsible for establishing AKZO’s position in the US in the manufacturing and
sales and marketing of fine chemicals. Mr. Van Hulst later became President of AKZO’s US Pharmaceurical
Generic Drug Business and was responsible for establishing AKZO in the US generic drug industry. From
1989 to 1999 Mr. Van Hulst successively owned and led two generic pharmaceurtical companies, improving
their operations and then selling them to a private equity group and a pharmaceutical company. From 1999 to
2005, he was Executive Vice President ar Puerto Rico-based MOVA Pharmaceutical Corporation, a contract

manufacturer to the pharmaceutical industry that recently merged with Canadian-based Patheon.

Board Determination of Independence

Under the current AMEX rules, a director will, among other things, qualify as an “independent director” if,

in the opinion of our board of directors, that person does not have a material relationship which would inter-
fere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. Qur board

of directors currently consists of Rudolf Stalder, Bruce C. Galton, John E. Thompson, Ph.D., John N. Braca,
Christopher Forbes, Thomas C. Quick, David Rector and Jack Van Hulst. We are currently traded on the
AMEX, which requires our board be comprised of a majority of independent directors. Our board of directors
has determined that each of Messrs. Stalder, Braca, Forbes, Quick, Rector and Van Hulst is an “independent
director” as defined under Sections 121(A) and 802 of the AMEX rules.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our Audic Committee is comprised of John N. Braca, David Rector and Thomas C. Quick. Mr. Braca
currently serves as the chairman of the Audir Committee. AMEX currently requires an Audic Commirree
comprised solely of independent directors. Messts. Braca, Rector and Quick are “independent” members of
our board of directors as defined in Rule 10A-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1234, as amended, or
the Exchange Act, and Sections 121(A) and 803 of the AMEX rules. In addition, our board of directors has
determined that Mr. Braca satisfies the definition of an audit committee “financial expert” as set forth in ltem
401(e) of Regulation 5-B promulgated by the SEC.
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Code of Businass Cor.duct and Ethics

Pursuant to the requireraents of Section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Section 807 of the
AMEX rules, on March 17, 2003, our board of directors adopted a Code of Business Ethics and Conduct,
which may also be founc. on our website at www.senesco.com. Our Code of Ethics contains written standards

designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

* honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of acrual or apparent conflicts of interest
between personal and professional relationships;

* full, fair, accu-ate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents filed with
the SEC;

» compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and reguladons;

* the prompt internal reporting of violations of our Code of Ethics to an approptiate person or
persons identified in our Code of Ethics; and

= accountability for adherence o our Code of Ethics.

Each of our employees, officers and directors completed a signed certification to document his or her

understanding of and compliance with our Code of Ethics.

Section 16fA) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires a company’s directors, officers and stockholders who beneficially
own more than 10% of any class of equity securities of the company registered pursuant to Section 12 of the
Exchange Act, collectively referred to herein as the Reporting Persons, to file initial starements of beneficial
ownership of securities and statements of changes in beneficial ownership of securities with respect to the
company’s equiry securit.es with the SEC. All Reporting Persons are required by SEC regulation o furnish us

with copies of all reports that such Reporting Persons file with the SEC pursuant to Section 16(a).

Based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us and upon written representations of
the Reporting Persons received by us, we believe that chere has been compliance with all Section 16(a) filing

requirements applicable :0 our Reporting Persons.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis explains the principles underlying our compensation policies and
decisions and the principal elements of compensation paid to our executive officers during Fiscal 2007. Qur
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the other executive officers included in the Summary
Compensation Table will be referred to as the “named executive officers” for purposes of this discussion. In
general, the compensation principles for our named executive officers are similar to those of all our other

executive officers.
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Compensation Objectives and Philosophy

The Compensation Committee, also referred to herein as the Commitree, of the Board of Directors is

responsible for the following:

* to discharge the Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of our direcrors and named executive
officers;

* o have overall responsibility for approving and evaluating our director and officer compensation
plans, policies and programs;

* to have responsibility for producing an annual report on execurtive compensation for inclusion in our
proxy statement; and

* to review and discuss with Senesco management, the Compensation Discussion & Analysis which is

included in Senesco’s annual proxy statement.

As part of this process, the Committee seeks to accomplish the following objectives with respect to our executive

compensation programs:

* to motivate, recruit and retain executives capable of meeting our strategic objectives;
* to provide incentives to ensure superior executive performance and successful financial results for us;
le'.ld

* to align the interests of executives with the long-term interests of our stockholders.
The Commirtee secks to achieve these objectives by:

* establishing a compensation structure that is both market competitive and internally fair, taking inco
account the value of the position in the marketplace;

¢ linking 2 substantial portion of compensation to our achievement of long-term and short-term financial
objectives and the individual’s contribution to the attainment of those objectives;

* providing risk for underachievement and upward leverage for overachievement of goals; and

* providing long-term equity-based incentives and encouraging direce share ownership by executives
with the intention of providing incentive-based compensation to encourage a long-term focus on

company profitabilicy and stockholder value.

Setting Executive Compensation

In Fiscal 2007, the Committee engaged J. Richard and Co., also referred to herein as J. Richard, a nationally
recognized compensation consulting firm, to provide competitive compensartion data and general advice on
our compensation programs and policies for our Chief Executive Officer, and J. Richard was available for
consulration with the Committee to discuss the compensation programs for our other named executive officers.
During Fiscal 2007, J. Richard performed a marker analysis of the compensation paid by comparable compa-
nies and provided the Committee with recommended compensation ranges for the Chief Executive Officer
based on the competirive dara. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer provided recommendations to the
Committee with respect to the compensation packages for those other named execurtive officers for Fiscal
2007, and the Committee also reviewed the Chief Executive Officer’s recommendation against compensation

paid by comparable companies.

&5
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It is the Committee’s objective 1o targer each component of compensarion listed below to be competitive
with comparable positions ar peer group companies, and to targer the toral annual compensarion of each
named execucive officer w.t the appropriate level for comparable positions at the competitive peer group com-
panies. Our list of peer group companies is as follows: Amarillo Biosciences, Inc., A.l: Pharma, Inc., Applied
NeuroSolutions, Inc., Autolmmune Inc., Avax Technologies, Inc., Cadus Corporation, Helix BioMedix,
Inc., ImmuCell Corporation, Medistem Laboracories, Inc., Microlsler, Inc., Millennium Biotechnologies
Group, Inc., Nanobac Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Neurologix, Inc., Opexa Therapeurics, Inc., Point Therapeutics,
Inc., Pro-Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Sanguine Corporation, Symbollon Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Synthetech, Inc.,

Synthetic Blood International, Inc., and TorreyPines Therapeutics, [ne.

However, in determining the compensation of each named executive officer, the Committee also considers a
number of other factors, including Senesco’s recent performance and the named executive officer’s individual
performance, the Chief Executive Officer’s recommendations, the importance of the executive’s position and
role in relation to execution of the Company's strategic plan, and the cost of living in the geographic area in
which the named executive officer’s office is located. There is no pre-established policy for allocation of com-
pensation between cash znd non-cash components or between short-term and long-term components. Instead,
the Committee determines the mix of compensation for each named executive officer based on its review of
the comperitive data and its subjective analysis of that individual’s performance and contribution to our financial
performance. For the Chief Executive Officer, for Fiscal 2008, the Committee set his performance rargets
and compensation levels based upon the inpur from the Compensation Committee’s consultant and from the
Chief Execurive Officer. For other named execurive officers, the Committee sets performance targets and com-

pensation levels after recciving recommendations from the Chief Executive Officer.

In selecting companies to survey for such compensation purposes, the Compensation Committee considered
many factors not directly associated with the stock price performance of those companies, such as geographic
locarion, development stige, organizational struceure and market capitalization. For this reason, there is not
a meaningful correlation between the companies included wichin the peer group identified for comparative

compensation purposes and the companies included within the RDG Micro Biotechnology Index.

Components of Compensation

For Fiscal 2007, our executive compensation program included the following components:
* base salary;
* annual short-term equity incentives; and

* change in control and other severance arrangements,

For Fiscal 2008, our executive compensation program included the following components:
* base salary;
* annual short-term equity incentives;
* long-term equitv incentive awards; and

* change in control and other severance arrangements.

The Commirree seeks to align the named executive officers’ and shareholders’ interests in a pay for perfor-
mance environment. On average, a large portion of an executive officer’s total compensation is at risk, with

the amounr actually paid tied to achievement of pre-established objectives and individual goals.
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Base Salary

In General — It is the Committee’s objective to set a competitive rate of annual base salary or consulting fees
for each named executive officer. The Commirtee believes competitive base salaries are necessary to attract and
retain top quality executives, since it is common practice for public companies to provide their executive officers
with a guaranteed annual component of compensartion that is not subject to performance risk. However, the

Commirtee recognizes that Senesco is still a development stage company, with little to no revenue currently.

When compared to comparable positions ar the competitive peer group companies, it is the Commitree’s
objective to target the base compensation level of executive officers below the 50th percentite because of our
current financial position. However, historically the compensation levels for our executive officers has been
below the 25th percentile of competitive peer group companies. However, in determining the compensation
of each executive officer, the Committee also considers a number of other factors, including recent Company
and individual performance, the CEQYs recommendations and cost of living. There is no pre-established policy
for allocation of compensation between cash and non-cash components or between shore-term and long-term
components. Instead, the Commitree determines the mix of compensation for each executive officer based on
its review of the competitive dara and its subjective analysis of that individual’s performance and contribution

to the Company’s financial performance.

Base Salary for Fiscal 2007 — For Fiscal 2007, each named executive officer’s salary, except for the President
and Chief Execurive Officer, was increased to cover cost of living increases. The table below shows annual

Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2007 base salary or consulting rates for each named executive officer:

2006 2007 %

Name Title Salary Salary Increase
Bruce C. Galton President and

Chief Executive Officer $ 242,500 $ 242,500 0.0%
John E. Thompson Executive Vice-President

and Chief Scientific Officer $ 62,4002 $ 65,000 @ 4.2%
Sascha P Fedyszyn Vice-President of Corporate

Development and Secretary $ 93,600 $ 97,500 4.2%
Joel Brooks Chief Financial Officer $ 139,100 $ 145,000 4.2%

and Treasurer
Richard Dondero Vice-President of Research

and Development $ 120,000 $ 125,000 4.2%

(1) Annual salary increases became effective January 1, 2007.
(2) Represents consulting fees paid under a consulting agreement.

Base Salary for Fiscal 2008 — The Committee has not approved any increases in base salary for Fiscal 2008,

bur it will consider a cost of living adjustment for the named executive officers for calendar 2008.

Annual Bonuses for Fiscal 2007 and Fiscal 2008 — Bonuses are determined at the discretion of the Board
of Directors based upon the recommendation of the Committee. There were no cash bonuses granted during

Fiscal 2007, and it is anticipated that there will be no cash bonuses granted for Fiscal 2008.
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Short Term Incentive Equity Awards

In General — A portion of each named officer's compensation is provided in the form of short-term equity
awards. It is the Committee’s belief that properly structured equity awards are an effective method of aligning

the short-term interests of our named executive officers with those of our stockholders.

Equity awards were made in the form of incentive stock options. The Committee has followed a grant practice
of tying equity awards 1o its annual calendar year-end review of individual performance, its assessment of our

performance and our operational results.

Incentive Stock Option Fiscal 2007 Awards — In Fiscal 2007, equity grants to our named executive officers
were in the form of incentive stock options, also referred herein as ISO’s. Each 1SO entitles the recipient to
purchase a stated amount of shares of common stock at a fixed price, which represents the closing market

price of the common stock on the day prior to the date of grant.

The President and Chief Executive Officer received 150's in the amount of 40,000 shares at an exercise price
of $1.08 on December 14, 2006. The ISO’s vest as follows: one-third on December 14, 2006; one-third on
December 14, 2007; and one-third on December 14, 2008,

The Chief Financial O-ficer, Executive Vice President, Vice President of Corporate Development and Vice
President of Research and Development each received ISO’s in the amount of 25,000 shares at an exercise
price of $1.08 on December 14, 2006. The I1SO’s vest as follows: one-third on December 14, 2006; one-third
on December 14, 2007 and one-third on December 14, 2008.

Restricted Stock Unit Short-Term Incentive Plan for Fiscal 2008 — The Company’s Restricted Stock Unit
Short-Term Incentive Plan, or STIE covering Fiscal 2008, equity grants to our named executive officers will
be in the form of restricted stock unirs, also referred to herein as RSU’s. Each RSU entitles che recipient to
receive one share of our common stock upon vesting ot upon a designated date or event following such vest-
ing. All RSUs will be avvarded together and will be available for distribution on or around July-August 2008
upon evaluation of performance objectives that have been identified further below under the heading STIP

Performance Objectives, or SPO’s.

The Committee will follow a grant pracrice of tying equity awards to its annual year-end review of individual
performance, its assessment of our performance and our financial results. Accordingly, it is expected thar any
equity awards to the named executive officers will be made on an annual basis promptly after the release of \

our financial results. The Committee has established short-term incentive grant guidelines for eligible named

executive officers each year based on competitive annual grant daca provided by management’s compensation

consultant and by ]. Richard, the Committee’s compensation consultant.

The total amount of REU’s in the STIP pool awarded to our named execucive officers will be 175,000 shares
representing one percent (19) of the outstanding shates as of july 1, 2007. The specific amount of RSU’s
awarded to each individually named executive officer relating 1o the performance objectives are based on (i)
the funcrional areas asszssed by the underlying detailed objectives of each named executive officer, (i1} the
weight of each of the functions of each named executive officer, and (iii} the contriburion to each funcrion by

each named executive officer.

The amount and percentage of the RSU’s awarded to all the named executive officers as a whole for the their

contributions to each of the STIP Performance Objectives will be as follows:
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STIP Performance Objective Percentage of STIP Total Amount of RSUs
RSUs Award Pool Awarded As a Whole
to All Named Executive
Officers per SPO

First STIP Performance Qbjective. 45% 78,750

Contributions Relating to Cancer Target

Second STIP Performance Objective. 25% 43,750
Contributions Relating to Financing

Third STIP Performance Objective. 15% 26,250
Contributions Relating to Licensing and Support

Fourth STIP Performance Objective. 4% 7.000

Conuributions Relating o Intellectual Property Administration

Fifth STIP Performance Objective. 3% 5,250

Contributions Relating to Investor Relacions

Sixth STIP Performance Objecrive. 1% 1,750
Conuibutions Relating to Website Administration

Seventh STIP Performance Objective, 5% 8,750
Contributions Relating to Audits and Securities Filings

Eighth STIP Performance Objective. 1% 1,750

Contributions Relating to the American Stock Exchange Duties

Ninth STIP Performance Objective, 1% 1,750

Contriburions Relating to the Future Financing Plan

Each named executive officer eligible to receive an award pursuant to the STIP is required to be employed by
the Company upon vesting date in or around July-August 2008 (the “Vesting Date”). If a named executive
officer is no longer employed by the Vesting Date, then such named executive officer’s respective RSU award
tied to such STIP Performance Objective will be forfeited. The Committee shall have the sole discretion ro
reinstate any eliminared portion or segment of a STIP Performance Objective award or that portion of a STIP

Performance Objective award for an award 10 a successor to the STIP Performance Objectives.

‘The amount and percentage of RSU’s awarded to the named executive officers individually for cheir contribu-
tions to each of the STIP Performance Objectives may be modified, altered and redistributed by the Chief
Executive Officer, subject to Committee review, to reflect (1) the actual performance of each named executive
officer, (i1) the potential reassignment of duties of each named executive officer, and (iii) the unanticipared
accomplishments by any of the named executive officers after the outset of the STIP that contribure signifi-
cantly to shareholder value during fiscal 2008.
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Subject to the preceding paragraph, the approximate individual amounts and percentages of RSU awards to the named

executive officers are as follows:

Bruce C. Galton John E. Thompson Sascha P. Fedyszyn  Joel Brooks Richard Dondero
President and Executive Vice- Vice-President of Chief Financial Vice-President of
Chie Executive President and Corporate Officer and Research and
Gfficer Chief Scientific Development Treasurer Developmant
Otficer and Secretary
Percentage of 78,750 RSU's 20% 25% 10% 10% 5%
Awarded for First SPO
Number of RSU's Awarded 15,750 19,687.5 1875 1875 21,562.5
for the First SPO
Percentage of 43,750 RSU's 5% 0% 5% 45% 5%
Awarded for the Second 5P0
Number of RSU's Awarded 14,687.5 0 21875 19,681.5 2,187.5
for the Second SPO
Percentage of 26,250 RSU’s 35% 15% 5% 5% 10%
Awarded for the Third SPO
Numher of RSU's Awarded 14,1875 39375 91875 1,3125 2,625
for the Third SP0
Percentage of 7,000 RSU's 4% 30% 30% 0% 30%
Awarded for the Fourth SPQ
Number of RSU's Awarded 700 2,100 2,100 0 2108
for the Fourth SPO
Percentage of 5,250 RSU's 30% 0% 30% 30% 10%
Awarded far the Fifth SPO
Number of RSU’s Awarded 1.575 0 1.575 1575 525
tar the Fifth SPD
Parcentage of 1,750 RSU's 10% 0% 10% 10% 10%
Awarded for the Sixth SPO
Number of RSU's Awarded 175 0 1225 175 175
for the Sixth SPO
Percentage of 8,750 RSU's 20% 5% 10% 60% 5%
Awarded for the Seventh SPO
Number of RSU's Awarded 1,750 4315 875 5.250 4375
far the Seventh SPQ
Percentage of 1,750 RSU’s 50% 0% 0% 50% 0%
Awarded for the Eighth SPO
Number of RSU’s Awarded 875 0 0 875 0
for the Eighth SPO
Percentage of 1,750 RSU's 30% 10% 10% 30% 20%
Awarded for the Ninth SPO
Number of RSU's Awarded 525 175 175 525 350
for the Ninth SPO
Total RSU's Awarded 50,225 26,338 25,200 37215 35,962
Percentage of 175,000 RSU’s 29% 15% 14% % 21%

Awarded for All SPOs
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It is the Committee’s belief that equity awards are essential to the retention of the named executive officers
and crucial to our long-term financiat successes. The equity award’s have vesting schedules that provide a
meaningful incentive for the named exccutive officer to remain in our service. These equity awards also serve
as an important vehicle to achieve the Committee’s objective of aligning management and stackholders’

interests. Equity awards in the form of ISO’s and RSU’s promote all of these objectives.

Long-Term Incentive Equity Awards

In General — A portion of each named executive officer’s compensation is provided in the form of long-term
incentive equity awards as set forth in the Long-Term Incentive Plan (che “LTIP”) discussed below. It is the
Committee’s belief that properly structured equity awards are an effective method of aligning the long term

interests of our named executive officers with those of our stockholders.

There was no formal LTIP in Fiscal 2007. Beginning with Fiscal 2008, equity awards will be made in the
form of restricted stock units. The Committee will follow a grant practice of tying equiry awards upon of the
completion of certain event milestones (“LT1P Event Milestones”) discussed below. Accordingly, it is expected
that any equity awards to the named executive officers will be made promptly after the completion of each
LTIP Event Milestone. The Commirtee has established long-term incentive grant guidelines for eligible named
execurive officers based on competitive annual grant data provided by management’s compensation consultant

and by J. Richard, the Committee’s compensation consultant.

Long-Term Incentive Plan — Beginning on Qctober 23, 2007 (the “LTIP Effective Dare”) and ending on the
earlier of (i) the completion of the Third LTI Event Milestone or (ii) three {3) years from the LTIP Effective Dhate,
LTIP equity grants to our named executive officers will be in the form of RSU’s. Each RSU entitles the recipient w

receive one share of our common stock upon vesting or upon a designated date or event following such vesting.

The total RSU's in the LTIP pool awarded to our named executive officers will be 500,000 shares representing
three percent (3%%) of the outstanding shares as of July 1, 2007.

The amount and percentage of the RSU’s awarded to all the named executive officers as 2 whole for the

completion of each of the three LTIP Event Milestones are as follows:

LTIP Event Milestone Percentage of LTIP Total Amount of RSUs Awarded
RSU Award Pool As a Whote to Alf Mamed
Executive Officers

First LTIP Event Milestone. The Execution
of a Research Agreement to Conduct

Phase I/1I Trials at a Research Facilicy 20% 100,000

Second LTIP Event Milestone. The Filing

and Acceptance by the U.S. FDA of an

investigation new drug application, or IND,

by the date set by the Committee 20% 100,000

Third LTIP Event Milestone. The Successful
Completion of Phase 1/11 Trials Approved by
the FDA by the date set by the Commirtee 60% 300,000
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Each named executive officer eligible to receive an award pursuant to the LTIP is required to be employed by the
Company upon the completion of each individual LTIP Event Milestone. If a named executive officer is no longer
employed by the Company before the completion of an individual LTIP Event Milestone, then such named executive
officer’s respective RSU award tied to such uncompleted LTIP Event Milestone will be forfeited and so will that total
portion of the whole LTIP award pool. The Committee shall have the sole discretion to reinstate any eliminated portion
or segment of a LTIP Event Milestone award or that portion of a LTIP Event Milestone award for a successor to the
LTIP Event Milestones.

The LTIP awards for each named executive officer upon the completion of each individual LTII* Event Milestone shall

be as follows:

% of Total RSU's No. of RSU’s No. of RSU's No. of RSU's
Awarded Upon  Awarded Upon  Awarded Upon  Awarded Upon
Completion of Completion of Completion of Completion of

aLTIP First LTIP Second LTIP Thrid LTIP

Name Title Event Milestone  Event Milestone Event Milestone  Event Milestone
Bruce C. Galton President and

Chief Execurive Officer 25% 25,000 25,000 75,000
John E. Thompson Executive Vice-President and

Chief Scientifiz Officer 25% 25,000 25,000 75,000
Sascha P Fedyszyn  Vice-President of Corporate

Development ind Secretary  10% 10,000 10,000 30,000
Joel Brooks Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer 10% 10,000 10,000 30,000
Richard Dondere  Vice-President of Research

and Developm.ent 30% 30,000 30,000 90,000

It is the Commitree’s belief thar RSU awards are essential to the rerention of the named executive officers, crucial to our
long-term financial successes and will help to advance the share ownership guidelines, which may be established by the
Committee for the executive officers, The RSU's have award schedules which provide a meaningful incentive for the
named executive officer to remain in our service. These equity awards also serve as an important vehicle to achieve the
Comnmittee’s objective of aligning management and stockholder interests. Equity awards in the form of RSU's promote
all of these objectives in a manner which is less dilutive to the stockholders than traditional option grants and provide a
more direct correlarion berween our compensation cost that we must record for financial accounting purposes and the

value delivered to the named execurive officers.

Market Timing of Equity Awards. The Compensation Committee does not engage in any marker timing of the equity
awards made to the executive officers or other award recipients, and accordingly, there is no established practice of
timing our awards in advance of :he release of favorable financial results or adjusting the award date in connection

with the release of unfavorable financial developments affecting our business.

ANNUAL REPORT 12




Executive Benefits and Perquisites

In General — The named executive officers also are provided with certain market competitive benefits. They
are currently not provided with any perquisites. It is the Commirtee’s belief thar such benefits are necessary
for us ro remain competitive and to atrract and retain top caliber executive officers, since such benefits are
typically provided by companies in the biotechnology industry and with other companies with which we

compete for executive talent.

Retirement Benefits — The named executive officers may participate in the company-wide 401(k} plan.

We do not make any contriburions to the 401 (k) plan and do nor have any additional retirement benefits.

Other Benefits and Perquisites — All administrative employees, including the named executive officers, are
eligible 1o receive standard health, disability, and life insurance. We do not provide any additional benefics

and perquisites.

IRC Section 162(m} compliance

As a result of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, publicly-traded companies such as us are not
allowed a federal income tax deduction for compensation, paid to the Chief Execurive Officer and the four
other highest paid executive officers, to the extent that such compensation exceeds $1 million per officer in
any one year and does not otherwise qualify as performance-based compensation. Currentdy, our stock option
compensation packages are structured so that compensation deemed paid to an executive officer in connection
with the exercise of a stock option should qualify as performance-based compensarion that is not subject to
the $1 million limitation. However, other awards, like RSU’s, made under that Plan may or may not so
qualify. In establishing the cash and equity incentive compensation programs for the execurive officers, it is
the Committee’s view that the potential deductibility of the compensation payable under those programs
should be only one of a number of relevant factors taken into constderation, and nor the sole governing factor.
For that reason the Committee may deem it appropriate to continue to provide one or more executive officers
with the opportunity to earn incentive compensation, including cash bonus programs tied to our financial
performance and restricted stock units awards, which may be in excess of the amount deducrible by reason
of Section 162(m) or other provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. [t is the Commirttee’s befief that cash
and equity incentive compensation must be maintained at the requisite level to artracr and rerain the execurive
officers essential to our financial success, even if part of thar compensation may noc be deductible by reason
of the Section 162(m} limitacion. For Fiscal 2007, none of our executive officer’s compensation reached the

$1 million limitation. The Committee will continue to evaluate such $1 million limitation in Fiscal 2008.

Report of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation, Discussion and Analysis with
management, and based on this review and these discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to
the Board of Directors thar the Compensation, Discussion and Analysis be included in the Company’s amended

and restated Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

This report is submitted on behalf of the
Compensation Commirtee

David Rector, Chairman

john. N Braca

Jack Van Hulst

n
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Summary Compensation Table

The following Tables sets forth information concerning compensation for services rendered in all capacities during the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 awarded to, carned by or paid to: (i) each person who served as our Chief Executive
Officer at any time during fiscal 2007; (ii) our executive officers other than the Chiefl Executive Officer who were serving
as our executive officers at the end of fiscal 2007; and (iii) those individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided
but for the fact that the individual was nort serving as our executive officer at the end of fiscal 2007, collectively referred

to herein as the Named Executives.

Change in
Pension Value &
Nonqualified
Non-Equity  Deferred
Incentive Plan Compen- Al Other

Stock  Option  Compen- sation Compen-
Name and Year Salary Bonus Awards Awards sation Earnings sation Total
Principal Position (1) $2 $E (8 {$) 14} {$) () () ()
(a) (b) (c) {d) (e) {f) (g} {h) (i) {i}
Bruce C. Galton 2007 $244,722 - - $34,000 - - - $ 278,722
{President and
Chief Executive
Officer)
Joel Brooks 2007 $143450 - - $21,250 - - - $ 164,700
{Chief Financial
Officer and
Treasurer)
Richard Dondere 2007 §$ 124,500 -~ - $21,250 - - - $ 145,750
{Vice-President
of Research

and Development)

Sascha P. Fedyszyn 2007 § 95,750 - - $21,250 - - - $ 117,000
(Vice-President

of Corporate

Development

and Secretary)

John E. Thompson

Ph.D. 2007 § 63,700 - - $21,250 - -

{Execurive Vice-

$ 84,950

President and
Chief Scientific
Officer)

(1) For the Company's fiscal year ended June 30,

{2) Such amount represents actual salary paid.

(3) There were no bonuses earned or paid durinz the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,

(4) Such amount represents the black-sholes value of scock options granted during the fiscal year.
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Executive Compensation Agreements

On Ocrober 4, 2001, we hired Bruce C. Galton as our new President and Chief Execurive Officer. In conjunction
with Mr. Galton’s appointment, we entered into a three-year employment agreement with Mr. Galton, effective
Qctober 4, 2001. The agreement shall automarically renew for successive one-year terms thereafter, unless
written notice of termination is provided at least 120 days prior to the end of the applicable term. The term
of Mr. Galton'’s employment agreement currently runs through October 3, 2008. The agreement provides
Mr. Galton with an annual base salary of $200,000 plus certain benefits, including potential bonuses, equity
awards and other perquisites as determined by our board of directors. Our board of directors have since
approved several increases in Mr. Galton’s antnual base salary, which is currently $255,000. The agreement
also provides that Mr. Galton is entitled to a Jump sum payment of 1.5 times his base annual salary plus an
additional 1.5 rimes his base salary, payable in common stock in three annual installments, if his employment
with us is terminated without cause or with good reason, as defined in his employment agreement. If Mr.
Galton’s employment with us is terminated pursuanr to a change in control, as defined in his employment
agreement, he is entitled to receive the difference between the monies actually received upon termination

and 1.5 times his annual base salary plus an additional 1.5 times his base salary, payable in common stock.

On January 21, 1999, Sascha > Fedyszyn entered into an employment agreement with Senesco for a term

of two (2} years, whereby we agreed to pay Mr. Fedyszyn an annual base salary of $36,000 plus certain benefits,
including potential bonuses, equity awards and other perquisites as determined by the board of directors. Our
board of directors has since approved several increases in Mr. Fedyszyn's base salary, which is currently $97,500
per annum. Mr. Fedyszyn's employment contract automatically renews for additional one-year periods, unless
terminated by either party before September in the year prior to expiration. The term of Mr. Fedyszyn’s
employment agreement currently runs through January 21, 2009. The agreement alse provides that Mr.
Fedyszyn is entitled to a lump sum payment of 2.0 times his base annual salary if his employment with us

is terminated without cause or with good reason, as defined in his employment agreemenc. If Mr. Fedyszyn’s
employment with us is terminated pursuant to a change of control, as defined in his employment agreement,
he is entitled ro receive the difference between the monies actually received upon termination and 2.99 times

his annual base salary.

On July 1, 2003, Joel Brooks entered into an employment agreement with Senesco for a term of three (3) years.
The agreement shall automatically renew for successive one-year rerms thereafter, unless written notice of
termination is provided at least 120 days prior to the end of the applicable term. The term of Mr. Brooks
employment agreement currently runs through June 30, 2008, The agreement provides Mr. Brooks with an
annual base salary of $122,000 plus certain benefits, including potential bonuses, equiry awards and other
perquisites as determined by the board of directors. Our board of directors has since approved several increases
in Mr. Brooks' base salary, which is currently $145,000. The agreement also provides that Mr. Brooks is entitled
to a lump sum payment of 1.0 times his base annual salary if his employment with us is terminated without

cause or with good reason or pursuant to a change in control, as defined in his employment agreement.

On July 19, 2004, we hired Richard Dondero as our new Vice President of Research and Development.

In conjunction with Mr. Dondero’s appointment, we entered into a three-year employment agreement with
Mr. Dondero, effective July 19, 2004. The agreement shall automatically renew for successive one-year terms
thereafter, unless written notice of termination is provided at least 120 days prior to the end of the applicable
term. The term of Mr. Dondero’s employment agreement currently runs through July 19, 2008. The agreement
provides Mr. Dondero with an annual base salary of $110,000 plus certain benefits, including potential

bonuses, equity awards and other perquisites as determined by our board of direcrors. Our board of directors
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has since approved several increase: in Mr. Dondero’s base salary, which is currently $125,000. The agreement also provides
that Mr. Dondero is entitled to a lump sum pavment of 1.0 times his base annual salary if his employment with us is
rerminared without cause or with good reason, as defined n his employment agreement. If Mr. Dondero’s employment
with us is rerminated pursuant to a change in control, as defined in his employment agreement, he is entitled to receive

the difference berween the monies actually received upon rermination and 1.0 times his annual base salary.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following Grants of Plan Based Awards table provides additional information about stock and option awards and

equity incentive plan awards granied to our named executive ofticers during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

All Other
All Other Option
Stock Awards;
Awards; Numberof Excercise  Gram
Estimated Future Payouts Estimated Future Payouts  Number  Securities or Base  Date Fair
Under Non-Equity Incentive Under Equity Incentive of Shares Under- Priceof  Value of
Plan Awards Plan Awards of Stock lying Option Equity
Grant Threshald Target  Max Threshold Target  Max or Units Options Awards  Awards

Name Date s s (s} {#) (# ] {# i# 18/8h) {s)
{a) (b} (e (d} (e) 1] {g) (h) (i} iy (k} (2} (K]
Bruce C.
Galton 12/14/2006 - - - - - - - 40,000 $1.08  $34,000
Joel
Brooks 12/14/2006 - - - - - - - 25,000 $1.08  $21,250
Richard
Dondero  12/14/2006 - - - - - - - 25,000  $1.08 $21,250
SaschaP
Fedyszyn 12/14/2006 - - - - - - - 25000  $1.08 $21.250
JohnE.
Thompson
Ph.D. 12/14/2006 - - - - - - - 25,000 $1.08 $21,250

{1) One-third of such oprions were exercisable 0 1 the date of grant, one-third of such opriens will become exercisable on December 14, 2007 and one-third of such

options will become exercisable on Decembe - 14, 2008.
(2) Represents the closing marker price on Decenber 13, 2007.
(3) Represents the black-sholes value of such options on the date of grant..
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Year-End

The following table summarizes the equity awards we have made to our named executive officers which are outstanding

as of June 30, 2007.

Options Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Equity Incentive Plan
Incentive Plan Awarids;
Equity Incentive Awards; Market or
Number of Plan Awards: Number of  Payout Value
Number of  Securities  Number of Number of Unearned of Unearned
Securities  Underlying  Securities Shares or  Market Value Shares, Units  Shares, Units
Underlying Unexercised Underlying Units of Stock of Shares or or Other of Other
Unexercised Options (#) Unexercised Option Option That Have  Units of Stock  Rights That  Rights That
Options (#) Unexer- Unearned Exercise  Expiration Not Vested That Have Not  Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable  cisable Options {#) Price ($} Date # Vested (§) Vested (#) Vested (§)
(a} (b} {c) {d) (e} ] ta) ] i} il
Bruce C.
Galton 130,000 - - $2.10 10/05/2011 - - - -
300,000 - - $2.05 12/01/2011 - - - -
50,000 - - $2.16 06/19/2013 - - = -
30,000 - - $3.15 12/16/2013 = - - -
35,000 - - $3.45 12/16/2014 - - - -
40,000 13,334 - $1.40 12/14/2015 - - - -
40,000 26,666 - $1.08 12/14/2016 - - - -
Joel
Brooks 25,000 - - $2.25 12/01/2010 - - - -
15,000 - - $2.15 11/01/2011 - - - -
12,500 - - $1.65 10/09/2012 - - - -
20,000 - - $2.16 06/19/2013 - - - -
15,000 - - $3.15 12/16/2013 - - - -
20,000 - - $3.45 12/16/2014 - - - -
25,000 8,333 - $1.40 12/14/2015 - - - -
25,000 16,667 - $1.08 12/14/2016 - - - -
Richard
Dondero 10,000 - - $3.45 12/16/2014 - - - -
25,000 8,333 - $1.40 12/14/2015 - - - -
25,000 16,667 - $1.08 12/14/2016 - - - -
Sascha P.
Fedyszyn  30.000 - - $3.50 09/07/2019 - - - -
35,000 - - $2.25 12/01/2010 - - - -
10,000 - - $2.15 11/01/2011 - - - -
10,000 - - $1.65 10/09/2012 - - - -
20,000 - - $2.16 06/19/2013 - - - -
15,000 - - $3.15 12/16/2013 - - - -
20,000 - - $3.45 12/16/2014 - - - -
20,000 6,667 - $1.40 12/14/2015 - - - -
25,000 16,666 - $1.08 12/14/2016 - - - -
John E.
Thompson
Ph.D. 80,000 - - $2.05 12/01/2011 - - - -
20,000 - - $2.35 01/07/2013 - - - -
20,000 - - $3.15 12/16/2013 - - - -
55,000 - - $3.45 12/16/2014 - - - -
20,000 6,667 - $1.40 12/14/2015 - - - -
25,000 16,666 - $1.08 12/14/2016 - - -
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Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, and Change-in-Control Arrangements

Executive Severance. Certain of our named executive officer’s have employment agreements which contain
severance provisions. Tae following rable shows the potential incremenral payments 1o our named executive
officers in the event of their termination or termination in connection with a change of control of our company

as of June 30, 2007.

Bruce C. Galton Joet Brooks Richard Dondero Sasha Fedyszyn
Without  Change in Without Changein  Without Change in Without Change in
Cause Control Cause Control Cause  Control Cause  Control
Benefit 3 $ $ $ $ $ L 3
Cash Severancet? $386,025 $386,025 $146,400 $146,400 $127,000 $127,000 $195,400 $292,123
# of Months 18 18 12 12 12 12 24 36
Equity
Unvested Restricred Stock $ - $- $- 5 - $. $ - $ - 5 -
Unvested RSU's S - $- 3 - $ - § - $ - $ - 5 -
Unvested Options? $7.213  $7,213 5 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Coemmon Stock®! $386,025 $380.025 5 - $ - 5 - 3 - $ - $ -
Other Benefits
Health, Disabilicy and
Life Insurance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5 - $ -
Tortal $779.263 §779,263 $146,400 $146,400 3$127,000 $127,000 $195400 $292,123

{1} John E. Thompson Ph.L, is not included un this table as he does not have an employment contract or any rermination or change in
control arrangements.

(2) Such amounts are payable as a lump sum.

{3) Calculated usin% the blac k-sholes value of unvested optiens at June 30, 2007. The assumptions used were a market price of $1.15,
which was the closing pr ce of our common stock on June 29, 2007, volatility of 80%. a term of 90 days, a risk-free interest rate of
4.68% and « dividend yizld of zera. Unvested aptions at Jure 30, 2007 were 13,334 at an exercise price of $1.40 and 26,666 at an
exercise price of $1.08.

{4) Mz. Galton in entitled ta receive an amount equal to one and one-half times his base salary, payable in the form of common stock
in three annual installments, commencing on (rlhc date of termination, to be calculated based upon the market price of the commen
stock at each installmenr date.

ANNUAL REPORT 18




Equity Compensation Plans

The following table reflects information relating to equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2007.

Number of securities Weighted-average
to be issued upon exercise price of Number of securities remaining
exercise of outstanding outstanding opticns, available for future issuance
options, warrants and rights warrants and rights under equity compensation plans
Stock Option plans approved
by security holders 2,646,000 $2.33 3,264,000@
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders - - -
Total 2,646,000 $2.33 3,264,000@

(1} Issued pursuant to our 1998 Stack Plan.
(2) Available for future issuance pursuant to our 1998 Stock Plan.

Compensation Committee Interiocks and Insider Participation

The members of the Compensation Committee from July 1, 2007, through February 21, 2007, were David Rector,
John N. Braca and Rudolf Stalder. From February 21, 2007 through present, our Compensation Commitiee was
comprised of David Recror, John. N. Braca and Jack Van Hulst. No member of the Compensation Committee is or has
been an officer or employee of our company or any of our subsidiartes. In addition, ne member of the Compensation
Committee had any relationships with us or any other entity that requires disclosure under the proxy rules and regula-
tions promulgated by the SEC and none of our executive officers served on the Compensation Committee or Board of

any company that employed any member of our Board of Directors.

Compensation of Directors

In accordance with a resolution unanimously approved by our board of directors on December 14, 2006, we granted
options to purchase shares of our common stock, pursuant to and in accordance with our 1998 Stock Plan, as consid-
eration for their service on our board of directors through June 30, 2006, or fiscal 2006, except for Jack Van Hulst,

whose options were granted as an incentive to join our board of directors during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,

as follows:
Number of Shares
Underlying Exercise Price Director

Options Granted Grant Date Per Share

Rudoli Stalder 40,000 December 14, 2006 $1.08

Christopher Forbes 30,000 December 14, 2006 $1.08

Thomas Quick 20,000 December 14, 2006 $1.08

John Braca 30,000 December 14, 2006 $1.08

David Rectar 30,000 December 14, 2006 $1.08

Jack Van Hulst 10,000 March 20, 2007 $1.05
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Options granted to the board of directors have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock
on the date of grant, have a term: of ten (10) years, and are exercisable as follows: {i) one-half {1/2) of the options were
exercisable as of the date of grant and (ii) one-half (1/2} of the options shall become exercisable on the first anniversary of

the date of grant.

The table below shows the compensation paid or awarded to our independent directors during the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2007.

Change in Pension

Value and
Fees Earned Non-Equity Nongualified

or Paid Stock Incentive Plan Deferred All Other

in Cash Awards Option Compensation Compensation  Compensation
Name 5 (s Awards (1} ($} () Earnings (s Total (8}
(a) {h (e) {d} te} if (g} {h)
Rudolf Stalder - - $34,000 - - - $34,000
Christopher Forbes - - $25,500 - - - $25,500
Thomas Quick - - $17,000 - - - $17,000
John Braca - - $25,500 - - - $25,500
David Rector - - $25,500 - - - $25,500
Jack Van Hulst - - £10,500 - - - $10,500

{1) Sets forth the black-shales value of the options or the date of grant.

No director has received cash compensation for his services on our board of directors. We provide reimbursement to
directors for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in connection with attendance ar meetings of the board of

directors and other Senesco business.

Dr. Thompson has received compensation for providing research and development management services to us. See

“Certain Relationships and Relared Transactions” which sets forth the details of the compensation for Dr. Thompson.
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ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters.

The following table sets forth certain information, as of October 22, 2007, with respect to holdings of our
common stock by (i) cach persan known by us to be the beneficial awner of more than 5% of the wral number
of shares of our common stock outstanding as of such dare; (ii) each of our directors, which includes all nomi-

nees, and our Named Executives; and (iii) all of our directors and our current executive officers as a group.

Amount and Nature of Percent
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1) Beneficial Ownership (2) of Class (3)
{i} Certain Beneficial Owners:
YA Global Investments, LP.
101 Hudson Street
Jersey City, NJ 07302 6,108,333 259
Stanford International Bank Limited
No 11 Pavilion Drive
St. John's Antigua, West Indies 2,470,535} 136
Heartland Advisors, Inc.
789 North Water Street
Milwaukee, W1 53202 1,329,925 16

(ii) Directors (which includes all nominees), Named Executives and Chief Executive Officer:

Rudalf Stalder 7943237 44
Bruce C. Galten 718,005 40
John E. Thompson, Ph.D. 783,667 44
Christopher Forbes 2,189,895019 121
Thomas C. Quick 17,0850 40
David Rector 145,000!12} -
Jack Van Hulst 5000013 *
John N. Braca 113,00004) .
Sascha P. Fedyszyn 215,027(15) 12
Joel P. Brooks 153167016 *
Richard Dondero 51,667017) -

{iii} All Directars and current executive officers
as a group (10 persons) 5,886,836(18 287

* Less than 1%
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(1} Unless otherwise provided, all sddresses should be care of Senesco Technologies, Inc., 303 George Street, Suite 420, New Brunswick, New Jersey 68901.

(2) Except as otherwise indicated, : |1 shares are beneficially owned and sole investment and voting power is held by the persons named.

{3) Applicable percenrage of ownership is based on 17,473,694 shares of our common stock outstanding as of October 22, 2007, plus any common stock
equivalents and options or wariants held by such holder which are presently ar will become exercisable within sixty (60} days after the Record Dare.

{4) Tncludes 3,333,333 shares of ccmmen stock issuable upon conversion of secured convertible debenmures and 2,775,000 shares of common stock issuable
under warrants, one-half of wh ch are exercisable afer March 21, 2008 and one-half of which are exercisable after April 16, 2008. Does not include 250,000
shares of commen stock purchzsed an October 22, 2007, but the trade had not been settled as of October 22, 2007

{5) Includes 750,000 shares issuable pursuant to presently exercisable warrants issucd to Stanford Venture Capital Holdings. Inc, and 6,248 shares issuahle
pursuant to presently excreisable warrants issued to franford Group Company.

{6) Represents 1,279,925 shares held by Heartland Advisors, Inc. and its affiliates and 50,000 shares issuable pursuani to presently exercisable warrants issued to
Heartland Advisors, Inc.

(7) Includes 582,552 shares issuable pursuant to presently exercisable warrants and options or options which will become exercisable within sixcy (60) days after
the Record Date.

(8) Includes 644,780 shares issuable pursuant to presently exercisable aptions or options which will become exercisable within sixey (60) days afier the Record
Date. Excludes 13,334 shares underlying options which become exercisable over time more than sixey (60) days afier the Record Date.

(9) Represents 572,000 shares held by 2091794 Onrarie Lid. and 211,667 shares issuable pursuant to presently exercisable options or aptiens which will
become exercisable within sixt/ (60) days after the Record Date issued to John E. Thempson, Ph.D. Excludes 8,333 shares underlying options which
become exercisable over time more than sixty (60) days after the Recard Date.

(10) Includes 657,324 shares issuzble pursuant to presently exercisable warrants and options or options which will hecome exercisable within sixty (60} days

after the Record Date,

{11) Represents 264,901 shares a1 d 132,450 shares issuable pursuant to warrants issued to Thomas C. Quick Charitable Foundation. Represents 139,734
shares and 180,000 shares issuable pursuant to presently exercisable options or aptions which will become exercisable within sixty (60) days afier the
Record Dare issued 1o Thomis C. Quick.

(12) Includes 125,000 shares issu:ble pursuant ta presently excrcisable options or options which will become exercisable within sixty (60) days after the
Record Drate.

{13) Includes 5,000 shares issuabl: pursuznt to presenily exercisable options or options which will become exercisable within sixty {60) days after the Recoed
Date. Excludes 5,000 shares anderlying options which become exercisable over time more than sixy {60) days after the Record Date.

{14) Includes 95,000 shares isseable pursuzne 1o presently exerciszable options or options which will become exercisable within sixty (60) days after the Record
Date.

{15) Includes 176,667 shares issuzble pursuant to presently exercisable options or options which will become exercisable within sixty (60) days after the
Record Dase, Excludes 8,332 shares underlying options which become exercisable over time more than sixty (60} days afier the Record Drate.

{16) Includes 149,167 shares issuzble pursuant to presently excrcisable options or options which will become exercisable within sixty (60} days after the
Record Date. Excludes 8,337 shares underlying options which became exercisable aver time mare than sixty (60} days after the Record Date.

(17) Represents 51,667 shares isst.able pursuznt 1o presently exercisable options or options which will become exercisable within sixty (63) days after the
Record Date. Excludes 8,332 shares underlying options which beceme exercisable over time more than sixry {60} days after the Record Dhate.

{18) See Notes 9 through 17.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and
Director Independence

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons

Our Audit Commitee Charter requires thar our Audit Commitcee review and approve or ratify transactions

involving us and any exccutive officer, director, director nominee, 5% stockholder and certain of their imme-
diate family members, also referred to herein as a related person. The policy and procedures cover any trans-

action involving a related person, also referred to herein as a related person transaction, in which the relared

person has a marerial interest and which does not fall under an explicitly stated exception set forth in the

applicable disclosure rules of the SEC.

A refated person transacrion will be considered approved or ratified if it is authorized by the Audit Commitree
after Full disclosure of the related person’s interest in the transaction. In considering related person transactions,

the Audit Committee will consider any information considered material to investors and the following factors:

* the related person’s interest in the transaction;

+ the approximare dollar value of the transaction;

» whether the transaction was underraken in the ordinary course of our business;

*» whether the terms of the transaction are no less favorable to us than terms that we could have
reached wict an unrelared third party; and

« the purpose and portential benefit to us of the transaction.
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Contractual Relationships
Service Agreements

Christopher Forbes, our directar, is also Vice Chairman of Forbes, Inc., which publishes Forbes Magazine.
Fotbes, Inc. has provided and will continue to provide us with advertising, introductions to strategic alliance
partners and, from time to time, use of its office space, entertainment facilities and various other supporr
services. In recognition of these past services and services to be provided in the future, during the last two

fiscal years, we granted ro Forbes, Inc., warrants to purchase shares of our common stock as follows:

Date of Grant # of Warrant Exercise Value of Services  # of Warrant
Shares Price On Date of Grant Shares Vested

December 14, 2006 2,500 $1.08 $ 48,450 833

December 14, 2005 5,000 $1.40 $ 6,550 3,334

The exercise price of the warrants granted to Forbes, Inc. represented the fair market value of our common

stock on the dates of grant.

Verge180, Inc., a marketing commuaicarions firm, is $0% owned by Alan Brooks, a brother of Joel Brooks,
our Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Verge 180, Inc. has provided and will continue to provide various
setvices to us. We paid Verge180, Inc. $64,575 in fiscal 2007 for services in connection with the design and
printing of our annual report and proxy for fiscal 2006, and the design of eur new corporate logo, web site
and stationery. Alan Brooks Design, Inc., 2 marketing communications firm, was also owned by Alan Brooks.
Alan Brooks Design, Inc. had provided various services to us. We paid Alan Brooks Design, Inc. $51,374 in
fiscal 2006 for services in connection with the design and printing of our annual report and proxy for fiscal
2003, and the design and printing of a new print ad for us. Neither we nor Joel Brooks receives any remunera-
tion from these services, and we believe that such services were provided on terms at least as favorable as we

would have received from a third party.
Research and Development Agreements

Effective Seprember 1, 1998, we entered into a three-year research and development agreement, which has
been extended for successive periods through August 31, 2008, with John E. Thempson, Ph.D. and the
University of Waterloo in Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, referred to as the University. Dr. Thompson is our
director and officer and beneficially owns approximarely 4.4% of our common stock. Dr. Thompson is the
Associate Vice President, Research and former Dean of Science of the University. Dr. Thompson and the
University will provide research and development under our direction. Research and development expenses
under this agreement for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 aggregated US $568,872 and US $629,982,
respectively, Effective September 1, 2007, we, Dr. Thompson and the University extended the agreement for an
additional one-year period through August 31, 2008 in the amount of CAN $652,600. As of October 1, 2007,
such amount represented approximately US $650,000.
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Consulting Agreement

Effective May 1, 1999, we entered into a three-year consulting agreement, which has been extended for suc-
cessive periods through June 30, 2009, for research and development with Dr. Thompson. This agreement
provided for monthly payments of $3.000 through June 2004. However, effective January 1, 2003, 2006 and
2007, the agreement wes amended to increase the monthly payments from $3,000 to $5,000, from $5,000 w
$5,200, and from $5,200 to $5,417, respectively.

Debt / Equity Transactions
2006 Private Placement

In connection with a private placement in October 2006, we sold shares of our common stock and warrants

1o purchase our common stock to certain institutions, accredited tnvestors and certain directors as follows:

Amount # of Shares # of Warrants
Christopher Forbes $1,000,000 883,002 441,501
Thomas C. Quick Charitable Foundation $ 300,000 264,901 132,450
Rudolf Stalder $ 105,841 93,458 46,729
Bruce C. Galton $ 75,000 66,225 33,113
John N. Braca $ 11,325 10,000 5,000
David Rector $ 11,325 10,000 5,000

All of such warrants will become exercisable six months from the closing date at an exercise price equal to

$1.18 and have a term of five (5) years.
2004 Private Placement

In connection with a private placement, commencing in January 2004 and ending in February 2004, we sold
shares of our common stock and warrants to purchase our common stock to certain accredited investors and
directors, including Seneca Capital L.P and its affiliates, Rudolf Stalder and Christopher Forbes. On January
15, 2004, Seneca Capital L.P and its affiliates purchased 421,941 shares of our common stock and warrants
to purchase 210,970 shares of our common stock for the aggregate cash consideration of $1,000,000. On
January 15, 2004, Ruedi Stalder and Christopher Forbes cach purchased 31,616 shares of our common stock
and warrants to purchase 15,823 shares of our common stock for the agpregate cash consideration of $75,000
each. All of such warrar.ts were exercisable as of the date of grant at an exercise price equal to $3.79 and have

a term of five (35) years.

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that each of Messts. Stalder, Braca, Forbes, Quick, Rector and
Van Hulst is an “independent director” as defined under Sections 121{A) and 802 of the AMEX rules.

Our board of directors has three standing committees: the Compensation Committee, the Audit Commirree

and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, each of which operates under a charter thar has
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been approved by our board. Each of these charters are also posted on our website at www.senesco.com. Our
corporate governance guidelines provide thar directors are expected to attend the annual meeting of stockholders.

All directors attended the 2006 annual meeting of stockholders.
Compensation Committee

Qur Compensation Committee was established in July 1999, pursuant to the Compensation Committee
Charter. Qur Compensation Committee generally makes recommendations concerning salaries and incentive
compensation for our management and our employees, The primary responsibilities of our Compensation
Committee, as more fully set forth in the Compensation Committee Charter adopted in July 1999 and

amended and restated on July 7, 2004, include:

* annually reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives relevant to CEQ compensation;

* reviewing and approving, or recommending for approval by our board, the salaries and incentive
compensation of our executive officers;

* preparing the Compensation Committee report;

* administering our 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, or our 1998 Stock Plan; and

* reviewing and making recommendations to our board with respect to director compensation.

In addicion, our Compensation Committee periodically reviews the porential effect of Section 162{m) and uses
its judgment to authorize compensation payments that may be subject to the limit when our Compensation
Committee believes such payments are appropriate and in the best interests of Senesco and our stockholders,
after taking into consideration changing business conditions and the performance of our employees. Section
162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, generally disallows a tax deduction to public
companies for certain compensation in excess of $1 million paid to a company’s CEO and the four other most
highly compensated executive officers. Certain compensation, including qualified performance-based compen-

sation, will not be subject to the deduction limit if certain requirements are met.

Through February 21, 2007, our Compensarion Committee was comprised of David Rector, John N. Braca
and Rudolf Stalder. From February 21, 2007 through present, our Compensation Commirtee was comprised
of David Recror, John. N. Braca and Jack Van Hulst. Mr. Rector currently serves as the chairman of the
Corapensation Committee. All members of our Compensation Commiutee are considered independent pursuant
to Sections 121(A) and 805 of the AMEX rules, Qur Compensation Committee held eight (8) meetings
during fiscal 2007.

Audit Committee

Qur Audit Committee was established in July 1999, On Octaber 8, 2003, our board of directors adopted an
Amended and Restated Audit Committee Charter. The primary responsibilities of our Audit Committee include:

* appointing, approving the compensation of, and assessing the independence of our independent
registered public accounting firm;

* overseeing the work of our independent registered public accounting firm, including through che
receipt and consideration of certain reports from our independent registered public accounting firm;

* reviewing and discussing with management and our independent registered public accounting firm
our annual and quarterly financial statements and related disclosures;

* monitoring our internal control over financial reporting, disclosure consrols and procedures and
code of business conduct and ethics;

* discussing our risk management policies;
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* establishing policies regarding hiring employees from our independent registered public accounting
firm and proczdures for the receipt and retention of accounting related complaints and concerns;

* meering independently with independent registered public accounting firm and management; and

* preparing the audit committee report required by SEC rules, which is included on page 83 of this

annual report.

Qur Audit Committee is comprised of John N. Braca, David Rector and Thomas C. Quick. Mr. Braca currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. AMEX currently requires an Audit Committee comprised solely
of independent directors. Messrs. Braca, Rector and Quick are “independent” members of our board of directors
as defined in Rule 10A-% under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and
Secrions 121(A) and 803 of the AMEX rules. In addition, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Braca
satisfies the definition of an audit committee “financial expert” as set forth in Item 401(¢) of Regulation S-B

promulgated by the SEC. Our Audit Commiteee held four (4) meetings during fiscal 2007.
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The process followed by our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to identify and evaluate
director candidates includes requests to board members and others for recommendartions, meetings from time
1o time to evaluare biographical information and background material relating to potential candidates and

interviews of selected candidates by members of the committee and the board.

In considering whether 1o recommend any particular candidate for inclusion in the board's slate of recom-
mended director nominces, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will apply the criteria
conrained in the commiztee’s charter. These criteria include the candidate’s integrity, business acumen, knowl-
edge of our business and industry, age, experience, diligence, conflicts of interest and che ability to act in the
interests of all stockholders. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not assign specific
weights to particular criteria and no particular criterion is a prerequisite for each prospective nominee. We
believe that the backgrounds and qualifications of our directors, considered as a group, should provide a

composite mix of experiznce, knowledge and abilities thar will allow the board to fulfill its responsibilities.

Stockholders may recommend individuals 1o our Nominating and Corporate Governance Commirttee for con-
sideration as potential d rector candidates by submitting their names, together with appropriate biographical
information and background materials and a statement as to whether the stockholder or group of stockholders
making the recommendiition has beneficially owned more than 5% of our common stock for at least one year
as of the date such recommendation is made, to: Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, c/o
Corporare Secretary, Seriesco Technologies, Inc., 303 George Streer, Suite 420, New Brunswick, New Jersey
08901. Assuming that approptiate biographical and background marerial has been provided on a timely basis,
the committee will evaluate stockholder-recommended candidates by following substantially the same process,

and applying substantially the same criteria, as it follows for candidates submitted by others.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

On Ocrober 24, 2007, we filed a Form 8-K disclosing that, on October 22, 2007, we were notified chat the
parcners of Goldstein Golub Kessler LLP, or GGK, became partners of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP in a limired
asset purchase agreement and that its position as our independent registered public accounting firm will cease
upon completion of its procedures regarding the following: (i) the unaudited interim financial statements of
the Company as of September 30, 2007 and for the three month period ending September 30, 2007 and (ii)
the Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ending September 30, 2007. We will file a Form 8-K/A once

such procedures are completed.

Qur board of directors intends to, subject to stockholder ratification, retain McGladrey & Pullen, LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008. Neither the firm nor
any of its directors has any direct or indirect financial interest in or any connection with us in any capacity

other than as auditors.
Leased Employees

Through Seprember 30, 2005, GGK, our independent registered public accounting firm, had a continuing
relationship with American Express Tax and Business Services, Inc., or TBS, from which it leased auditing staff
who were full time, permanent employees of TBS and through which its partners provide non-audit services.
Subsequent to September 30, 2005, the relationship ceased and the firm established a similar relationship with
RSM McGladrey, Inc., or RSM. GGK has no full-time employees and thercfore, none of the audic services
performed were provided by permanent full-time employees of GGK. GGK manages and supervises the audic

and audir staff, and is exclusively responsible for the opinion rendered in connection with its examination.

Other services, which do not include Financial Information System Design and Implementation fees, have

been provided by TBS or RSM.

The following table summarizes the fees GGK, TBS, or RSM billed us for each of the last two fiscal years for

audirt services and other services:

Fee Category 2007 2006

Audir Fees $ 70,596 $ 59,330
Audit-Related Fees @ 13,796 4,442
Tax Fees @ 2,250 3,092

All Other Fees - -

Toral Fees $ 86,642 $ 66,864

(1) Consists of fees for professional services rendered in connection with the audic of our financial statements for the years ended June
30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and the reviews of the financial statements included in each of our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
during the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and fees for professional services rendered in connection with documents
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respecrively.

(2) Consists of fees relating to the review of cur documents in connection with an equity offering, fees in connection with correspondence
with the SEC and the AMEX, fees in connection with the implementacion of SOX 404, and fees in connection with attending the

annual shareholders meeting.

{3) Consists of fees relating to our rax compliance, tax planning and tax return review for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
provided by TBS and / or RSM.
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Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees

GGK, RSM or TBS did not bill us for any professional services rendered to us and our affiliates during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 in connection with financial information systems design or implementation,

Ehﬂ operarion Of our infnrmation S)’SI’C]TI or the management Of our lDCal area l'lC[WOl'k.
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

None of the audit-related fees billed in fiscal 2007 and 2006 related to services provided under the de minimis

exception to the audit committee pre-approval requirements.

The Audir Commirtee has adopred policies and procedures relating to the pre-approval of all audit and non-
audir services that are to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm. This policy
generally provides that we will not engage our independent registered public accounting firm ro render audir
ot non-audit services urless the service is specifically approved in advance by the Audit Committee or the

engagement is entered into pursuant to one of the pre-approval procedures described below.

From time to time, the Audit Committee may pre-approve specified types of services that are expected to be
provided to us by our independent registered public accounting firm during the nexr 12 months. Any such
pre-approval is detailed a5 to the particular service or type of services 1o be provided and is also generally subject

to a maximum dollar amount.

The Audit Committee has also delegared to the chairman of the Audit Committee the authority to approve
any audit or non-audit services to be provided to us by our independent registered public accounting firm.
Any approval of services 5y a member of the Audic Committee pursuant to this delegated authority is reported

on at the next meeting of the Audit Commitcee.
Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee oversees our financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee consists of three members of the Board of Directers who meet the independence and experience

requirements of the AMEX.

On Qcrober 8, 2003, we amended and restated our Audit Committee Charter, which was originally adopted
on July 26, 1999.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during fiscal 2007.

Management is responsible for our financial reporting process including its system of internal controls and for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepred accounting principles.
Our independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing those financial statemenus.
The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to moniror and review these processes. As appropriate, the Audic
Committee reviews and zvaluates, and discusses with our management and our independent registered public

accounting firm, the following:

s the plan for, and the independent registered public accounting firm'’s report on, each audic of our
financial statzments;
» the indepencent registered public accounting firm’s review of our unaudited interim financial

Statements;

ANNUAL REPORT 83




* our financial disclosure documents, including all financial statements and reports filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or sent to stockholders;

* our management’s selection, application and disclosure of critical accounting policies;

« changes in our accounting practices, principles, controls or methodologies;

* significant developments or changes in accounting rules applicable to us; and

» the adequacy of our internal controls and accounting and financial personnel,

The Audit Commirtee reviewed and discussed with our management our audited financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2007. The Audit Commictee also reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements
and the marters required by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, 89 and 90, tided Communication

with Audit Commitrees, with our independent registered public accounting firm. These standards require our
independent registered public accounting firm to discuss with our Audit Commitcee, among other things, the

following:

* methods used to account for significant unusual transactions;

* the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a
fack of authoritative guidance or consensus;

» the process used by management in formulating particularly sensicive accounting estimates and the
basis for the auditors’ conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates; and

» disagreements with management over the application of accounting principles, the basis for

management’s accounting estimates and the disclosures in the financial statements.

Our independent registered public accounting firm also provided the Audit Committee with the written
disclosures and the letter required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, titled Independence
Discussions with Audit Committees. Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 requires auditors annually
to disclose in writing all relationships that, in the auditor’s professional opinion, may reasonably be thought

to bear on independence, confirm their perceived independence and engage in a discussion of independence.
In addition, the Audit Committee discussed with our independent registered public accounting firm their
independence from Senesco. The Audit Committee also considered whether our independent registered public
accounting firm's provision of certain other non-audit related services to Senesco is compatible with maineaining

our auditors’ independence.

Based on our discussions with management and our independent registered public accounting firm, and our
review of the representations and information provided by our management and our independent registered
public accounting firm, the Audit Commitiee recommended to our board of directors that the audited financial
statements be included in our annual report on Form 10-K and amended and restated Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A for the year ended June 30, 2007.

By the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

of Senesco Technologies, Inc.

John N. Braca, Chairman
Thomas C. Quick
David Rector
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Item 5. Exhihits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) (1) Financial Statements.
Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statements on Page 103.
{(a} {2} Financial Statement Schedules.
Note.
{a) {3} FExhibiss.
Reference is made to the Exhibit Index on Page 92.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report w be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized this 29¢h
day of Ocrober 2007.

SENESCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: Bruce C. Galron,
President and Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)
By: Joel Brooks,
Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial and accounting officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

fs/ Rudolf Stalder Chairman and Director 10.29.2007
Rudolf Sralder

{5/ Bruce C. Galton President and Chief Executive Officer 10.29.2007
Bruce C. Galton {principal executive officer) and Director

fs/ Joel Brooks Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 10.29.2007
Joel Brooks {principal financial and accounting officer)

{s/ John E. Thompson Executive Vice President, 10.29.2007
John E. Thompson Chief Scientific Officer and Director

/3! Christopher Forbes Director 10.29.2007
Christopher Forbes

fsf Thomas C. Quick Director 10.29.2607

Thomas C. Quick

Isf David Rector Director 10.29.2007
David Rector

/s/ Jack Van Hulst Director 10.29.2007
Jack Van Hulst

/s/ John Braca Director 10.29.2007

John Braca
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No.

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2
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4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4,10
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Description of Exhibit

Merger Agre=ment and Plan of Merger by and among Nava Leisuzre USA, Inc., an Idaho cotporation, the
Principal Stockholders {as defined therein), Nava Leisure Acquisition Corp., and Senesco, Inc., dated Ocrober
9, 1998. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A
dated January 11, 1999.)

Merger Agrecment and Plan of Merger by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc., an Idaho corporation, and
Senesco Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, dated Seprember 30, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to
Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1999.)

Amended and Restated Cerrificate of Incorporation of Senesco Technologies, Inc. filed with the Srare of
Drelaware on January 22, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly reporr on
Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2006.)

Amended and Restated By-laws of Senesco Technologies, Inc. as adopted on Ocrober 2, 2000. {Incorporated
by reference o Senesco Technologies, Inc. quartetly repore on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December
31, 2000)

Form of Warrant with Forbes, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report
on Form 10-Q8B for the period ended September 30, 1999.)

Form of Option Agreement with Kenyon & Kenyon. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies,
Inc. quarterly repert on Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 1999.)

Form of Warrant with Parenteau Corporation. {Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc.
quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 1999))

Form of Warrant with Strategic Growth Inrernational, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco
Technologies. Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 1999.)

Form of War:ant issued to Stanford Venture Capital Holdings, Inc. and certain officers of Stanford Venture
Capital Holdings, Inc. (with attached schedule of parties and terms thereto). {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of Senesco Technologies, Ine. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December
31, 2001.)

Form of Warant issued to cerrain accredited investors (wich artached schedule of parties and terms thereto).
{Incorporatec. by reference to Exhibir 4.2 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quartetly repors on Form 10-QSB for
the period ended December 31, 2002.)

Form of Warrant issued to certain third parties for services rendered (with atrached schedule of parties and
terms thereto). {Incorporared by reference o Exhibit 4.3 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on

Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 2002.)

Warrant issued to Sands Brothers International Led. dated Seprember 25, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-(38B for the period ended September
30, 2003.)

Warrant issued to Sands Brothers Incernational Led. Dared September 25, 2003. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended
September 3C, 2003.)

Form of Warrant issued to certain accredited investors (with actached schedule of parties and cerms thereto).
(Incorporated by refetence to Exhibit 4.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
on February %, 2004.)




4.12

413

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.18

4.19

4.20

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4 *

10.5

106 *

Form of Warrant issued to certain accredited investors (with artached schedule of parties and terms thereto).
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Senesco Technologies, [nc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
on May 4, 2005.}

Form of Warrant issued to Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. or its designees, dated as of May 9, 2005. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period
ended March 31, 2005.)

Form of Warrant issued ro H.C. Wainwright & Co., Inc., or its designees, dated as of Qcrober 10, 2006
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for
the period ended June 30, 2006.)

Form or Warrant issued to certain accredited investors dared Qctober 10, 2006 (with atrached schedule of
parties and terms therero). {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual
report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2006.)

Form of Series A Warrant issued to YA Global Investments, L. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 of
Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual repart on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007 )

Form of Series A Warrant issued to Stanford Venture Capital Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.16 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Form of Debenture issued to YA Global Investments, L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 of
Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Form of Deebenture issued to Stanford Venture Capiral Holdings, Inc. {Incorporared by reference to Exhibir
4.18 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Form of Series B Warrant issued to YA Global Investments, L.P. {Incorparated by reference ro Exhibit 4.19 of
Senesco Technologies, In¢. annual repore on Form 10-K for the period ended June 36, 2007.)

Form of Series B Warrant issued to Stanford Venture Capital Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.20 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual reporr on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Indemnification Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Christopher Forbes, dated
January 21, 1999, (Incorporated by refetence to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB
for the period ended December 31, 1998.) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Senesco Technaologies,
Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 3, 2004.)

Indemnificarion Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Thomas C. Quick, dated
February 23, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form
10-Q3SB for the period ended March 31, 1999.)

Indemnificarion Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Ruedi Stalder, dated March 1,
1999. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the
petiod ended March 31, 1999.)

Employment Agreement by and between Senesco, Inc. and Sascha I Fedyszyn, dared January 21, 1999,
(Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period
ended December 31, 1998.)

Research Agreement by and among Senesco Technologies, Inc., Dr. John E. Thompson and the University of
Watetloo, dated September 1, 1998, as amended. (Incorporated by reference ro Senesco Technologies, Inc.
quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 1998.)

Consulting Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and John E. Thompson, Ph.D., dared July
12, 1999. (Incorporated by reference 1o Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-KSB for the
petiod ended June 30, 2000.)
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Office lease by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Matrix/AEW NB, LLC, dated March 16, 2001.
{Incorporated by reference tw Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period
ended March 31, 2001.)

First amendment of office lease by and berween Senesce Technologies, Inc. and Matrix/AEW NB, LLC, dared
May 13, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 10.8 of Senesca Technologies, Inc annual repor on
Form 10-KSB for the period ended June 30, 2005.)

1998 Stock .ncentive Plan, as amended on December 13, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of
Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 2002.)

License Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Harris Moran Seed Company, dated
November 19, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 10.8 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly
report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 2001.)

Employmen: Agreement by and between Senesco Technolegies, Inc. and Bruce C. Galton, dated October
4, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form
10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 2001.}

Indemnificarion Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Bruce C. Galron, dated Ocrober
4, 2001, {Incorporared by reference to Exhibic 10.10 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarcerly report on Form
10-QSB for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2001.)

Indemnification Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Jack Van Hulst, dared January
16, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual repart on Form
10-K for the petiod ended June 30, 2007.)

License Agreement by and between Senesco Technaologies, Inc. and Bayer CropScience GmbH, dated as of
November 8. 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2006.)

Agreement for Service on Senesco Technologies, Inc. Scientific Advisory Board by and between Senesco
Technologies. Inc. and Dr. Charles A. Dinarello, dated February 12, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.6 of Senesco Technologies, Ine. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2002.)

Research Agicement by and among Senesco Technologies, Inc., Dr. John E. Thompson and the University
of Waterloo, dated May 1, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of Senesco Technologies, Inc.
annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2002.)

Development Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and ArborGen, LLC, dared June 28,
2002. (Incororated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form
10-KSB for the year ended June 30, 2002.)

Developmen: and License Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Calwest Seeds, dared
September 144, 2002. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly
report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2002.}

Commercial License Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and ArborGen, LLC darted as of
December 21, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended December 31, 2006.)

Amendment to Consulting Agreement of July 12, 1999, as medified on February 8, 2001, by and berween
Senesco, Inc. and John E. Thompson, Ph.D., dated December 13, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic
10.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 2002.)

Employment Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Joel Brooks, dated July 1, 2003.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-KSB for
the period ended June 30, 2003.)
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10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and certain accredited
investors {with attached schedule of parties and terms therero). {Incorporated by reference to Fxhibir 10.1
of Senesco Technologies, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 3, 2004.)

Form of Registration Righes Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and certain accredited
investors (with attached schedule of parties and terms therero). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 10.2
of Senesco Technologies, Inc. Current Report ont Form 8-K, filed on February 3, 2004.)

Amendment No. 1 to the Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and
Cresrview Capital Master, L.L.C. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 13, 2004.)

Amendment No, 1 to the Registration Rights Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and
Crestview Capital Master, LL.C. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Senesco Technologies, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 13, 2004.)

Development and License Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and The Scots Company,
dared March 8, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarrerly
report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2004.)

Amendment o Research Agreement by and among the University of Waterloo, Senesco Technologies, Inc.
and Dr. John E. Thompson, dared March 11, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Senesco
Technologics, Inc. quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2004.)

Extension to Research Agreement by and among the University of Waterloo, Senesco Technologies, Inc.
and Dr, John E. Thompson, dated August 1, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 10.37 of Senesco
Technologies, Inc. annual report on Fortn 10-KSB for the period ended June 30, 2004.)

Indemnification Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and John Braca, daced October 8,
2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form
10-KSB for rhe period ended June 30, 2004.)

Employment Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Richard Dondero, dated July 19,
2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form
10-KSB for the period ended June 30, 2004.)

Indemnification Agreement with David Rector dated as of April, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarrerly report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2004.)

Development and License Agreement with Broin and Associates, Inc. (currencly known as Poet) dared as of
October 14, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 10.2 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. quarterly report
on Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2004.)

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement by and berween the Company and certain accredited investors {with
schedule of parties and terms thereto). {Incorporated by reference o Exhibit 10.1 of Senesco Technologies,
Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2005.)

Placement Agent Agreement by and between the Company and Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. dated as of
February 15, 2005 (with attachments thereto). (Incorporated by reference on Exhibir 10.2 of Senesco
Technologies, Inc. Current Report on Ferm 8-K, filed on May 4, 2005.)

Financial Advisory Agreement by and among Senesco Technologies, Inc., Stanford Group Company, Stanford
Venture Capital Holdings, Inc., Stanford International Bank, Ltd., Ronald Stein, Daniel Bogar, Osvaldo Pi
and William Fusselmann dated October 11, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 10.35 of Senesco
Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2006.)

Registration Rights Agreement by and among Senesco Technologies, Inc., Stanford Group Company,
Stanford Venture Capiral Holdings, Inc., Stanford International Bank, Led., Ronald Stein, Daniel Bogar,
Osvaldo Pi and William Fusselmann dated Qctober 11, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36
of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2006.}
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Extension tc Research Agreement by and among the University of Warerloo, Senesco, Inc. and Dr. John
E. Thompson, Ph.D., dated August 1, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 of Senesco
Technologjes, Inc. annual cepore an Farm 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2006.)

Form of Sec rities Purchase Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and certain accredited
investors dated Ocrober 10, 2006 (with atrached schedule of parries and terms thereto). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibir 10.38 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended
June 30, 2006.)

Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc and certain accredired
investors dated Qctober 10, 2006 (with atrached schedule of parties and terms thereto). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.39 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended
June 30, 2006.)

Placement Agent Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and H.C. Wainwright & Co., Inc.,
dated May 1, 2006. (Incorpurated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report
on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2004.)

Amendment to Placement Agent Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, Inc. and H.C.
Wainwright 8 Co., Inc. dated August 3, 2007. (Incorparared by reference 1o Exhibit 10.41 of Senesco
Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Amendment to Research Agreement by and among the University of Waterloo, Senesco, Inc., and Dr.
John E. Thompson, Ph.D)., dated August 1, 2007. (Incorporared by reference to Exhibic 10.42 of Senesco
Technologier, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended fune 30, 2007.)

Agreement for Service on Senesco Technologies, Inc. Scientific Advisory Board by and between Senesco
Technologies, Inc. and James W. Mier, M.D., dated April 2, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.43 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and YA Global Investments, L.I.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 10.44 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for
the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Registration Rights Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and YA Global Investments, L.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for
the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Stanford Venture Capital
Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 10,46 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on
Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Registration Rights Agreement by and berween Senesco Technologies, 1nc. and Stanford Venrure Capiral
Holdings, Inz. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 10.47 of Senesco Technologies, Inc. annual report on
Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

" Securiry Agreement dated as of Seprember 21, 2007 by and between Senesco Technologies, Ine. and irs

subsidiaries and YA Global Investments, L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 of Senesco
Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 10-K for the peried ended June 30, 2007.)

Amendment # 3 1o Consulting Agreement of July 12, 1999, as modified, by and between Senesco, Inc. and
John E. Thompson, 'h.[3., dated June 15, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 of Senesco
Technologies, Inc. annual report on Form 18-K for the period ended June 30, 2007.)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. (Incorporared by reference to Senesco Technologies, [nc. annual reporr on

Form 10-KSB for the period ended June 30, 1999.)
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Consenr of Goldstein Golub Kessler LLP.
Certification of the principal execuive officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the principal financial and accounting officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002,

Certification of the principal execurive officer pursuant ra Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of the principal financial and accounting officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002,

A management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed
as an exhibit pursuant to Item 13(a) of Form 10-K.

Filed herewith.
The SEC granted Confidential Treatment for portions of this Exhibir.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Bruce C. Galton, President and Chief Executive Officer of Senesco Technologies, Inc., certify chac:

1.

ANNUAL REPORT

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, as amended and restared, of Senesco
Technologies, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all marterial respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registranc as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e))
for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
proceduces to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relat-
ing to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within trose entities, particularly during the period in which this reporc is being prepared;

b) [Paragraph omicted in accordance with SEC transition instructions contained in SEC

Release 34-47986]

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and pre-
sented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter n the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recenr evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporring which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regis-
trant’s a>ility to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, chac involves management or other employees who
have a significant rale in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: Qctober 29, 2007

fs! Bruce C. Galton

Bruce C. Galron

President and Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joel Brooks, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Senesco Technologies, Inc., certify that:

1. [ have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, as amended and restated, of Senesco
Technologies, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of 2 material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
repore;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in chis
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifving officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining dis-
closure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures o be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relat-
ing ro the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within these entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [Paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transition instructions contained in SEC

Release 34-47980)

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and pre-
sented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period coveted by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this reporc any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranc’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant defictencies and martertal weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who

have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: Ocrober 29, 2007

/s/ Joel Brooks

Joel Brooks

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(principal financial and accounting officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUJANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, as amended and restated, of Senesco Technologies,
Inc. for the year ended Jun: 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date

hereof, the undersigned, Bruce C. Galton, President and Chief Executive Officer, hereby certifies, pursuant
o 18 U.5.C. Section 1350. that:

(1 The Annual Reporr, as amended and restated, fully complies with the requirements of

Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report, as amended and restated, fairly presents,
in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Senesco

Technologies, Inc.

Date: Ociober 29, 2007

Bruce C. Galton

President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

* A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to us and will be

retained by us and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13590,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 306 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K /A, as amended and restated, of Senesco Technologies,
Inc. for the year ended June 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, the undersigned, Joel Brooks, Chief Financial Officer and Treasuter, hereby cerrifies, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report, as amended and restated, fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(2) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contatned in the Annual Report as amended and restated, fairly presents,
in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Senesco
Technologies, Inc.

Date: October 29, 2007
Joel Brooks
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(principal financial and accounting officer)

* A signed original of this writcen statement required by Section 906 has been provided to us and will be
retained by us and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

im
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Senesco Technologies, Inc, and Subsidiary

(a development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
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{a development stage company)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of Senesco Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiary
{a development stage com pany) as of June 30, 2007 and 2000, and the related consolidared statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the petiod ended June 30, 2007
and cumulative amounts from July 1, 1998 (inception) o June 30, 2007. These consolidated financial stace-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on

these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our zudits in accordance with the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require thar we plan and perform the audit ro obrain reasonable assur-
ance abour whether the ccnsolidared financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that

our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinien.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Senesco Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
June 30, 2007 and cumulative amounts from July 1, 1998 (inception) to June 30, 2007 in conformity with

United Srates generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company is
a development stage company and has incurred recurring losses from operations that raise substantial doubr
about its ability to continue as a going concern. Managemenr’s plan in regard ro these marters is also described
in Note 1. The consolidatzd financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the

ourcome of this uncertain:y.

ptdatocry (ploid Hgaaler, XXP

GOLDSTEIN GOLUB KESSLER LLP
New York, New York

September 26, 2007
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SENESCO TECHNOLOG/ES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{a development stage company)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

June 30,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assecs:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 408,061 $ 318473
Short-term investments 250,000 850,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 104,526 139,584
Total current assets 762,587 1,308,057
Property and Equipment, net 7,526 10,318
Intangibles, net 2,544,447 2,209,796
Deferred Income Tax Asser, net of valuation allowance of $7,719,000 and
$6,523,000, respectively - -
Security Deposit 7,187 7,187
Total Assets $ 3,321,747 $ 3,535,358
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Currenc Liabilides:
Accounss payable $ 109,258 $ 77,695
Accrued expenses 377,359 329,884
Deferred revenue 16,667 41,667
Total current liabilities 503,284 449,246
Grant Payable 99,728 99,728
Other Liability 29,196 34,418
Total liabilitics 632,208 583,392
Commitments
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock - $0.01 par value; authorized 5,000,000 shares, no shares issued - -
Common stock - $0.01 par value; authorized 60,000,000 and 30,000,000 shares,
respectively, issued and outstanding 17,473,694 and 15,477,388, respectively 174,737 154,774
Capital in excess of par 28,136,342 25,167,035
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (25,621,540) (22,369,843)
Stockholders’ equity 2,689,539 2,951,966
Total Liabilities and Stockolders’ Equity $ 3,321,747 % 3,535,358

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SENESCO TECHNOLOGLES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(a development stage campany)

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year ended June 30, Cumulative Amounts
2007 2006 2005 from Inception

Revenue $ 300,000 $ 66,666 $ 125,000 $ 718.333
Operating expenses:

Cieneral and administrative 2.412,679 1,919,740 2,029,400 19,434,193

Research and development 1,208,321 1,566,267 1,417,337 8,193,169
Total operating expenses 3,621,000 3,486,007 3,446,737 27,627,362
Loss from operations (3,321,000} (3,419,341 (3,321,737} (26,909,029)
Noncash income - - 135.632 321,259
Sale of state income tax loss - net - - 153,160 586,442
Interest income - net 69,303 104,456 34,027 379,788
Net loss $ (3,251,697) $(3,314,885) $(2,978,918) $(25,621,540)
Basic and diluted loss per
common share $ (.19) L (.21) $ (.21) -
Basic and diluted weighted-
average number of common
shares outstanding 16,916,918 15,469,881 14,053,808 -
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SENESCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

{a development stage company}

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

Period from faly 1, 1998 (date of
inceprion) to June 30, 2007

Common Stock

Number of
Shares

Amount

Capital
in Excess
of Par

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development
Stage

Defarred
Compensatior

Related ta Issuance

ot Options and
Warrants

Total

Stockhotders’

Equity
{Deficiency)

Common stock outstanding 2,000,462
Contribution of capital -

Issuance of common stock

in reverse merger on

January 22, 1999 ar

$0.01 per share 3,400,000

Issuance of commen stock
for cash on May 21, 1999
for $2.63437 per share 759,194

Issuance of common stock for
placement fees on May 21, 1999
ar $0.01 per share 53,144

Ner loss -

$ 20,005
85,179

34,000

7,592

531

$(20,005)

(34,000}

1,988,390

(531)

$(1,168,995)

$ 85,179

1,995,982

(1,168,995}

Balance at June 30, 1999 6,212,800

Issuance of common stock
for cash on January 26, 2000
for $2.867647 per share 17,436

Issuance of common stock
for cash on January 31, 2000
for $2.87875 per share 34,737

Issuance of common stock
for cash on February 4, 2000
for $2.924582 per share 85,191

Issuance of common stock
for cash on March 15, 2000
for $2.527875 per share 51,428

Issuance of common stock
for cash on June 22, 2000
for $1.50 per share 1,471,700

Commissions, legal and bank
fees associated with issuances

for the year ended June 30, 2000 -

Fair market value of options and

warrants granted and vested

during the year ended

June 30, 2000 -

Net loss -

62,128

174

347

852

514

14,718

2,019,033

49,826

99.653

249,148

129,486

2,192,833

{260,595)

1,656,639

(1,168,995)

(3.346,491)

$ (180,732

912,166

50,000

100,000

250,000

130,000

2,207,551

(260,595}

1,475,927

(3,346,491)

Balance at June 30, 2000 7,873,292

[continued)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

78,733

6,136,043

(4,515,480)

(180,732)

1,518,558
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SENESCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{a development stage company)

Consaolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

Period from July 1, 1998 (daie of

, ; : Deficit Deferred
inception) ta June 30, 2007 Accumulated Compensation Total
Common Stock Capital During the felatedto Issuance  Stockhalders’
Number of in Excess Development of Options and Equity
Shares Amount of Par Stage Warrants {Deficiency)
Fair market value of options and
warrancs granted and vested during
the year ended June 30, 2001 - - § 392182 - § (83563) 3 308619
Net loss - - - $(2,033,890) - (2,033,890)

Balance at June 30, 2001 7,873,292 $78,733 6,528,225  (6,549,376)  (264,295) (206,713)

Issuance of common stock

and warrants for cash

from November 30, 2001

through April 17, 2002

at $1.75 per unit 3,701,430 37.014 6,440,486 - - 6,477,500

{ssuance of common stock
and warrants associated with
bridge loan conversien on

December 3, 2001 305.323 3,053 531,263 - - 534,316

Commissions, legal and banl:
fees associared with issuances for

the year ended June 30, 2002 - - (846,444) - - (846,444)

Fair marker value of options
and warrants granted and vested
during the year ended June 30, 2002 - - 1,644,913 - 203,813 1,848,726

Net loss - - - (3,021,709 - (3,021,709)

Balance at June 30, 2002 11,880,045 118,800 14,298,443  (9,571,085) (60,482) 4,785,676

Fair market value of options and
warrants granted and vested during

the year ended June 30, 2003 - - 788,360 - 60,482 848,842
Net loss - - - (2.778,004) - (2,778,004)
Balance at June 30, 2003 11,880,045 118,800 15,086,803 (12,349,089} - 2,856,514

Issuance of common stock cnd
warrants for cash from January
15, 2004 chrough February 12,

2004 at $2.37 per unit 1,536,922 15,369 3,627,131 - - 3,642,500
Allocation of proceeds to wa rancs - - (2,099,090) - - (2,099,090)
Reclassification of warrants - - 1,913,403 - - 1,913,463

Commissions, legat and bank fees

associated with issuances from

January 15, 2004 through

February 12, 2004 - - (378,624) - - (378,624)

Fair market value of options and
warrants vested during the year

ended June 30, 2004 - - $1,826,514 - - $1,826,514

{continuad)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SENESCO TECHNDLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

{a development stage company)

Consoclidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

Period from july 1, 1998 (date of

) ; Deficit Deferred
inception) 1o June 30. 2007 Accumulated Compensation Total
Comman Stock Capital During the Retated to Issuance  Stockholders’
Number of in Excess Development of Options and Equity
Shares Amount of Par Stage Warrants {Deficiency)
Options and warrants exercised
during the year ended June 30,
2004 at cxercise prices ranging
from $1.00 - $3,25 370,283 § 3,704 $ 692,945 - - $ 696,649
Net loss - - - § (3,726,951) - {3,726,951)
Balance at June 30, 2004 13,787,250 137,873 20,669,142 (16,076,040) - 4,730,975
Issuance of common stock
and warrants for cash on
May 9, 2005 ar $2.11 per unic 1,595,651 15957 3,350,872 - - 3,366,829
Allocation of proceeds ro warrants - - (1,715,347} - - (1,715,347)
Reclassification of warrants - . 1,579,715 - - 1,579,715
Commissions, legal and bank
fees associared with issuance
on May 9, 2005 - - (428,863) - - (428,863)
Fair market value of options and
warrants vested during the year
ended June 30, 2005 - - 974,235 - - 974,235
Options and warrants
exercised during the year
ended June 30, 2005 at exercise
prices ranging from §1.50 - $3.25 84,487 844 60,281 - - 61,125
Net loss - - - (2,978,918) - (2,978,918)
Balance at June 30, 2005 15,467,388 154,674 24,490,035 (19,054,958) - 5,589,751
Fair market value of options and
warrants vested during the year
ended June 30, 2006 - - 677,000 - - 677,000
Warrants exetcised during
the year ended June 30, 2006
at an exercise price of $0.01 14,000 100 - - - 100
Net loss - - - (3,314,885 - (3,314,885)
Balance at June 30, 2006 15,477,388 $154,774 $25,167,035 $(22,369,843) - $ 2,951,966
{cantinued)
Ses Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SENESCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

[a development stage company)

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

Period from fuly i, 1998 (date of

s ; Deficit Deferred
ineepeion) ta fune 30, 2007 Accumulated Compensation Total
Common Stock Capital During the Related to lssuance  Stockholders'
MNumber of in Excess Develgpment of Options and Equity
Shares Amount of Par Stage Warrants |Deficiency)
Issuance of common stock and
warrants for cash on Qcrober
10, 2006 at $1.135 per unit 1,986,306 $19,863 §2,229,628 - - $2,24949]
Commissions, legal and bank
fees associated with issuance
on QOcrober 10, 2006 - - {230,483) - - (230.483)
Warrants exercised during
the year ended June 30, 2007
ar an exercise price of $0.01 10,000 100 - - - 100
Fair market value of options and
warrants vested during the year
ended June 30, 2007 - - 970,162 - - 970,162
Net loss - - - $1(3,251,697) - (3,251,697)
Balance at June 30, 2007 17,473,694 $174,737 $28,136,342 $(25,621,540) - $2,689,539
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SENESCO TECHNCLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{a development stage company)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cumulative
Year ended June 30, Amounts from
2007 2006 2005 Inceprion
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nert loss $(3,251,697) $(3,314,885) $(2,978,918) $(25,621,540)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net loss o
net cash used in operating activiries:
Noncash capital contribution - - - 85,179
Noncash conversion of accrued expenses
into equiry - - - 131,250
Noncash income related o change
in fair value of warrant liabilicy - - (135,632} (321,259
[ssuance of common stock and
warrants for interest - - - 9.316
Issuance of stock options and warrants
for services 970,162 677.000 974,235 8,798,775
Depreciation and amortization 166,172 40,112 43.719 363,841
{Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 35,058 16.960 (62,577) (104,526)
Security deposit - - - (7.187)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 31,563 (139,874) 148,561 109,258
Accrued expenses 47,475 149,882 (107,624} 377.359
Deferred revenue (25,000} 8,334 - 16,667
Other liabilicy (5,222} 32,082 2,336 29,196
Net cash used in operating activities (2,031,489) (2,530,389) (2,115,900) (16,133,671}
Cash flows from investing acriviries:
Patent costs (495,852) {792,069) {531,988) (2,745.707)
Redemption (purchase) of
investments, net 600,000 3,339,395 (239,621) (250,000)
Purchase of property and equipment (2,179) - (5,972} (170,107)
Net cash provided by
(used in) investing activities 101,969 2,547,326 (777,581} (3,165,814)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from grant - 9,578 - 99,728
Proceeds from issuance of bridge notes - - - 525,000
Proceeds from issuance of common
stack and warrants, net and exercise
of warrants and oprions 2,019,108 100 2,999,091 19,082,818
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,019,108 9,678 2,999,091 19,707,546
Ner increase (decrease) tn cash and
cash equivalents 89,588 26,615 105,610 408,061
Cash and cash equivalents ac
beginning of period 318,473 291,858 186,248 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end
of period $ 408,061 $ 318,473 $ 291,858 $ 408,061
Supplemental disclosure of
cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period
for interest 3 - 5 - $ - $ 22,317
Supplemental schedule of noncash
financing activiry:
Conversion of bridge notes into stock  § - $ - $ - £ 334,316

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SENESCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{a developmen: stage company)

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Senesco Technologies, Inc. (*ST7) and its
wholly owned subsidiary, Senesco, Inc. (“SI") (coliectively, the “"Company™). All significant intercompany accounts and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company is a developrnent stage biotechnolegy company whose mission is to develop novel approaches to treac pro-
grammed cell deach diseases in humans (apoptosis) and cancer, and to enhance the quality and productivity of fruits, flowers,

vegetables and agronomic crops through the control of cell death in plants (senescence).

SI, a New Jersey corporation, was incorporated orn November 24, 1998 and is the successor entity to Senesco, LL.C., 2

New Jersey limited liability company that was formed on June 23, 1998 but commenced operations on July 1, 1998,

On December 12, 2002, th= stockholders approved a proposal to increase the authorized Common Srock of the Company
from 20,000,000 shares 1o 30,000,000 shares. On December 14, 2006, the stockholders approved a proposal to increase
the authorized Common Stack of the Company from 30,000,000 shares to 60,000,000 shares.

As shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company has a history of losses with a deficit accu-
mulated during the development stage from July |, 1998 (inception) through June 30, 2007 of $25.621,540. These con-
ditions raise substantial daubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s continuation
as 2 going concern is dependent upon its ability to ultimately actain profitable operations, generate sufficient cash flow o
meet its obligations and/or obtain additional financing as may be required and complying with regularory requirements.

The outcome of these uncetainties cannot be assured.

The American Stock Exchaage requires the Company to meet minimum financial requirements in order to maintain its
listing. Currently, the Com sany does not meet the $6,000,000 minimum net worth continued listing requirement of the
American Stock Exchange znd the Company has received a notice of noncempliance from the American Stock Exchange.
The Company submitted a plan to the American Stock Exchange discussing how it intends to regain compliance with the
continued listing requirements. The American Stock Exchange has accepted the Company’s plan and has given it uncil

March 1, 2008 te effectuac: the plan and regain compliance with the continued listing requirements.

The Company’s abiliry to maintain sufficienc liquidity in the future is dependent on raising additional capital. As disclosed
in Note 14, on August 1, 2007 and Auguse 29, 2007, the Company entered into agreements that will provide sufficient
working capital ro fund its operations for approximately the next two years. However, if the Company does not meet all or

some of the funding milestones, then the Company cannot provide assurance thar it will continue as a going concern.

Cash equivalents consist of investments which are readily convertible into cash with original maturities of three months or
less. The Company mainta:ns its cash in money market and bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally

insured limits. The Company believes that there is no significant credit risk with respect to these accounts.

The Company invests in United States treasury notes and high-grade corporare and federal governmental agency debr
instruments. Based on the ‘Zompany's intentions regarding these instruments, the Company has classified all markerable
debr securities as held-to-maturity and has accounted for these investments at amortized cost. Marketable securities maruring

in one year or less are classified as current assets.

Property and equipment are stared ar cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation of property and
equipment is provided for bty the straighe-line method over the estimated uscful lives of the assers. Leasehold improvements

are amortized over the lesser of the assets” useful lives or the remaining term of the lease.
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The Company conducts research and development activities, the cost of which is expensed as incurred, in order to gener-
ate patents that can be licensed to third parties in exchange for license fees and royalties. Because the patents are the basis of
the Company’s future revenue, the patent costs are capitalized. The capitalized patent costs represent the outside legal fees

incurred by the Company to submit and underrake all necessary efforts 1o have such parenr applications issued as patents.

The length of time chat it takes for an initial parent application to be approved is generally berween four to six years,
however, due to the unique nature of each patent application, the actual length of time may vary. If a patenc application is
denied, the associated cost of thart application would be written off. However, the Company has not had any patent appli-
cations denied as of the date of this Reporr on Form 10-K. Additionally, should a parent application become impaired

during the application process, the Company would write down or write off the associated cost of that patent applicarion.

The Company had decermined that the economic benefir of the parenr applications did not begin until they were issued. As
such, the Company would amortize the issued patent costs beginning on the date of issue, but did not amortize the cost of
patent applications that were still pending. Due to the increasing number and scope of license agreements the Company has
entered into, the Company has determined chat it is now receiving the economic benefit of certain patent applications as well

as the issued patents and has begun amortizing the patent application costs during the year ended June 30, 2007,
Patenr costs are being amortized over a period of 17 years, the life of the patent.

The Company assesses the impairment in value of intangible assets whenever evenrs or circumstances indicate thar their
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment

review include the following;

* significant negative industry trends;
* significant underurilization of the assets;
+ significant changes in how the Company uses the assets or its plans for their use; and

* changes in technology and the appearance of competing technelogy.

If the Company's review determines that the furure discounted cash flows related ro these assers will nat be sufficient o
recover their carrying value, the Company will reduce the carrying values of these assets down 1o its estimate of fair value
and continue amortizing them over their remaining useful lives. To date, the Company has not recorded any impairment

of intangible assets.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future rax consequences atrributable to differences berween
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respecrive tax bases. Deferred 1ax assets and

liabilities are measured using enacted rates expected to apply when the differences are expected 10 be realized.

The Company receives cerrain nonrefundable upfront fees in exchange for the transfer of its technology to licensees. Upon
delivery of the technology, the Company has no further obligations to the licensee with respect 1o the basic rechnology
transferred and, accordingly, recognizes revenue at that time. The Company may, however, receive additional payments
from its licensees in the event such licensees achieve certain development or commercialization milestones in their particular
field of use. Other nonrefundable upfront fees and milesrone payments, where the milestone payments are a function of
time as opposed to achievement of specific achievement-based milestones, are deferred and amortized rarably over the

estimated research period of the license.

As further discussed in Note 7, the Company adopted FAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS No. 123R”) effective
July 1, 2005 using the modified-retrospective method. The adoption of this standard requires the recognition of stock-based
compensation expense in the conselidated financial statements. Prior to July 1, 2003, the Company followed Accounting

Principles Board Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued ro Employees™ (“APB No. 257}, and related interpretations.
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Loss per common share is compured by dividing the loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Shares t be issued upon the exercise of the outstanding options and warrants aggregating 7,790,315
and 8,296,591 as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are not included in the compuration of loss per shate as their

effect is anti-dilurive.

Certain amounts have been reclassified in the prior year's consolidated financial statements to conform with the June 30,

2007 presentation.

The preparation of financiz | statements in conformiry with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires manag:ment to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilicies
and disclosure of continge 1t assets and labilities ar the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses duriny the reporting period. The critical accounting policies thar require management’s most significant
estimate and judgment are the assessment of the recoverability of intangible assets, and the valuation allowance on deferred

tax assets. Actual resubts experienced by the Company may differ from management’s estimates.

In June 2006, the Financia Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 487). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting
for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No, 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement atribute for the financial
statement recognition and racasurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is effective
for fiscal years beginning alter December 13, 2006, The Company is currently evaluating the effect, if any, that FIN 48

will have on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (*SFAS No. 157"). SFAS Ne. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands dis-
closures abour fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting standards thar require or permit
fair value measurements. A-cordingly, SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurement. SFAS No. 157
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on the assumptions that marker
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. Companies will be required to disclose the extent to which fair value
is used 1o measure assees and liabilities, the inpurs used to develop the measurements and the effect of certain of the measure-
ments on earnings (or changes in net assers) for the period. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currendy

evaluaring the effecr, if any. that SFAS No. 157 will have on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 139, “The Fair Value Oprion for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-
-Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" {(“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required o be measured at
fair value. SFAS No. 159 it effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evalu-

ating the effect, if any, that SFAS No. 159 will have on its consolidated financial posirion or results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstarements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB No. 108™). SAB No. 108
provides guidance on the consideranion of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements
for the purpose of determining whether the current years financial statements are materially misstated. SAB No. 108 is
effective as of the end of the Company’s 2007 fiszal year, allowing a one-time transitional cumulative effect adjustment to
beginning retained earnings as of July 1, 2006, for errors that were nor previously deemed material, but are material under
the guidance in SAB No. 108, SAB No. 108 did nort have a material effect on its consolidated financial position or results

of operatcions for the vear ended June 30, 2007,
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

In December 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. EITF 00-19-2. This FSI* addresses an issuer’s accounting
for registration payment arrangements and specifies that the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise
transfer consideration under a registration payment arrangement should be separately recognized and measured in accor-
dance with FASB No. 5. The guidance in this FSI' amends FASB Statements 133 and 150 and FASB Interpretation No.
45 1o include scope exceptions for registration paymenc arrangements, This FSP further clarifies thar a financial inscrument
subject to a registration payment arrangement should be accounted for without regard ro the contingent obligation
transfer consideration pursuant to the registration payment arrangement. This guidance is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and for transactions entered on or after December 22, 2006.
The standard did not impact the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations for the year ended

June 30, 2007.

Management does not believe thar any other recently issued, but not yer effective, accounting standards if currently

adopred would have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.

2. INVESTMENTS:

Ar June 30, 2007 and 2006, the amortized cost basis, aggregate fair value, gross unrealized gains and marurity by majoricy

security type were as follows:

Gross
Unrealized Aggregate Amortized
Gain/{Loss) Fair Value Cost Basis
June 30, 2007
Held-to-maturity securities:
Corporare debr securities {maturing within one year} $ -0- $ 250,000 $ 250,000
June 30, 2006
Held-to-matusity securities:
Corporate debt securities (maruring within one year) $ -0- $ 850,000 $ 850,000
$ -0- $ 850,000 $ 850,000

Realized gains and losses are determined based on the specific-identification methed.

3. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:

The following are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets ar:

June 30,

2007 2006

Prepaid insurance $ 34,301 $ 34,800
Prepaid license fee - 45,833
Prepaid tesearch 11,796 19,635
Prepaid legal 41,051 13,391
Prepaid other 17,318 25,925
$104,526 $139.584
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment, a: cost, consists of the {ollowing:

June 30, Estimated
2007 2006 Useful Life
Company Web site - $ 26,500 3 years
Equipment 32,953 38,872 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 67,674 67,674 7 years
100,627 133,046
Accumulated depreciation snd amortization (93,101) (122,728)
$ 7,526 $ 10,318

Depreciation and amortization expense aggregated $4,971, $19,720, $27,636 and $162,581 for the years ended June 30, 2007,
2006, 2005, and cumulatively from inception through June 30, 2007, respectively.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Intangible assets, at cost, cansist of the following:

June 30,
2007 2006
Patents approved $ 473,847 $ 379,371
Patents pending 2,271,860 1,870,484
2,745,707 2,249,885
Accumulated amortization (201,260} (40,059}
$2,544 447 $2,209,796

Amoctization expense amonunted to $161,201, $20,392, $16,083 and $201,260 for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006,
2005, and cumulartively from inceprion through June 30, 2007, respectively.

Estimated amortization expiense for the next five years is as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2008 $165,000
2009 165,000
2010 165,000
201t 165,000
2012 165,000
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6. ACCRUED EXPENSES:
The following are included in accrued expenses at:
June 30,
2007 2006
Accrued research $271,000 $ 228,265
Accrued accounting, 40,000 40,000
Accrued patent costs 45,000 28,202
Accrued legal 10,186 33,417
Accrued other 11,173 -
$377.359 $ 329,884

1. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

In February 2004, the Company complered a private placement to certain accredited investors (the “2004 Accredited
Investor Private Placement”) for an aggregate amount of 1,536,922 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase
768,459 shares of Common Stock for the aggregate cash consideration of $3,642,500. The 2004 Accredited Investor
Private Placement offered units of one share of Common Stock and a five-year warrant to purchase 0.50 shares of
Common Stock at a price equal to $2.37 per unit. The warrants were issued at an exercise price equal to $3.79 per share,
with such warrants vesting on the date of grant. The costs associated with the 2004 Accredited Investor Private Placement

totaled $378,624. The Company did not engage a placement agent for the sale of such securiries.

Two directors of the Company participated in the 2004 Accredited Investor Private Placement. Specifically, such directors
of the Company purchased, in the aggregate, 63,292 shares of Restricted Common Stock on the same terms and conditions

as all purchasers hereunder.

On March 17, 2004, the Company filed a registration statement with the SEC on Form 8-3 to register all of the shares
and the shares underlying the warrants acquired by the purchasers and finders (see below) in the 2004 Accredited Investor
Private Placement. The registration statement was declared effective by the SEC on May 14, 2004, and remained in effect
until February 2, 20006.

Due to the Company’s obligation to file a registration statement to register for resale the shares underlying the warrants

under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in accordance with EITF 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial

Instruments Indexed To, and Potentially Settled In 2 Company’s Own Commen Stack,” the value of the warrants amounting
to $2,099,090 was recorded as a liability until the filing was made. The decrease in market value of the Common Srock
from the closing of its financing ro March 17, 2004, the date of filing the registration statement, resulted in noncash other
income to reflect the decrease in Black-Scholes value of the warrants berween those two dartes. As a result, the Company
incurred a decrease in Hability and other noncash income of $185,627 as of March 17, 2004. Upon the Company meeting its

obligacion to file a registration statement, the fair value of the warrants amounting to $1,913,463, was reclassified to equiry.

Sands Brothers and Stanford Group Company acted as co-managing finders of the 2004 Accredited Investor Private
Placement, and certain consultants to the Company provided financial advisory services in connection with the 2004
Accredited Investor Private Placement. As consideration for their services to the Company, such finders were issued
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 73,682 shares of Common Stock, on the same terms and conditions as the warrants

issued to the purchasers in the 2004 Accredited Investor Private Placement.
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In May 2005, the Company completed another private placement 1o certain accredited investors (the *2005 Accredited
Investor Private Placement”, for an aggregate amount of 1,595,651 shares of Commeon Stock and warrants to purchase
797,836 shares of Commeon Stock for the aggregate cash consideration of $3,366,829. The 2005 Accredired Investor
Private Placement offered unics of one share of Common Stock and a five-year warrant to putchase 0.30 shares of
Common Stack ar a price equal to $2.11 per unit. The warrants were issued at an exercise price equal to $3.38 per share,
with such warrants vesting on the date of grant. The costs associated with the 2005 Accredited Investor Private Placement
totaled $428,863. In addition, the Company has caused its directors and officers to enter into Lock-up Agreements for a

period of six months from the Closing Date with the Placement Agent for the benefit of the Purchasers,

On May 27, 2005, the Company filed a registration statement with the SEC on Form 5-3 10 register all of the shares and
the shares underlying the warrants acquired by the purchasers and placement agent (see below) in the 2005 Accredited
Investor Privare Placement. The registration statement was declared effeciive by the SEC on June 17, 2005, and remained
in effect until May 9, 2007,

Due to the Company’s obligation o file a registration statement to register for resale the shares underlying the wasrants
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in accordance with EITF 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial
Instruments Indexed To, and Potentially Sertled In a Company’s Own Common Stock,” the value of the warrants amounting to
$1,715,347 was recorded as a liability until the filing was declared effective. The decrease in marker value of the Common
Stock from the closing of its financing to June 17, 2003, the effective date of the registration statement, resulted in non-
cash other income to refleci the decrease in Black-Scholes value of the warrants between those two dates. As a result, the
Company incurred a decrezse in liability and other noncash income of $135,632 as of June 17, 2005. Upon the Company

meeting its obligation to file a registration statement, the fair value of the warrants amounting to $1,579,715, was reclassified

o equity.

Oppenheimer and Co. Inc. ("Oppenheimer”) acted as the placement agent for the 2005 Accredired Investor Private
Placement. As consideration for their services to the Company, Oppenheimer was issued warranss to purchase an aggregate
of 167,544 shares of Comrion Stack, on the same terms and conditions as the warrants issued to the purchasers in the

2005 Accredited Investor Private Placement,

On Qctober 11, 2006, the Company completed a private placement to certain members of the Company’s board of
directors, institutional and accredited investors (the “Private Placement”) for an aggregate amount of 1,986,306 shares

of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 993,153 shares of Common Stock for the aggregate cash consideration of
$2,249,491. The Private Placement offered unirts of one share of Common Stock and a five-year warrant to purchase
0.50 shares of Common Stock art a price equal to $1.1325 per unit. The warrancs were issued at an exercise price equal to
$1.18 per share, with such warrants vesting on the date of grant, but not exercisable for a six-month pertod from the date
of closing, The costs associated wich the Private Placement totaled $230,483. In addition, the Company entered into

a Registration Rights Agrecment with these purchasers, The Registracion Rights Agreement required the Company to file
a registration statement for the shares within 30 days of the closing dare {the “Filing Date”), and to have such registration
statement declared effectivi: within 120 days of the closing date {the “Effective Date”). If the Company failed 10 file a reg-
istration statement on or before the Filing Date, it was required to pay 1o each purchaser in the Private Placement 1.0% of
the aggregare purchase price for each 30 day period that such regisiration statement had not been filed. H the registration
statement was not declared effective on or before the Effective Date, the Company was required to pay to cach purchaser
in the Private Placement 2.0% of the aggregate purchase price paid by such purchaser for the first thirty day period following
the Effective Date and 1.0% for each thirty day period thereafter, with all payments subject to a maximum of 10.0% of
the purchase price. The Company filed the registration statement on November 3, 2006 and the registration statement was
declared effective by the SEC on November 27, 2006, and will remain in effect, subject to the Company being in compliance
with all the applicable rules and regulations, until October 10, 201 1. Accordingly, the Company was not required to pay

any liquidated damages to any of the purchasers.
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H.C. Wainwright and Co., Inc. {*Wainwright”) acted as the placement agent for the Private Placement. As consideration
for their services to the Company, Wainwright was issued a five-year warrant to purchase 139,041 shares of Commeon

Stack, ar a strike price equal to $1.07. Such warrant is immediately exercisable.

In 1999, the Company adopred the 1998 Stock [ncentive Plan, as amended (the “Plan”), which provides for the grant of
stock options and stock purchase rights to certain designated employees and certain other persons performing services for
the Company, as designated by the board of directors. Pursuant to the Plan, an aggregate of 6,000,000 shares of common
stock have been reserved for issuance. On March 28, 2003, cthe Company filed a registration statement with the SEC to

register all of the 3,000,000 shares of Common Stock underlying the Plan. On January 26, 2007, the Company amended
the registration statement to register an additional 3,000,000 shares of Common Stock underlying the Plan. The registra-

tion statement and amendment was deemed effective upon filing,

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted FAS No. 123R, utilizing the modified-retrospective method. FAS No. 123R
requires the recognition of stock-based compensation expense in the consolidared financial statements. Under the modified-
rerrospective method, the provisions of FAS No. 123R apply to all awards granted or modified after the date of adoption.
Prior year results have been adjusted to reflect the amortized portion of the fair value of the options granted prior to the
date of adoption, which have been measured under the original provisions of FAS No. 123. In addition, the unamortized
portion of the options that were granted prior to the dare of adoprion, also determined under the original provisions of

FAS No. 123, shall be recognized in the periods after the date of adeption.

The terms and vesting schedules for share-based awards vary by type of grant and the employment status of the grantee.

Generally, the awards vest based upon time-based conditians.

The fair value of each stock option granted has been determined using the Black-Scholes model, The material factors incorpo-

rated in the Black-Scholes model in estimaring the value of the options reflected in the above table include the following:

Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Estimated life in years 6-10 6-10 10
Risk-free interest rate " 4.2%-4.63% 4.2%-4.5% 4.2%
Volarilicy 70%-80% 70%-111% 111%-148%
Dividend paid None None None

{1} represents the interest rate on a U.S. Treasury security with a maturity date corresponding to that of the option term,

The ultimate values of the options will depend on the future price of the Company’s Commaon Stock, which cannot be

forecast with reasonable accuracy.
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Stock option activity under the Plan is summarized as follows:

Weighted-average

Shares Exercise Price
Oprions owtstanding at July 1, 2004 1,878,500 52.64
Granted 295,500 53.45
Exercised (22,500) $2.05
Expired (40,000) $3.85
Options cutstanding at June 30, 2005 2,111,500 $2.74
Granted 318,000 $1.40
Exercised - -
Expired (3.000} $3.48
Oprtions ourstanding ac June 30, 2006 2,426,500 $2.56
Granred 338,000 $1.08
Exercised - -
Expired (118,500) $3.42
Options outstanding at June 30, 2007 2,646,000 $2.33
Oprions exercisable at June %0, 2005 1,834,508 $2.68
Options exercisable at June 30, 2006 2,181,337 $2.64
Options exercisable at June 50, 2007 2,396,334 $2.45

Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during the year

ended June 30, 2005 $3.23
Weighted-average fair value of

oprions granted during the year

ended June 30, 2006 $0.92
Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during the year

ended June 30, 2007 $0.85

Non-vested stock option activity under the Plan is summarized as follows:

Weighted-average

Number of Options Grant-Date Fair Value
Non-vested stock oprions at July 1, 2004 342,500 $2.46
Granted 295,500 $3.23
Vested (361,008} $2.09
Forfeited - -
Non-vested stock oprions ar June 30, 2005 276,992 $2.98
Granted 318,000 $0.92
Vested (349,162} §2.05
Forfeited (667} $3.23
Non-vested stock options at June 30, 2006 245,163 $1.47
Granted 338,000 $0.86
Vested (328,497) $1.30
Forfeited {5,000) $0.87
Non-vested stock oprtions at June 30, 2007 249,666 $1.07
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at June 30, 2007:

Oprtions Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
avetage Weighted- Weighted-
Number Remaining average Number average
Range of Outstanding ar Contractual Exercise Exercisable at Exercise
Exercise Prices June 30, 2007 Life (Years) Price June 30, 2007 Price
$1.05- 31.65 743,500 8.40 $1.27 493,834 $1.28
$2.05- 82.35 1,025,000 3.90 $2.12 1,015,000 $2.12
$3.15 - $4.00 877,500 5.30 $3.49 887,500 $3.49
$1.05 - $4.00 2,646,000 5.65 $2.33 2,396,334 $2.45

As of June 30, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic value of stack options outstanding was $23,610, with a weighted-average
remaining term of 5.7 years. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercisable at that same date was $9,787, with a
weighted-average remaining term of 5.3 years. As of June 30, 2007, the Company has 3,264,000 shares available for future

stock oprion grants.

As of June 30, 2007, total compensation expense not yet recognized related to stock option grants amounted o $223,037,

which will be recognized over the rext 18 months.

On Seprember 7, 1999, the Company granted to its patent counsel, as partial consideration for services rendered, options
to purchase 10,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock ax an exercise price equal 1o $3.50 per share, with 3,332
options vesting on the date of grant, 3,334 options vesting on the firse anniversary of the date of grane, and 3,334 oprions

vesting on the second anniversary of the date of grant. Such options were granted ourtside of the Company’s Plan.
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The following table represents warrants outstanding as of:

June 30,

Exercise Price 2007 2006
$7.00 10,000 10,000
3.79 842,141 842,141
3.59 237,600 237,600
3.50 280,000 280,000
3.45 15,000 15,000
3.38 965,380 965,380
3.25 750,000 1,779,203
3.15 20,000 20,000
2.35 15,000 15,000
2.15 110,000 110,000
2.00 750,000 1,570,767
1.40 5,000 5,000
1.18 993,153 -
1.08 2,500 -
1.07 139,041 -
0.01 - 10,000
5,134,815 5,860,091

As of June 30, 2007, 5,131,482 of the above warrants are exercisable expiring at various dates through 2016. Ar June 30,

2007, the weighted-average exercise price on the above warrants was $2.48.

The following stock-based rompensation expense of $970,162, $677,000, $974,235 and $8,798,776 was recognized for
the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, 2005 and cumulatively from inception through June 30, 2007, respectively:

Year Ended June 30, Cumulative
2007 2006 2005 From Inception

General and administrative expenses $ 909,848 % 488,000 $ 691,843 $ 7,536,940
Research and development =xpenses 60,314 189,000 282,392 1,261,835
Total stock-based

compensation expense $ 970,162 $ 677,000 $ 974,235 $ 8,798,775
Basic and diluted loss per .

common share 5 06 $ .04 $ 07

ANNUAL REPORT 122




SENESCO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
{a development stage company)

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

8. INCOME TAXES:

"The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. The subsidiary files separate state and local income rax rerurns.

The reconciliation of the effective income tax rate to the federal statutory rate is as follows:

Year ended June 30, 2007 2006 2005

Federal stacutory rate (34)% (34)% (34)%

Valuation allowance 34 34 34
-0-% ~0-% -0-%

The deferred income tax asset consists of the following at:

June 30,
2007 2006
Deferred rtax asset: :
Ner operating loss carryforward $ 6,443,000 $ 5,531,000
Srack-based compensation 1,181,000 897,000
Orther 95,000 95,000
Valuation allowance {(7.719,000) (6,523,000)
¥ -0- $ -0-

In December 2004, the Company sold its entire state ner operating losses for the year ended June 30, 2003, and received
ner proceeds of $153,160.

At June 30, 2007, the Company has federal and stare net operating loss carryforwards of approximarely $17,212,000 and
$9,854,000, respectively, available to offset future taxable income expiring on various dates through 2027, which may be

subject to cerrain limirations in the future.

9. COMMITMENTS:

Effective September 1, 1998, the Company entered into a three-year research and development agreement, which has sub-
sequently been renewed, with a university that a researcher, who is an officer, director and stockholder of the Company, is
affiliated. Pursuant to the agreement, the university provides research and development under the direction of the researcher
and the Company. The agreement is renewable annually by the Company which has the right of termination upon 30 days’
advance written notice. Effective September 1, 2004, the Company extended the research and development agreement

for an additional two-year period through August 31, 2006, in the amount of Can $1,529,430 or approximately U.S.
$1,337,000. Effective Seprember 1, 2006, the Company extended the research and development agreement for an addi-
tional one-year period through August 31, 2007, in the amount of Can $631,050, or approximately U.S. $550,000.
Effective September 1, 2007, the Company extended the research and development agreement for an additional one-year
period through August 31, 2008, in the amounr of Can $652,600, or approximately U.S. $555,000. Research and devel-
opment expenses under this agreement for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2003 aggregated U.S. $568,872, U.S.
$692,982 and U.S. $628,341, respectively, and U.S. $3,896,304 for the cumulative period through June 30, 2007, Fuure
obligations to be paid under the agreement through August 3§, 2008 equal approximately $640,000.
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Effective May 1, 1999, the Company entered into a consulting agreement for research and development with such researcher.
Effective January 1, 2003, 2003, and 2007, the agreement was amended 1o provide for an increase in the monthly paymencs
from $3,000 to $5,000, $5,000 o $5,200, and $5,200 to 35,417, respectively. The agreement was renewed for an additional
two-year term through June 30, 2009. Future obligations to be paid under the agreement equal §130,000.

The Company has employment agreements with certain employees, all of whom are also stockholders of the Company.
These agreements provide for a base compensation and additional amounts, as defined. The agreements expire berween
January 2008 and October 2008. Future base compensation to be paid through October 2008 under the agreements as
of June 30, 2007 is $637,372.

The Company is obligated under a noncancelable operating lease of office space expiring on May 31, 2011. The aggregate

minimum future payments, subject ro certain escalations, is payable as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2008 $ 77,596
2009 78,508
2010 79,420
2011 73,568

$309,092

Rent expense charged to operations aggregated $92,872, $86,849, $47,759 and $510,207 for the years ended June 30,
2007, 2006, 2005, and from inceprion through June 30, 2007, respectively.

The lease provides for scheduled increases in base rent. Rent expense is charged to operations ratably over the term of the
lease, which results in cleferred rent payable and represents the cumulative rent expense charged 1o operations from incep-

tion of the lease in excess of the required lease payments.

On Qctober 11, 2006, the Company entered into a three-year non-exclusive financial advisory agreement with Stanford
Group Company (“Stanford”™). As compensation under the agreement, previously issued warrants that were purchased
by Stanford and its affiliates in a private placement were amended. The original exercise prices on 1,500,000 warrants,
750,000 of which had an exercise price of $3.25 and 750,000 of which had an exercise price of $2.00, were reduced 1o
$2.00 and $1.50, respectively. Additionally, the original expiration dates of December 2006 and January 2007 were each
extended for a three-year period through December 2009 and January 2010, respectively. Stock-based compensation in the
amount of $683,000 related 1o the amendment of such warrants was recorded during the year ended June 30, 2007. The
agreement may be rerm .nated by either party upon sixty days written notice. Stanford was also granted piggyback registration

righes in connection with the shares underlying the warrants.

10. JOINT VENTURE:

On May 14, 1999, the Company entered into a joint venture agreemenr (“Joint Venture”) with an Israeli partnership that
is engaged in the worldwide marketing of tissue culrure plants. The purpose of the Joint Venture is to develop enhanced

banana plants which will result in banana fruit with improved consumer- and grower-driven traits. For the period from
inception on May 14, 1999 to June 30, 2005, the Joint Venture has had no revenue, expenses, assets or liabilities. The
Company's portion of the Joint Venture's expenses approximared $162,500 and $121,832 for the years ended June 30,

2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included in research and development expenses.

In July 1999, che Joint Venture applied for and received a conditional grant from the Israel - United States Binational

Research and Developinent Foundation {the “BIRD Foundation”). This agreement, as amended, allowed the Joint
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Venture to receive $340,000 over a five-year period ending May 31, 2004. Grants received from the BIRD Foundarion
will be paid back only upon the commercial success of the Joint Venture's technology, as defined. The Company has
received a toral of $99,728, of which $9,578 was received during the year ended June 30, 2006 and none was received
during the year ended June 30, 2047,

11. LICENSE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS:

In June 2002, the Company entered into a three-year exclusive worldwide development and option agreement with
ArborGen, (“ArborGen”) (the “Agreement”) to develop the Company's technology in certain species of trees. [n July 2002,
the Company received an initial fee. In November 2004 and January 2006, the Company received milestone payments. On
December 21, 2006, ArborGen converted the Agreement into a commercial license agreement for the development and
commercialization of certain species of trees. Under the rerms of the license agreement, the Company will receive certain

annual payments over the next two years and, additionally, upon commercialization, a royalty on incremental ner sales.

On March 8, 2004, the Company entered into a Development and License Agreement with The Scotts Company (the
“Scotts Agreement”), which will enable the two companies o incorporate the Company’s proprietary Factor 5A and DHS
technology into a variety of garden plants, bedding plants and turfgrasses. The Scorts Agreement provides for an upfromnt
payment upon execution of the Scotts Agreement, milestone payments and a one-time fee, as well as royalty payments,
upon commercial introduction. Pursuant to the terms of the Scotrs Agreement and in conjunction with SAB No. 104, the
Company is amertizing the upfront and milestone payments over the term of the estimated developmenc period of the
Agreement. As of June 30, 2007, the amounc of deferred revenue is $16.667.

On Ocrober 18, 2004, the Company entered into a license agreement with Poet, (formerly Broin Companies), ("Poet”)
to license the Company’s proprietary gene technology to Poet to improve aspects of Poet’s ethanol production capabilities.

The Company will receive an annual payment for each Poet facility that incorporates the Company’s technology.

On November 8, 2006, the Company encered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience GmbH for the development
and commercialization of Canola (the “Agreement”). Under the rerms of the Agreement, the Company received an upfront
payment, will receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain development milestones, and will receive com-

mercialization fees based upon specified benchmarks.

12. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS:
Years Ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005

Balance at Additions Balance
Beginning of Charged 10 at End
Year Expense(*) Deducrions of Year

Year ended June 30, 2007:

Valuarion allowance —

deferred tax asset $6,523,000 $1,196,000 $ 0 $7,719,000
Year ended June 30, 2006:

Valuarion allowance —

deferred tax asset $5,428,000 $1,095,000 £ 0 $6,523,000
Year ended June 30, 2005:

Valuation allowance —

deferred rax asser $4,499,000 $ 929,000 $ 0 $5,428,000

(*) Offset ro rax benefit of net operation losses.
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13. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED}:
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Quarter Ended September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
Revenue $ 81,250 $ 181,250 $ 6,250 $ 31,250
Total operating expenses 692,633 1,342,989 828,483 756,895
Loss from operations (611,383) (1,161,739) (822,233) (725,645)
Orther income, net 10,918 26,102 20,916 11,367
Net loss ${600,465) $(1,135,637) $(801,317) $(714,278)
Basic and diluted net

loss per common shaie $  (0.04) $ (0.07) $ (0.05) 5 (0.04)
Basic and diluted

weighted-average

number of common

shares ourstanding 15,480,649 17,257,791 17,473,694 17,473,694

Year Ended June 30, 2006

Quarter Ended September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
Revenue $ 12,500 $ 12,500 $ 35416 $ 6,250
Total operating expensus 941,990 954,181 777,447 812,389
Loss from operations (929,490) {941,681) (742,031) (806,139}
Other income, net 32,368 27,672 24,610 19,806
Net loss $(897,122) $(914,009) $(717,421) $(786,333)
Basic and diluted net

loss per common share $ (0.06) $  (0.06) $  (0.04) $ (0,09
Basic and dilured

weighted-average

number of common

shares outstanding 15,467,388 15,467,388 15,467,388 15,477,388
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
Licensing Agreements

On July 17, 2007, the Company entered inte a license agreement with Bayer CrapScience AG for the development and
commercialization of cotton (the “Bayer Cotton Agreement”). Under the terms of the Bayer Corton Agreement, the
Company received, (i) an upfront initial payment, {ii) will receive milestone payments upon the achievement of cercain

development milestones, and (iii) additionally, upon commercialization, a royalty on net sales.

On August 6, 2007, the Company entered into a license agreement with the Monsanto Company for the development
and commercialization of corn and soy (the “Monsanto Agreement”). Under the terms of the Monsanto Agreement, the
Company received, (i) an upfront initial payment, (ii) will receive milestone payments upon the achievement of certain

development milestones, and (iii) additionally, upon commercialization, a royalty on ner sales.

On Seprember 11, 2007, the Company entered into a license agreement with Bayer CropScience AG for the develop-
ment and commercialization of Rice (the “Bayer Rice Agreement”). Under the terms of the Bayer Rice Agreement, the
Company received, (i) an upfront payment, (ii) will receive milestone payments upon the achievement of cerrain

development milestones, and (iii} addittonally, upon commercialization, a royalty on net sales.
Financing

Overall Financing

On August 1, 2007 and August 29, 2007, the Company entered into binding Securities Purchase Agreements with

YA Global Investments (“YA Global”) and Stanford Venture Capital Holdings, Inc. {“Stanford™), respectively, to sell to
each of YA Global and Stanford up to $5,000,000 of secured convertible debentures and accompanying warrants for an
aggregate gross proceeds of $10,000,000. The convertible debentures convert into the Company’s common stock at a
fixed price of $0.90 per share subject to certain adjustments {the “Fixed Conversion Price™), for a period of two years
immediately following the signing date, provided that the Company has achieved the following milestones by January
31, 2008: (i} successful completion of animal studies, other than toxicology studies, necessary for the advancement of
factor 5A1 in human clinical trials, {ii) the engagement of a contract research organization for human clinical studies of
factor 5A1, and (iii) the signing of at least one (1) corporate partnership or license agreement after August 1, 2007 with
an agricultural company utilizing the Company’s proprietary platform. After the second anniversary of the signing date, or
if the Company does not achieve the foregoing milestones by January 31, 2008, the convertible debentures may convert
inco shares of the Company’s common stock at the lower of the fixed conversion price or 80% of the lowest daily volume-
weighted average price (the “VWAP"), of the commen stock during the five trading days prior to the conversion date. The
maturity date of each of the convertible debenrures for YA Global and Stanford is December 30, 2010 and December 31,
2010, respectively. Currently, at the fixed conversion price, the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion
of the convertible debentures and exercise of warrants represents, in the aggregate, 25,000,000 shares, plus an estimated

additional 2,000,000 shares for the payment of interest in stock under the convertible debentures.

Pursuant to the terms of the Securities Purchase Agreements, the Company is required to seek shareholder approval ro

increase the authorized number of shares of common stock from 60,000,000 shares to 100,000,000 shares.

The convertible debentures accrue interest on their outstanding principal balances at an annual rate of 8%. The Company
has the option to pay interest in cash or, upon certain conditians, common stock. If the Company pays interest in common
stock, the stock will be valued ar a 10% discount to the average daily VWAP for the five day trading period prior to the

interest payment date {the “Interest Shares”).
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At the Company’s option, it can redeem a portion of, or all of, the principal owed under the convertible debentures by
providing the investors with at least 31 business days’ written notice; provided that, at the time of receipt of the notice,
either: (A){i} the VWAP of the common stock exceeds 130% of the Fixed Conversion Price for at least 20 of 30 prior
trading days and (ii) there is an effecrive registration statement for the resale of the common stock thac will be issued
under the redemption or (B) it redeems a portion, or all, of the principal owed atr a 20% premium above the principal
then outsranding and any accrued interest thereupon. If the Company redeems all or any of the principal outstanding

under the convertible debentures, it will pay an amount equal to the principal being redeemed plus accrued interest.

If there is an effective registration statement for the resale of the shares underlying the convertible debenrures or if such
shares become 144(k) cligible, the Company will have the option to force the investors w convert 30% and 100% of tts
then-outstanding convertible debentures if its common stock price exceeds 150% and 175% of the Fixed Conversion
Price, respectively, for any 20 out of 30 wrading days; provided that such forced conversion meets certain conditions (the
“Call Oprion™). If the Company exercises its Call Option prior to the third anniversary of the signing date, ic will issue
additional warrants to the investor equal to 50% of the number of shares underlying the convertible debenture subject o
the forced conversion. These warrants will be exercisable at the fixed conversion price and will have the same maturity as

the other warrants issucd under the YA Global Financing.

The Company’s obligations under the convertible debentures are secured by all of its and its subsidiary’s assets and
intellectual property, a5 evidenced by the Security Agreements and the Parent Securiry Agreements. Pursuant ro a

subordination agreement, YA Global is the senior secured creditor.

YA Global and Stanford will also be issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 5,555,355 and 8,333,333, respectively, of
the Company’s common stock, exercisable six months and one day from the date of issuance until cheir expiration on the
date that is five years from che dace of issuance. The warrants will be issued in two series. Generally, the Series A warrants
may be issued prior to stockholder approval, while the Series B warrants are only issued after stockholder approval. The
exercise price of the Series A warrants is $1.01 per share, and the exercise price of the Series B warrants is $0.90 per share,
subject to certain adjustments. The warrants provide a right of cashless exercise if, at the time of exercise, there is no effective

registration statement registering the resale of the shares underlying the warrants.

The conversion rate of each converrible debenture and the exercise price of che Series B warrants are subject to adjustment
for certain events, including dividends, stock splits, combinations and the sale of the Company’s common stock or securiries
convertible into or exe cisable for the Company’s common stock at a price less than the then applicable conversion or

exercise price.

The investors have a righr of first refusal on any future funding that invelves the issuance of the Company’s capiral stock

for so leng as a portion of the convertible debentures is outstanding.

Under the Registration Rights Agreement, the Company has agreed to file an initial registration statement with the SEC
to register the resale of common stock issuable to YA Global (inclueding Interest Shares), (the “Registrable Shares”), within
30 days of the signing date. Also, the Company has agreed to respond to all SEC comment letters as promptly as reasonably
possible and to use its hest efforts o have the registration statement declared effective within 120 days of the signing dare.
The initial registration statement covering YA Global’s shares shall include 33% of the public float. If the Registrable
Shares remain outstanding after all shares under the initial registration statement have been sold, the Company may be
required to file additional registration statements for those Registrable Shares. These registration rights will cease once the
Registrable Shares are cligible for sale by the investor without restriction under Rule 144(k). Upon cerrain events, the
Company has agreed tc pay as partial liquidated damages an amount equal to 1.0% of the aggregate purchase price paid
by the investors for any convertible debentures then held by the investors, but these payments may nor exceed 12% of the

aggregare purchase pricz paid by the investors.
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The gross proceeds of the sale will be $10,000,000 before payment of 3.25% of the purchase price in commissions to
Wainwright & Co., Inc. {the “Placement Agent”). The Company will issue to the Placement Agent warrants ro purchase
7% of the purchase price, or 777,777 shares, of the Company’s common stock wich similar terms to the warrants that will
be issued 1o the investors. The Company paid YA Global and Stanford a non-refundable structuring/due diligence fee of
$30,000 each. The Company has also agreed to pay YA Global and Stanford a commitment fee of 5% and 7%, respectively,

of its purchase price, which is paid proportionately at each closing.
Specifics of YA Global Financing

Pursuant to the YA Global Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company has issued a convertible debenture in the amount
of $1,500,000 and will issue and sell to YA Global:

(1) a convertible debenture in the amounr of $1,500,000 on the dare the registration statement is filed, pursuant o the

Registration Rights Agreement, with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™); and

(2) a convertible debenture in the amount of $2,000,000 on the dare that is the later of (a) the date stockholders approve

the transaction or (b) the date the registration statement is declared effective by the SEC.

Pursuant to the rules of the American Srock Exchange, the convertible debencures and warrants issued and issuable to YA
Global at the first two closings will be subject to a cap on the number of shares of common stock that can be issued upon
the conversion of the convertible debentures and the exercise of the warrants, until the Company receives shareholder
approval. The cap of 3,493,000 shares is equal to 19.99% of the company’s outstanding common stock on the signing
date. In addition, there is a maximum overall cap of 30,500,000 shares for the YA Global financing,

Specifics of Stanford Financing
Pursuant to the Stanford Securities Purchase Agreement, the Company will issue and sell to Stanford:

(1) a convertible debenture in the amount of $2,000,000 and warrants within rwo business days of the later of (a) the
dare stackholders approve the transaction or (1) the date thac the initial registration starement relating to the YA Global
financing is filed with the SEC;

(2) a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the date the Company enters inte a supply agreement wirh a
third party manufacturer for sufficient quantity and quality of nano-parricle for encapsulation of Factor 5A gene to be
used in rexicology and proof of concept human studies under a United States Food and Drug Administration, referred

10 herein as FDA, accepred Investigational New Drug application, referred ro herein as IND application;

{3) a convertible debenture in the amount of $1,500,000 on the date the Company enters into a supply agreement with
a third parry manufacturer to provide sufficient quantity and quality of Facter 5A DNA to carry our toxicology and

proof of concepr human studies under a FDA accepted IND application.
The convertible debentures and warrants issuable to Stanford will be subject to a maximum cap of 31,888,888 on the

number of shares of common stock that can be issued upon the conversion of the convertible debentures and the exercise

of the warrants.
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